'BOARD MEETING

APRIL 25, 2013
(Rescheduled from April 18, 2013)

PUBLIC SCH
& .:’ Dol N

AGENDA

SreeciaL AbDMINISTRATIVE BOARD
MR. RICK SULLIVAN
Ms. MELANIE ADAMS
MR. RICHARD GAINES

SUuPERINTENDENT OF ScHooLs
DR. KELVIN R. ADAMS










Meeting Agenda Meeting Agenda Meeting Agenda



ST. LOuls PUBLIC SCHOOLS

SPECIAL ADMINISTRATIVE BOARD MEETING
APRIL 25, 2012-6:00PM

(RESCHEDULED FROM APRIL 18, 2013}

ADMINISTRATIVE BUILDING - 801 N. 11™ STREET

AGENDA

REGULAR MEETING

1)
2)
3)
4)

5)
6)
7)

Call to Order
Roll Call
Pledge of Allegiance
Approval of Minutes
a) March 20, 2013 (to be forwarded under separate cover)
Student/Staff Recognition(s)
Public Comments
Superintendent’s Report
a) Information Item(s)
1. GOB Financials
2. Summer School Proposal (2013)
3. SLPS Magnet & Choice Schools
4. 2012-2013 State Testing MSIP V
b) Business ltems
1. Consent Agenda

8) Board Member Updates
9) Adjournment

NOTES:







Meeting Agenda Consent Agenda Consent Agenda



ST. LOUIS PUBLIC SCHOOLS
SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT

April 25, 2013
{Rescheduled from April 18, 2013)

1.0 Preliminary

1.1 Consent Agenda

04-25-13-01

Approved at the
March 20, 2013 Meeting

04-25-13-02

04-25-13-03

04-25-13-04

04-25-13-05

04-25-13-06

04-25-13-07

Approved at the
March 20, 2013 Meeting

04-25-13-08

WITHDRAWN

04-25-13-09
Approved at the
March 20, 2013 Meeting

04-25-13-10

Approved at the
March 20, 2013 Meeting

04-25-13-11

WITHDRAWN

04-25-13-12

Approved at the
March 20, 2013 Meeting

a) Information ltem(s)
1. GOB Financial Update
2. 2013 Summer School Proposal
3. SLPS Magnet and Choice Schools
4. 2012-2013 State Testing MSIP V

b) Business ltems

To approve the acceptance from the Clinton Global Initiative Brightergy for
up to a 25 kW solar system for Gateway STEM High School.

To approve the acceptance of instruments from Mr. Holland’s Opus
Foundation and Fidelity Investments for Soldan High School’s Instrumental
Music Department.

To approve Summer School 2013 at a total cost not to exceed $3,300,000.
FUNDING SOURCE: NON-GOB and GOB

To approve and adopt the FY 2013-2014 School Calendar.

To approve the Safety and Risk Management Handbook for the 2012-2013
School Year.

To approve the February 2013 Monthly Transaction Report.

To approve the staffing of core subject classrooms to meet a Pupil Teacher
Ratio (PTR) at the midpoint between DESE desirable and minimum PTR
guidelines.

FUNDING SOURCE: GOB

To approve a change from a 3 Tier Bell System to a 2 Tier Bell System.
FUNDING SOURCE: GOB

To approve the closing of Sherman Elementary School.
FUNDING SOURCE: GOB

To approve the closing of L’Ouverture Middle School.
FUNDING SOURCE: GOB

To approve the closing of Cleveland NJROTC High School over the next
three years. The school will not accept any 9" graders for the 2013-2014
school year and would be reduced by one grade each year.

FUNDING SOURCE: GOB

To approve the closing of Fresh Start South at Meda P and consolidating
the Fresh Start program at Sumner.
FUNDING SOURCE: GOB

14 This consent agenda contains the routine operational contracts of the District and the items thereon are subject to change, addition
and removal up to the time of the meeting.



04-25-13-13

04-25-13-14
Approved at the
RMarch 20, 2013 Meeting

04-25-13-15

04-25-13-16

04-25-13-17

04-25-13-18

04-25-13-19

04-25-13-20

04-25-13-21

04-25-13-22

To approve the move of the Multiple Pathways Alternative program to
Beaumont from Stevens.
FUNDING SOURCE: GOB

To approve payment of $12,890 per year for 3 years to eligible participants
that qualifies for retirement up to a total of $5,156,000 per year for 3 years,
if 400 employees participate.

To ratify approval of a contract with FUSE for marketing materials
production and placement for the period February 1, 2013 through June 30,
2013 at a cost not to exceed $68,750 which includes a 10% contingency of
$6,250. The contract will contain an option to renew for up to 2 additional
years with Board approval.

FUNDING SOURCE: GOB

To approve a sole source contract renewal with Pearson, Inc., Teacher
Education and Development Group to deliver the Sheltered Instruction
Observation Protocol (SIOP) Observation and Feedback training (April 27"
and May 17‘“2 and the Component Enhancement training (August 17" and
September 7") at a total combined cost not to exceed $20,000.

FUNDING SoURCE: NON-GOB

To approve a sole source contract renewal with US Bank to provide the
District’'s banking services for the period July 1, 2013 through June 30,
2014. :

To approve a contract renewal with Tyler Technologies, Inc. for the annual
license renewal of the Student Information System for the period July 1,
2013 through June 30, 2014 at a cost not to exceed $361,380, pending
funding availability.

FUNDING SOURCE: GOB

To approve a contract renewal for Virtual School through Connections
Academy, Aventa Learning, Missouri Council on Economic Education,
Florida Virtual School, The North Kansas City School District and any other
DESE approved vendor for the period July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2014
at a total combined amount not to exceed $100,000, pending funding
availability.

FUNDING SOURCE: GOB

To approve a contract renewal with eSchool Solutions, Inc. for the annual
maintenance fee for the Substitute Employee Management System (Smart
Find Express) for the period July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2014 at a cost
not to exceed $14,800, pending funding availability.

FUNDING SOURCE: GOB

To approve a contract renewal with Holmes Murphy to provide benefits
consulting services for the period July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2014 at a
cost not to exceed $151,700, pending funding availability.

FUNDING SOURCE: GOB

To approve a Memorandum of Understanding with the Curators of the
University of Missouri on behalf of the School and Family Counseling
Center to provide therapeutic counseling services to students at Long
Middle for the period April 26, 2013 through June 30, 2014.

2 This consent agenda contains the routine operational contracts of the District and the items thereon are subject to change, addition
and removal up to the time of the meeting.




04-25-13-23

04-25-13-24

05-09-13-01

05-09-13-02

05-09-13-03

05-09-13-04

05-09-13-05

05-09-13-06

05-09-13-07

To approve a purchase of services from Riddell All-American through
Cooperating School Districts to provide reconditioning and sanitation
services for the football helmets and shoulder pads. The services will be
performed during the period April 26, 2013 through June 15, 2013 at a cost
not to exceed $26,000.
FUNDING SOURCE: GOB

To approve rescinding Policies and Regulations R3110, P3120, R3120,
P3150, R3150.1, P3170 and R3170 and to approve the revision of Board
Policy P3110 that will incorporate and consoclidate pertinent verbiage
relative to the aforementioned policies. If approved, the new policy will

become effective July 1, 2013.

MAY 9, 2013 ITEM(S) FOR CONSIDERATION

To approve an amendment to Board Resolution Number 11-15-12-17, a
contract with College Summit, in the amount of $44,000. College Summit
will provide training and 550 copies of the career readiness materials for the
Launch Program. The Launch Program was operated under a separate
contract during the 11-12 school year. For this current year, the Launch
Program is being included in the master College Summit Contract as an
amendment. If approved, the total amount for this contract will now be
$325,000.

FUNDING SOURCE: Non-GOB

To approve an amendment to Board Resolution Number 06-26-12-42, a
contract with Belcan InfoServices in the amount of $61,000 to provide
temporary technical personnel to be used in the Technology Department to
support intranet, email accounts and server administration. If approved, the
total amount of this contract will now be $181,000.

FUNDING SOURCE: GOB

To approve an amendment to Board Resolution Number 07-10-12-25, a
contract with Supplemental Health Care in the amount of $154,316. The
original amount of $361,760 did not allow for cost to service additional
Special Education students. If approved, the total amount of this contract
will now be $516,076.

FUNDING SOURCE: Non-GOB

To approve an amendment to Board Resolution Number 07-10-12-26,
contracts with Annie Malone-Emerson Academy, Epworth, Logos School
and Edgewood in the amount of $720,923. The original approved dollar
limitation of $1,925,872 did not allow for the cost of to additional students. If
approved, the total amount of this contract will now be $2,646,845.

FUNDING SOURCE: Non-GOB

To approve an amendment to Board Resolution Number 09-27-12-15, a
contract with Concentra Medical Centers in the amount of $10,000. The
increase will cover the cost of pre-employment screening, TB skin tests and
for cause drug testing as needed for potential new hires. This amendment
also requests to include additional services for pre-employment drug testing
and fit for duty exams. If approved, the total cost will now be $55,000.
FUNDING SOURCE: GOB

To approve the 2012-2013 final bus route.

To approve the revisions to the 2012-2013 school calendar.

3 This consent agenda contains the routine operational contracts of the District and the items thereon are subject to change, addition
and removal up to the time of the meeting.



05-09-13-08
05-09-13-09

05-09-13-10

05-09-13-11

05-09-13-12

05-09-13-13

05-09-13-14

05-09-13-15

05-09-13-16

05-09-13-17

05-09-13-18

05-09-13-19

To approve the 2012-2013 school calendar for graduating seniors.
To approve the March 2013 Monthly Transaction Report.

To approve expenditures up to $72,500 to support the 2013-2014 Back to
School Festival.
FUNDING SOURCE: GOB

To approve the payment of $2,982.70 from GOB to the food service
account to avoid increasing the price for paid meals by $.05 for the 2013-
2014 school year.

To approve a sole source purchase from Bedford, Freeman and Worth
Publishers for instructional materials for Advanced Placement Statistics for
all SLPS high schoals for the 2013-2014 school year at a cost not to exceed
$6,552.00.

FUNDING SOURCE: Non—-GOB

To approve a sole source purchase from Bedford, Freeman and Worth
Publishers for instructional materials for Advanced Placement
Environmental Science for all SLPS high schools for the 2013-2014 school
year at a cost not to exceed $14,976.

FUNDING SOURCE: Non-GOB

To approve a sole source purchase from College Board/AP Exams for the
2013-2014 AP Testing fees for Advanced Placement Exams in the amount
of $30,000.

FUNDING SOURCE: Non-GOB

To approve a sole purchase from Pearson for the Advanced Placement
Biology instructional materials for all SLPS high schools for the 2013-2014
school year at a cost not to exceed $18,564.17.

FuNDING SOURCE: Non-GOB

To approve a contract with Chaifetz Arena for rental expenses for the Back
to School Festival to be held on August 3, 2013 in the amount of $20,000.
pending funding availability.

FUNDING SOURCE: GOB

To approve a sole source contract with Why Try, LLC for consulting
services to provide training, online curriculum uses, and individual and
classroom secondary student game plan journals for the period May 10,
2013 through June 30, 2013 at a total combined cost not to exceed
$10,985.

FUNDING SOURCE: Non-GOB

To approve a contract with Milliman to provide pension actuarial services
for the period May 11, 2013 through October 1, 2013 at a cost not to
exceed $40,000, pending funding availability.

FUNDING SOURCE: GOB

To approve a contract with Southwest Food Service Excellence to provide
food services to all District schools at a cost not to exceed $14,453,034 that
includes the cost of services for vendors selected by Southwest Food
Services Excellence. The period of the contract will be from July 1, 2013 —
June 30, 2014, pending funding availability.

FUNDING SOURCE: Non-GOB

and removal up to the time of the meeting.

4 g This consent agenda contains the routine operational contracts of the District and the items thereon are subject to change, addition




05-09-13-20

05-09-13-21

05-09-13-22

05-09-13-23

05-09-13-24

05-09-13-25

05-09-13-26

05-09-13-27

To approve a contract with Ricoh USA, Inc. to lease the equipment and
provide multi-functional devices and support, print shop management and
mail services, along with printer management and document management
application software at a cost not to exceed $840,000 annually. The period
of the contract will be 5 years from July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2018.
The contract will be presented to the Board each year for renewal of
services and funding, pending funding availability.

FUNDING SOURCE: GOB

To approve a contract with multiple vendors (attached to the Resolution) for
the purchase of interactive boards for the period July 1, 2013 through June
30, 2014 at a total combined cost not to exceed $2,000,000, pending
funding availability.

FUNDING SOURCE: Various

To approve a contract with Dell Corporation as the standard vendor for
technology purchases for items such as personal laptops, desktops, tablet
computers, servers, etc. for the period July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2014
at a total combined cost not to exceed $5,500,000, pending funding
availability.

FUNDING SOURCE: Various

To approve a contract with Integrated Systems Group (a subsidiary of VSG)
to disassemble the sound room at Beaumont and relocate and assemble
at Carnahan High School. The work shall begin on April 26, 2013 and end
on June 30, 2013 at a cost not to exceed $14,591.50, which includes a 10%
contingency of $1,326.50.

FUNDING SOURCE: GOB

To approve a contract with Raineri Construction to remove and replace
existing lighting fixtures in the main and practice gymnasiums in Vashon
High School. The work shall begin on April 26, 2013 and end on July 31,
2013 at a cost not to exceed $344,610.20, which includes a 10%
contingency of $31,328.20.

FUNDING SOURCE: Prop S

To approve a contract with Raineri Construction to install complete
playground systems at Lyon Academy at Blow and Gateway Michael
Elementary School. The project also includes the removal and replacement
of the existing safety surfaces at Stix ECC Elementary School. The work
shall begin on April 26, 2013 and end on July 19, 2013 at a cost not to
exceed $184,646.07, which includes a 10% contingency of $16,786.
FUNDING SOURCE: Prop S

To approve a contract with Raineri Construction to for tuckpointing,
painting, and replacing flooring at Sumner and Roosevelt High Schools.
The work shall begin on April 26, 2013 and end on July 31, 2013 at a cost
not to exceed $4,860,045.30, which includes a 10% contingency of
$441,822.30.

FUNDING SOURCE: Prop S

To approve a contract with Demien Construction for Restroom Renovations
at Category 3 and 4 schools. The work shall begin on April 26, 2013 and
end on August 31, 2013 at a cost not to exceed $4,739,900, which includes
a 10% contingency of $430,900.

FUNDING SOURCE: Prop S

5 This consent agenda contains the routine operational contracts of the District and the items thereon are subject to change, addition
and removal up to the time of the meeting.



05-09-13-28

05-09-13-29

05-09-13-30

05-09-13-31

05-09-13-32

05-09-13-33

05-09-13-34

05-09-13-35

To approve a contract with Demien Construction to replace five sets of
double doors leading from the cafeteria to adjacent north and south
corridors at Roosevelt High School. The work shall begin on April 26, 2013
and end on June 30, 2013 at a cost not to exceed $60,500 which includes a
10% contingency of $5,500.

FUNDING SOURCE: Prop S

To approve a contract with Interface Construction to replace non-compliant
doors and locksets in classrooms, offices and public areas in multiple
schools. The work shall begin on April 26, 2013 and end on July 31, 2013 at
a cost not to exceed $366,177.90 which includes a 10% contingency of
$33,288.90.

FUNDING SOURCE: Prop S

To approve a contract with American Boiler to replace the heat pumps for
the gymnasiums and stage areas at Froebel and Lexington Elementary
Schools. The work shall begin on April 26, 2013 and end on August 1, 2013
at a cost not to exceed $222,393 which includes a 10% contingency of
$20,218.

FUNDING SOURCE: HVAC Bond

To approve a contract with American Boiler to replace two chillers at Hickey
Elementary School. The work shall begin on April 26, 2013 and end on
August 1, 2013 at a cost not to exceed $218,680 which includes a 10%
contingency of $19,880.

FUNDING SOURCE: HVAC Bond

To approve a contract with Johnson Controls to install a hot gas bypass
circuit on the York chiller at Sigel Elementary School. The work shall begin
on April 26, 2013 and end on June 30, 2013 at a cost not to exceed
$29,075.20 which includes a 10% contingency of $2,643.20.

FUNDING SOouURCE: HVAC Bond

To approve a contract renewal with Achievement Commitment Excellence
Learning Centers (ACE) to provide the alternative Summer School Program
for the period June 3, 2013 through June 28, 2013 at a cost not to exceed
$160,000.

FUNDING SOURCE: GOB

To approve a contract renewal with Linn State Technical College (LSTC) to
provide a Technical Scholars Academy for twelve (12) SLPS high school
students participating in the Career and Technical Education Program. The
Academy is a summer program offered by LSTC during the period June 10,
2013 through June 27, 2013 at a cost not to exceed $45,000, pending
funding availability.

FUNDING SOURCE: Non-GOB

To approve the renewal and amendment of the contract with Teach for
America to provide recruiting and training for up to 70 first year teachers for
the 2013/2014 school year at a cost of $2,500 per teacher and to authorize
payment of $2,500 per up to 70 second year teachers at a cost not to
exceed $350,000, pending funding availability.

FUNDING SOURCE: GOB

6 This consent agenda contains the routine operational contracts of the District and the items thereon are subject to change, addition
and removal up to the time of the meeting.




05-09-13-36

05-09-13-37

05-09-13-38

05-09-13-39

05-09-13-40

05-09-13-41

05-09-13-42

05-09-13-43

05-09-13-44

To approve a contract renewal with nFocus to provide the software for the
Community Education registration system for the period July 1, 2013
through June 30, 2014 at a cost not to exceed $25,000, pending funding
availability.

FUNDING SOURCE: GOB

To approve a contract renewal with Belcan InfoServices to provide
temporary technical personnel to be used in the Technology Department to
support intranet, email accounts, and server administration for the period
July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2014 at a cost not to exceed $186,430,
pending funding availability.

FUNDING SOURCE: GOB

To approve a contract renewal with Apple as the sole source for technology
purchases for items such as iPads, iMacs, iPods, Bretford iPad sync carts,
professional development, and other peripherals beginning July 1, 2013
through June 30, 2014 at a total combined cost not to exceed $3,000,000,
pending funding availability.

FUNDING SOURCE: Various

To approve a contract renewal with Pitney Bowes for equipment and
maintenance services on the postage meter application system for the
period July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2014 at a cost not to exceed $17,700,
pending funding availability.

FUNDING SOURCE: GOB

To approve a contract renewal with SAP America to provide maintenance
and enterprise support services for the SAP financial system and BSI
Payroll Tax software for the period July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2014 at a
cost not to exceed $290,000, pending funding availability.

FUNDING SOURCE: GOB

To approve a contract renewal with Kronos for maintenance services on the
timeclock software application for the period July 1, 2013 through June 30,
2014 at a cost not to exceed $115,371.13, pending funding availability.
FUNDING SOURCE: GOB

To approve a coniract renewal with Huber & Associates to provide the
maintenance and support on the newly implemented virtualization hardware
system; monitoring and support on 100 servers with monthly reports; and
Tier 3 repair services for the period July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2014 at a
cost not to exceed $64,500, pending funding availability.

FUNDING SOURCE: GOB

To approve a contract renewal with SafeSchools for the subscription to use
the SafeSchools Training website for the period July 1, 2013 through

June 30, 2014 at a cost not to exceed $16,500, pending funding availability.
FUNDING SOURCE: GOB

To approve a contract renewal with Rubin Brown, LLP to audit
governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information, which collectively comprise the financial statements of the St.
L.ouis Public Schools during the period July 1, 2013 through December 31,
2013 at a total cost not to exceed $193,000, pending funding availability.
FUNDING SOURCE: GOB

7 This consent agenda contains the routine operational contracts of the District and the items thereon are subject to change, addition
and removal up to the time of the meeting.



05-09-13-45

05-09-13-46

05-09-13-47

05-09-13-48

05-09-13-49

05-09-13-50

05-09-13-51

05-09-13-52

To approve a contract renewal with Dynamic Vending to provide beverage
and snack vending machine services at no cost to the District for the period
July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2014. Dynamic Vending pays the District
commissions on the sales in the vending machines.

To approve a membership renewal with Focus Saint Louis for the Youth
Leadership St. Louis (YLSL) program for the period September 3, 2013
through May 23, 2014 at a cost not to exceed $6,000, pending funding
availability.

FUNDING SOURCE: GOB

To approve a Memorandum of Understanding with Life Impact Ministries to
raise awareness and financial support for the Community Education Fuil
Service Schools through the Race to Renew 5K race that will take place on
July 13, 2013. The MOU is for the period May 10, 2013 through September
1, 2013.

To approve a Memorandum of Understanding with People’s Community
Action Corporation to provide services/programs including but not limited to:
leadership development, energy services, life skills classes, anger
management, computer training and community gardens to youth and their
families at the Community Education Full Service Schools and other District
sites during the period May 10, 2013 through June 30, 2014.

To approve a Memorandum of Understanding with Grace Hill Settlement
House to run a program at Clay Elementary Community Education Full
Service School that establishes three family support specialists, or “home-
school liaison” in order to comprehensively serve students and their families
during the period May 10, 2013 through June 30, 2014.

To approve a Memorandum of Understanding with Better Family Life, Inc.
(BFL) to provide social service programs, including but not limited to; teen
pregnancy prevention, youth job training programs, and clinical services to
youth, families, and the community in the Community Education Full
Service Schools and other District sites during the period May 10, 2013
through June 30, 2014.

To approve a Memorandum of Understanding with HOSCO, LLC. to provide
urban agricultural training, healthy cooking and nutrition classes to select
District schools, and participate in the Health and Wellness Council during
the period July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2014.

To approve a Memorandum of Understanding with Operation Food Search
to provide nutrition education in the St. Louis Public Schools and to
establish a cooperative relationship to implement the Agency’s child feeding
program, Operation Backpack during the period July 1, 2013 through June
30, 2014.

8 This consent agenda contains the routine operational contracts of the District and the items thereon are subject to change, addition
and removal up to the time of the meeting.




April 25, 2013






ITEM#:
04-25-13-01

APPROVED AT THE
MARCH 14, 2013 MEETING







43+ BOARD RESOLUTION

Date: March 8, 2013 Agenda ltem : ﬁéfi

To: Dr. Kelvin R. Adams, Superintendent Action: X

From: Patrick Wallace, Exec. Dir., Communications

Action to be Approved: Other Transaction Descriptors:
Acceptance of Funds/Funding (i.e.: Sole Source, Ratification)

SUBJECT: To approve the acceptance of instruments from Mr. Holland's Opus Foundation and Fidelity Investments for
Soldan High School's Instrumental Music Department. The instruments have a total combined value of $22,000+.

BACKGROUND: Soldan's Instrumental Music Departmental has been awarded musical instruments which include:
three alto saxophones, three flutes, five clarinets, one piccolo, one 3/4 tuba and one xylophone.
The Mr. Holland's Opus Foundation keeps music alive in our schools by donating musical instruments to under-funded
music programs, giving youngsters the many benefits of music education, helping them to be better students and
inspiring creativity and expression through playing music.

Accountability Plan Goals: Goal |: Student Performance Objective/Strategy: |.A.

FUNDING SOURCE: (ex: 111 Location Code - 00 Project Code -110 Fund Type — 2218 Function- 6411 Object Code)

Fund Source: N/A Requisition #:
Amount:
Fund Source: Requisition #:
Amount:
Fund Source: | Requisition #: N
Amount:
$ 0.00 | CJPending Funding Availability | Vendor #:

/
Department: Soldan High School \::),/‘({ W
A : 0

Requestor: Dr. Thomas Cason

Angela Banks, Budget Director

gon Fisher, CFO/Treasurer

@)O%’ii "LC}L

L~ 5 - . .
Patrick Wallace, Exec. Dir., Communications Dr. Kelvin R. Adams, Superintendent

Revised 07/06/2011 Reviewed By: Reviewed By: Reviewed By:






43~ BOARD RESOLUTION

Date: March 7, 2013 Agenda ltem :

To: Dr. Kelvin R. Adams, Superintendent Action: X

From: Sheila Smith-Anderson, Exec. Dir., Curr. Instruc

Other Transaction Descriptors:

Action to be A : .
pproved: Summer School (i.e.: Sole Source, Ratification)

SUBJECT: Request for approval to operate Summer School 2013. There will be a 19-day session for students in PK-12
grade for enrichment and remediation beginning June 3-June 27, 2013 with the closing date for staff on June 28, 2013.
The cost of the summer school program is not to exceed $3,000,000.00.

BACKGROUND: The St. Louis Public School District will provide summer school instruction to a target of 5700 students
to improve academic achievement. A differentiated program model that is problem-based for students in K-8 will be
offered to provide students with increased opportunities for educational experiences, as well as reinforce and extend the
regular school year. Summer school is designed for the following groups: 1) Identified P4 students entering
kindergarten fall of '13 who need extra support, 2) Grade 3-4 students who qualify for services under Senate Bill 319, 3)
K-8 students who want to extend their learning, 4) students with IEPs and are eligible for extended services, 5) 8th
graders identified in the High School Initiative Grant, 6) high school students who need to earn academic credits, 7) high
school students who need extra support with core classes as interventions, 8) CTE internships, 9) AP Camp, 10)
Biomedical Camp. A pre and post test will be administered for SB319 students. Attendance and credit toward graduation
will be evaluated.

Accountability Plan Goals: Goal I: Student Performance Objective/Strategy: 4

FUNDING SOURCE: (ex: 111 Location Code - 00 Project Code -110 Fund Type ~ 2218 Function- 6411 Object Code)

Fund Source: Multi funded: GOB, Title, Non-GOB and GOB Requisition #:
Deseg
Amount: $3,300,000.00
Fund Source: l Requisition #:
Amount:
Fund Source: | Requisition #:
Amount:

$3,300,000.00 ] [[IPending Funding Availability Vendor #:

/’
Department: Academic &77{//
— B A

Requestor: Sheila Smith-Anderson geld Banks, Budget Director
S
. < %( \ £

Yeon Ié‘é’her, CFOfr reasurer

Sheila S nith-Anderson, Exec. Dir., Curr. Instruc

2,}/; wu

Drﬁ:{ole Williams, Dep. féupt Academics { Dr. Kelvin R. Adams, Superintendent

Revised §7/06/2011 Reviewed By: Reviewed By: Reviewed By:






43- BOARD RESOLUTION

Date: March 7, 2013

To: Dr. Kelvin R. Adams, Superintendent

From: Deanna Anderson, Exec. Dir., Transportation

Agenda ltem : 5 %ﬁ

Action: X

Action to be Approved: Policy Adoption/Change

FY13-14 Calendar

Other Transaction Descriptors:
(i.e.: Sole Source, Ratification)

SUBJECT: Request approval to adopt the FY13-14 School Calendar. |

BACKGROUND: Attached is the FY13-14 School Calendar submitted for approval. In the FY13-14 School Calendar,
please note the following: 6 Professional Development days; the first day for students occurs on Monday, August 12,
2013; last class day occurs Friday. May 23, 2014; winter break is scheduled for 5 days; spring break is scheduled for 5
days; two (2) recordkeeping days; and six(6) snow days are in the calendar as required by Missouri State Statutes. There
is a total of 176 student days totaling 1,135.2 hours. The hours of instruction per school day are 6 hours and 27 minutes.

Accountability Plan Goals:

Objective/Strategy:

FUNDING SOURCE: (ex: 111 Location Code - 00 Project Code -110 Fund Type - 2218 Function—- 6411 Object Code)

Fund Source: N/A

Requisition #:

Amount:

Fund Source: [

Requisition #:

Amount:
Fund Source: [ Requisition #:
Amount:

$ 0.00 | [JPending Funding Availability | Vendor #:

Department: Transportation

Re stor: Deannad. Anderson

ot hoolons

S

f)ga"r’ma Andei%):m, Exec. Dir., Transportation

Moo PO

Mary M/i-loulihan, Dep. Supt., Operations

Revised §7/06/2011 Reviewed By:

szfizlis?nks, Budget Director

/~ LeonFisher, CFO/Treasurer

Dr. Kelvin R. Adams, Superintendent

Reviewed By: Reviewed By:



St. Louis Public School District

Draft %
2013-2014 Academic Year Calendar
R-VKI S M Th F |Sa] July'i3 Teachers 0 /Students 0
21 22 25 26 |27 22 11 Month Staff Returns to Work
28 29 29 10.5 Month Staff Returns to Work
1 2 3 | August'l3 Teachers 20 /Students 15
4 5 6 7 8 9 00 5 10 Month Staff Returns to Work
11 | FCD 13 14 15 16 | 171 59 Opening Activities Days (2 District-wide Professional Development; 2 Classroom Prep.; 1 Principal's Day)
18 | 19%* 20 21 22 23 |24 12 First Class Day
25 26 27 28 29 30 | 31§ 19* Early Childhood/Early Childhood Special Ed. begins
1 H 3 4 5 6 7 | September '13 Teachers 21/Students 19
8 9 10 11 12 PR |14} 2 Holiday-Labor Day District Closed
15 16 17 18 19 20 | 21§ 13 Interim Progress Reports for Quarter 1
22 23 24 25 26 PD |28} 27 Professional Development (no students)
29 30
1 2 3 4 5 | October '13 Teachers 23/Students 22
6 7 8 9 10 11 (12§ 11 Quarter 1 ends 43 days/277.35 hours
13 | SQ* 15 16 17 |PCD*| 19}F 14 Second Quarter begins
20 21 22 23 24 25 | 260 18 *Parent Conferences (no students) Conferences to be held 3 hrs. after school on 10/17 and 3.5 hrs. morning of 10/18
27 28 29 30 31
1 2 | November '13 Teachers 21/Students 17
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 1 11 Holiday-Veteran's Day District Closed
10 12 13 14 PR | 16}F 15 Interim Progress Reports for Quarter 2

27 No school for non 12 month staff;, 12 Month Staff Works/Schools Closed
28-29 Holiday-Thanksgiving District Closed

December '13 Teachers 22/Students 14

17 19 Quarter 2 ends 44 days/283.8 hours
18 20 Record Keeping (no students)
19 23-31 Winter Break (no school)
20 24-25 Holiday-Christmas District Closed
1First Semester 87 days/561.15 hours
21 _H | PD | PD | 4] January'l4 Teachers 23/Students 19
220 5 |TQ/CR| 7 8 9 10 J11g 1 Holiday-New Year's Day District Closed
23 15 16 17 | 18] 2-3 Professional Development (no students)
24 22 23 24 |25 6 Third Quarter/Classes Resume
25 29 30 31 20 Holiday-Martin Luther King Day District Closed
1 {| February '14 Teachers 20/Students 18
26 5 6 PR | 8 7 Interim Progress Reports for Quarter 3
27 12 13 PD |15} 14 Professional Development (no students)
28 19 20 21 [ 224 17 Holiday-President's Day District Closed
29 26 27 28
March '14 Teachers 21/Students 15
30) 2 7 Quarter 3 ends 42 days/270.9 hours
31] © 10 Fourth Quarter begins
320 16 | B . 14 *Parent Conferences (no students) Conferences to be held 3 hrs. after school on 03/13 and 3.5 hrs. morning of 03/14
33| 23 24 25 26 27 28 | 29§ 17-21 Spring Break (no school)
30 31
34 1 2 3 4 5 | April'l4 Teachers 22/Students 21
35 6 7 8 9 10 PR |12} 11 Interim Progress Reports for Quarter 4
36 13 14 15 16 17 Beinst 197 18 No school for non 12 month staff; 12 Month Staff Works/Schools Closed
378 20 21 22 23 24 25 |26
381 27| 28 29 30
1 2 3 | May'l4 Teachers 17/Students 16
39F 4 5 6 7 8 9 10§ 16 Record Keeping (no students)
404 11 12 13 14 15 RK |17} 23 Last Class Day/Quarter 4 ends 47 days/303.15 hours
41} 18 19 20 21 22 23 [24] 23 Last Day for 10 Month Employees
25 H [27/SN| 28/SN [29/SN|30/SN| 31 §27-30 ~ Snow Days
30 Last Day for 10.5 Month Employees iSecond Semester Totals 89 days/574.05 hours
1 | 2/SN | 3/SN 4 5 6 7 | June'l4
8 9 10 11 12 13 | 14} 2-3 Snow Days 6 Last Day for 11 Month Employees
15 16 17 18 19 20 |21
22 23 24 25 26 27 | 28% 2-27 Summer School
29 30
1 2 3 H 51 July'13
6 7 8 9 10 11 [12] 4 Holiday-Independence Day
13 14 15 16 17 18 | 19
20 | 21 22 23 24 25 |26
27| 28 29 30 31

Totals for the 2013/2014 School Year days; hours;
Student 176 days @ 6 hr. 27 min. (6.45/day)=1135.2

Teacher 210 Days (176 teaching days,34 without students (5 days for winter break; 5 days for spring break; 9
holidays; 2 record keeping days; 2 no school days; 6 professional development days; 2 parent conference days; 2 classroom prep. days; 1 Principal's

day)







BOARD RESOLUTION

Date: March 11, 2013
To: Dr. Kelvin R. Adams, Superintendent

From: Leon Fisher, CFO/Treasurer

Agenda ltem :

Action: X

Action to be Approved: Policy Adoption/Change

Other Transaction Descriptors:
(i.e.: Sole Source, Ratification)

SUBJECT: To approve the Safety and Risk Management Handbook for the 2012-13 school year. The Handbook supports
the District Policy P3511 and District Regulation R3511 that was amended and approved by the Board as Board

Resolution 06-24-10-16.

BACKGROUND: The Safety and Risk Management Handbook was drafted in 2010 as a priority objective of the Safety
and Risk Management Committee. The Policy is included as page 2 of the Handbook that each employee is required to
acknowledge in writing (or online) that they have read and understand the safety program and guidelines in the

Handbook.

Accountability Plan Goals: Goal llI: Facilities, Resources Support Objective/Strategy: 1li.D.

FUNDING SOURCE: (ex: 111 Location Code - 00 Project Code -110 Fund Type — 2218 Function- 6411 Object Code)

Fund Source:

Requisition #:

Amount:

Fund Source:

Requisition #:

Amount:

Fund Source: [ Requisition #:
Amount:

Cost Not to Exceed: $ 0.00 | [IPending Funding Availability Vendor #:

Department: Risk Management

Requestor: Kevin Coyne

AN

Mar . Hohan, Dep. Supt., Operations

Revised §7/06/2011 Reviewed By:

/

Angela Banks, Budget Director

v Leoﬁ'Fisher, CFO/Treasurer

Dr. Kelvin R. Adams, Superintendent

Reviewed By: Reviewed By:



e



SAFETY and RISK MANAGEMENT
HANDBOOK

To ensure that safety procedures, guidelines, and policies are followed, the
District has developed a school district safety program that is outlined in this
St. Louis Public Schools Safety and Risk Management Handbook.

SAINT LOUIS
PROURLIC SCHOEHS

e

§ July 2012







St. Louis Public Schools
801 North 11™ Street
St. Louis, MO

Special Administrative Board Members
Rick Sullivan - CEO
Melanie Adams
Richard K. Gaines

Superintendent of Schools
Dr. Kelvin R. Adams

Chief of Staff
Dr. Alice Roach

The Special Administrative Board of the Transitional School District of the City of St. Louis (“Board”) does not
discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, sex, sexual orientation, age or disability in admission or
access to, or treatment or employment in its programs and activities. For more information, please contact the
Chief Human Resources Officer, 801 North 11™ Street, Saint Louis, MO 63101, or by telephone at 314-345-2295.

Published by:

St. Louis Public Schools’ Safety and Risk Management Committee
July 2012

St. Louis Public Schools Safety & Risk Management Handbook






. TABLE OF CONTENTS

. SECTION 1 SCHOOL BOARD POLICY ..ottt pg 1
Safety & Risk Management Handbook Signature Page
Safety & Risk Management Policy Statement

SECTION II SCHOOL DISTRICT SAFETY & RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE...... pg 3
Committee Organization

SECTION III SAFETY RULES, POLICIES, AND PROCEDURES ..........c.cooiiiiiiii pg 4
All Employees
Office/Classrooms

Research Science/Lab Safety
Maintenance/Custodial
SECTION IV EMERGENCY PROCEDURES................ T TS pg 13
Bomb Threat
Earthquake
Fire
Intruder
Tornado
SECTION V SCHOOL VIOLENCE AND RESTRICTIVE BEHAVIOR INTERVENTION... pg 17
P5144.1 School Violence and Restrictive Behavior Intervention Policy
Awareness and Avoidance
Safety Tips
Handling Hostile Individuals
. Interventions for Fights
Other Interventions
SECTION VI INJURY PREVENTION/TREATMENT ... ..ottt pg 27
Injury Treatment
Emergency Medical Treatment
Hyperthermia (Heat Exhaustion)
Hypothermia (Severe Frostbite)
SECTION VII WORK RELATED INJURY/ACCIDENT INVESTIGATION.............cccoeneee pg 29
Injury/Accident Investigation Procedures
Injury/Accident Report Form
Workman’s Compensation Procedures
SECTION VIII OTHER INJURY/ACCIDENT INVESTIGATION.......ccooiiiiiiiis pg 34
Students
Visitors
SECTION IX VEHICLE SAFETY ot pg 35
’ Policy Statement
Program Goals
Program Responsibilities
Safety Regulations
Accident Reporting
SECTION X SAFETY & RISK MANAGEMENT PROGRAM TRAINING..............c.cooone pg 39
Safety Program Orientation
Job Specific Training
Periodic Retraining of Employees
Universal Precautions
APPENDIXES DISTRICT FORMS ... pg A-1

St. Louis Public Schools Safety & Risk Management Handbook



SECTIONI

SCHOOL BOARD POLICY

SAFETY & RISK MANAGEMENT HANDBOOK SIGNATURE PAGE
The safety of all St. Louis Public School (SLPS) personnel, students, and visitors is of vital

importance. To this end, it shall be the policy and practice of SLPS to prevent accidents,
occupational injuries, and illnesses by taking reasonable precautions to protect the safety of all
students, employees, visitors and others present on District property or at school sponsored

events.

SLPS shall strive to provide safe working conditions for all staff members and will give prompt
consideration to remediate those conditions that may present a threat to the health and safety of
all staff members. To that end, SLPS will mandate and provide workshops to instruct staff on
safe work practices so that work, teaching, and learning can be accomplished without threat to
life, health or loss of property.

SLPS will respond to employee requests for reasonable accommodations when an employee has
a disability as defined by Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 or the Americans with
Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990 and the ADA Amendments Act of 2008.

The Superintendent shall have the overall responsibility for the safety program. SLPS
administrators, as the Superintendent’s designees, will ensure that all employees are kept
informed of current state and local requirements related to occupational safety. Administrators
and principals shall be responsible for administration and supervision of the safety program
within their assigned areas of responsibility.

To ensure safety procedures, guidelines, and policies are followed, SLPS has developed a safety
program that is outlined in this handbook. Every SLPS employee will receive a copy of this
handbook; new employees shall be given a copy upon employment. All employees will receive
annual reviews and updates on the SLPS safety program and protocols.

As a condition of employment I acknowledge that I have read, understand, and will adhere to the
safety program and guidelines contained in the St. Louis Public Schools Safety & Risk
Management Handbook.

JULY 2012

Date: Printed Name:
Employee Signature:

Title: Department/School:

Signed copy of this statement will be kept on file in the Human Resources Division.

St. Louis Public Schools Safety & Risk Management Handbook




Safety and Risk Management Policy Statement

The St. Louis Public Schools District (District) is committed to providing and maintaining a safe,
orderly, and healthy workplace for all students, employees, visitors and others present on district
property, or at a school sponsored event. Proactive procedures shall be in place to prevent
accidents, occupational injuries, and illnesses.

Prevention activities to reduce lost work time shall be promoted by the District. The District
shall strive to provide a safe, orderly, and healthy workplace environment along with providing
the appropriate training on safe working procedures, guidelines, and policies. To ensure safety
procedures, guidelines, and policies are followed the District has developed a school district
safety program that is outlined in the St. Louis Public Schools Safety and Risk Management
Handbook.

The St. Louis Public School Board expects the cooperation of all St. Louis Public School staff
for the maintenance of the safe, orderly, and healthy workplace environment.

Adopted: June 24, 2010

St. Louis Public Schools Safety & Risk Management Handbook



Section I
SAFETY & RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

SAFETY & RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE ORGANIZATION
A safety and risk management committee has been established as a management tool to recommend

improvements to our workplace safety program, address safety issues for our students and visitors, and to
identify corrective measures needed to eliminate or control recognized safety and health hazards. The
safety and risk management committee is comprised of representatives from the Special Administrative
Board (Board), Academics, Information Technology, Human Resources, Finance, Food Services, Risk
Management, Operations, Safety and Security, Teachers Union — Local 420, and Cannon Cochran
Management Services, Inc. (CCMSI).

Responsibilities
The safety and risk management committee will be responsible for assisting the Board in:

1. Communicating procedures for evaluating the effectiveness of control measures used to
protect employees, students and visitors from safety and health hazards in the District.

2. Reviewing and updating workplace safety rules based on accident investigation findings, any
inspection findings, and employee reports of unsafe conditions or work practices; and
accepting and addressing suggestions from employees.

3. Updating the workplace safety program by evaluating employee injury and accident records,
identifying trends and patterns, and formulating corrective measures to prevent recurrence.

4. Evaluating employee accident and illness prevention programs, and promoting safety and
health awareness and co-worker participation through continuous improvements to the
workplace safety program. ‘

5. Participate in safety training and be responsible for assisting management in monitoring
workplace safety education and training to ensure that it is in place, that it is effective, and
that it is documented.

Meetings

The District Safety Committee will meet monthly or as needed and the Subcommittees will meet
on an as needed basis.

St. Louis Public Schools Safety & Risk Management Handbook




Section I

SAFETY RULES, POLICIES AND PROCEDURES

The safety rules contained in this section have been prepared to protect you in your daily work.
Employees are to follow these rules, review them often and use good common sense in carrying
out assigned duties. The safety rules in this section are general in nature and apply to all
employees. More specific safety rules may exist for various buildings or departments. Employees
must be aware of all safety rules that apply to their employment.

ALL EMPLOYEES

General

1. Being impaired by, or under the influence of, alcohol or illegal drugs while at work, is
strictly prohibited. If taking prescription drugs, please follow physician recommendations
and notify the administration if medications make you drowsy, etc.

2. Fighting, horseplay, practical jokes or other disorderly conduct is strictly prohibited.

. Threatening, intimidating, or using abusive language to other employees is strictly

prohibited.

4. Whenever employees are driving, or a passenger in a District vehicle/or personally owned

vehicle, during the course and scope of employment, they shall wear seat belts.

5. Employees must immediately report all injuries, no matter how minor, to their supervisor.
Failure to report an injury in a timely manner may jeopardize your Workers’ Compensation
benefits.

Employees shall report any safety hazards/conditions immediately to management.

.No employee shall perform any activity which is higher than they can reach unless they have
received the proper training in the use of ladders, step stools and the like. Furthermore,
employees shall not stand or attempt to stand on chairs, tables, and etc.

W

o

Prevent Slips and Falls

1. Wear appropriate footwear on snow and ice. If necessary, bring a change of shoes for inside
the building. ‘

2. Report slippery surfaces to the administration immediately.

3. Clean up spills immediately. If immediate cleanup is not possible, use traffic cones or other
warning signs to mark spills or slippery surfaces.

4. Do not take short cuts. Only walk on sidewalks that have been cleared of snow and ice.

5. Use handrails on stairways.

6. Use extra caution when carrying objects on ice and snow.

Lifting/Pushing/Pulling Procedures

1. Plan the move before lifting; ensure that you have an unobstructed pathway. '

2. Test the weight of the load before lifting by pushing the load along its resting surface.

3. Maximum weight limit for one person for lifting/pushing/pulling is 50 Ibs. If you need help
with a lesser weight ask for help.

4. Ifthe load is too heavy or bulky get assistance from a co-worker or by submitting a work order
request.

St. Louis Public Schools Safety & Risk Management Handbook



5iPage

How to Lift Safely

1. Position your feet 6 to 12 inches apart with one foot slightly in front of the other.

2. Face the load.

3. Bend at the knees, not at the back.

4. Keep your back straight.

5. Geta firm grip on the object using your hands and fingers. Use handies when they are present.
6. Hold the object as close to your body as possible.

7. While keeping the weight of the load in your legs, stand to an erect position.

8. Perform lifting movements smoothly and gradually; do not jerk the load.

9. If you must change direction while lifting or carrying the load, pivot your feet and turn your

entire body. Do not twist at the waist.

. Set down objects in the same manner as you picked them up, except in reverse.

11. Do not lift an object from the floor to a level above your waist in one motion. Set the load down
on a table or bench and then adjust your grip before lifting it higher.

12. Never lift anything if your hands are greasy or wet.

13. Wear protective gloves when lifting objects that have sharp comers or jagged edges.

Housekeeping

1. Do not place materials such as boxes or trash in walkways and passageways.

2. Mop up water around drinking fountains and drink dispensing machines immediately. Report
larger spills to the custodians immediately.

3. When an immediate clean up is not possible, mark and/or barricade the area with traffic cones or
some other conspicuous marker to alert on comers of the hazard.

4. Do not store or leave items on stairways.

5. Do not block or obstruct stairwells, exits or accesses to safety and emergency equipment such as
fire extinguishers or fire alarms.

6. Straighten or remove rugs and mats that do not lie flat on the floor.

7. Return tools to their storage places after using them.

8. Do not use gasoline for cleaning purposes.

9. Use caution signs or cones to barricade slippery areas such as freshly mopped floors.

Electrical

1. Do not use frayed, cut or cracked electrical cords.

2. Submit work order request or contact maintenance if cords are damaged or outlet cover plates
are missing

3. Do not plug multiple electrical cords into a single outlet.

4. Do not use extension or power cords that have the ground prong removed or broken off.

5. Use a cord cover or tape the cord down when running electrical cords across aisles, between
desks or across entrances or exits.

6. Keep electrical cords and power strips away from sinks and other sources of water.

7. Use appropriate personal protection equipment (safety glasses, gloves, boots, etc.)

8. District policy is to purchase and use UL rated/listed equipment at all times.

9. Do not exceed the rated capacity of any extension cord used. Do not connect two extension
cords together. Do not use extension cords as a substitute for permanent wiring.

Stairs

1. Use the handrails when ascending or descending stairs or ramps.

2. Do not store or leave items on stairways.

St. Louis Public Schools Safety & Risk Management Handbook




6fjPage

3. Do not run on stairs or take more than one step at a time.

4. Report all hazardous conditions found on stairways to the administration.
5. Step well into the step, not on the edge.

6. Avoid distractions while on stairs.

D

1. Reduce speeds. Remember that the posted speed limit is for ideal travel conditions.

2. Allow for extra travel time or consider delaying trips if the weather is inclement.

3. Always use headlights during inclement weather.

4. Make sure windshield wipers, batteries, tires and defrosters are working and in good
condition.

5. Carry blankets, flares and other equipment that would be helpful in an emergency.

6. Maintain a safe distance between you and other vehicles.

7. Be courteous to other drivers. v

8. Keep to the right except to pass, using turn signals to alert other drivers of your intentions.

9. Always buckle seatbelts.

Walk Defensively
1. Slippery sidewalks, parking lots, streets and entryways pose extra dangers.
2. Use crosswalks.

Avoid Overloading

1. Keep your balance.

2. Keep your packages together.
3. Don’t block your vision.

Parking Lot Safety
1. Watch your footing when getting out of your vehicle.
2. It takes a vehicle much longer to stop on ice and snow.

Choose Proper Footwear

1. Wear footwear with maximum traction.
2. Winter boots. :

3. Non-slip soles or overshoes.

St. Louis Public Schools Safety & Risk Management Handbook



7iPage

OFFICE / CLASSROOM SAFETY

General Rules

1. Do not stand on furniture to reach high places.

2. Do not block your view by carrying large or bulky items; use a dolly or hand truck or get
assistance from a fellow employee.

7. Do not throw matches, cigarettes or other smoking materials into trash baskets.

8. Do not tilt the chair you are sitting in. Keep all chair legs on the floor.

9. Do not burn candles in classrooms. Open flames are only allowed in controlled environments
such as science experiments.

Files

1. Open only one file cabinet drawer at a time. Close the filing cabinet drawer you are working in
before opening another filing drawer in the same cabinet.

2. Put heavy files in the bottom drawers of file cabinets.

3. Use the handle when closing drawers and files.

Sharp Objects

1. Store sharp objects, such as pens, pencils, letter openers and scissors in drawers or with the tips
pointing down in a container.

2. Carry pencils, scissors and other sharp objects with the tips pointing down.

Paper Cutter/Shredder :

1. Position hands and fingers on the handle of the paper cutter before pressing down on the blade.
2. Keep the paper cutter handle in the closed or locked position when it is not being used.

3. Do not use paper-cutting devices if the finger guard is missing.

4. Do not place your fingers in or near the feed of a paper shredder.

5. Do not allow students to use paper cutters or shredders.

Staplers

1. Point the ejector slot away from yourself and bystanders when refilling staplers.
2. Keep fingers away from the ejector slot when loading or testing stapling devices.
3. Use a staple remover, not your fingers, for removing staples.

RESEARCH SCIENCE / LAB SAFETY
1. Do not store reagents on the lab bench.

2. Do not eat, drink, or chew gum in a science laboratory or storage area. Do not store food or
beverages in the refrigerator located in the lab.

3. Safety glasses must be worn at all times in the lab area.

4. Wash your hands before and after working in the lab, and after spill cleanups.

5. Wear your lab smock when working in the lab.

6. Never leave gas burners, hot plates, heating mantles, or other heat sources unattended when they
are on.

7. Do not lean into fume hoods when the hood is on and open containers of chemicals have been
placed under the hood.

8. Do not use fume hoods for storage.

9. Obtain and read Material Safety Data Sheets (MSDS) for each chemical you will be using
before beginning any experiment. Read and follow the safety instructions and use the stated
personal protective equipment.

St. Louis Public Schools Safety & Risk Management Handbook




8lPage

10. Ensure chemicals are properly labeled and stored in accordance with MSDS.

11. Never store chemicals in unlabeled containers.

12. Do not mix chemicals in the sink drain.

13. Do not block access to the laboratory eyewash, safety showers, fire extinguisher, or fire alarm
pull station.

14. Wear shoes or boots that cover your feet completely; do not wear open toed shoes or sandals.

15. Do not block escape routes from the lab.

16. Never block fire doors open.

17. Never store materials in lab or storage area aisles.

Hazardous Materials

1. Know the location of MSDS and follow the instructions on the label and in the corresponding
MSDS for each chemical product you will be using in your workplace to include using the
recommended personal protective clothing and storage guidelines.

2. Do not use protective clothing or equipment that has split seams, pinholes, cuts, tears, or other
visible signs of damage.

3. Before using the chemical exhaust hood, flip the fan motor switch to the "On" position.

4. Do not use chemicals from unlabeled containers or unmarked cylinders.

5. Do not perform "hot work", such as welding, metal grinding or other spark producing
operations, within 50 feet of containers labeled "Flammable" or "Combustible".

6. Do not drag containers labeled "Flammable."

7. All chemical containers must be labeled. If any unlabeled containers are found, they must be
removed and turned in to Support Services.

. MAINTENANCE / CUSTODIAL

General Guidelines

1. Any personal protective equipment (PPE) should meet standards set by ANSI (American
National Standards Institute).

2. Hard hats—wear ANSI approved hard hats when working on or near construction projects,
trimming trees, and doing any work that has potential for head injury.

3. Safety glasses and goggles—wear ANSI approved safety glasses/goggles that are appropriate for
protecting the eyes from extremely bright light and ultraviolet radiation (UV rays), flying
objects, and very hot, poisonous, and irritating liquids.

4. Ear plugs or muffs—wear appropriate ear protection to protect ears from excessive noise
exposure.

5. Respirators—wear respirators as required while working in an environment where there is danger
of breathing air contaminated with toxic gases, vapors, fumes and dusts. Employees must be
medically cleared and fit tested prior to wearing a respirator.

6. Safety footwear—wear safety footwear with metal box toe and puncture resistant sole while
doing grounds keeping or maintenance work.

7. Gloves—wear appropriate type of gloves when working with chemicals, solvents, or toxic
substances as well, to protect hands from flying objects and from contact with vibrating
machines.

) Use of Ladders and Step Ladders
1. Never substitute furniture such as tables and chairs for ladders.
‘ 2. Read and follow the manufacturer's instruction label affixed to the ladder. Place the ladder
feet 1/4 of the ladder's working length away from the base of the structure.

St. Louis Public Schools Safety & Risk Management Handbook



gjrage

3.

4.
5.

@

10.

11.
12.
13.

14.

15.
16.

17.
18.
19.

Do not use ladders that have loose rungs, cracked or split side rails, missing rubber footpads,
or are otherwise visibly damaged.

Keep ladder rungs clean and free of grease. Remove buildup of material such as dirt.

Do not place ladders in a passageway or doorway without posting warning signs or cones that
detour pedestrian traffic away from the ladder. Lock the doorway that you are blocking with the
ladder and post signs that will detour traffic away from your work.

Do not place a ladder at a blind corner or doorway without diverting foot traffic by blocking or
roping off the area.

Allow only one person on the ladder at a time.

Face the ladder when climbing up or down it.

Maintain a three-point contact by keeping both hands and one foot or both feet and one hand on
the ladder at all times when climbing up or down the ladder.

When performing work from a ladder, face the ladder and do not lean backward or sideways
from the ladder.

Do not stand on the top two rungs of any ladder.

Do not stand on a ladder that wobbles, or that leans to the left or right of center.

When using a straight or extension ladder, extend the top of the ladder at least 3 feet above the
edge of the landing.

Secure the ladder in place by having another employee hold it if it cannot be tied to the
structure.

Do not move a rolling ladder while someone is on it.

Do not place ladders on barrels, boxes, loose bricks, pails, concrete blocks or other unstable
bases.

Do not carry items in your hands while climbing up or down a ladder.

Do not try to "walk" a ladder by rocking it. Climb down the ladder, and then move it.

Do not use a ladder as a horizontal platform.

Electric Power Tools

1.

0

VoA W

1.

12.

13.
14.

Do not use power equipment or tools you have no experience with until you have been trained
by a qualified operator.

Ground Fault Circuit Interrupter (GFCI) is required to be used while working with power tools.
GFCI should be plugged in directly to the outlet.

Keep power cords away from the path of drills, grinders, and presses.

Do not carry plugged in equipment or tools with your finger on the switch.

Do not carry equipment or tools by the cord.

Disconnect the tool from the outlet by pulling on the plug, not the cord.

Turn the tool off before plugging or unplugging it.

Do not leave power tools “ON” that are unattended.

Do not handle or operate electrical tools when your hands are wet or when you are standing on
wet floors.

. Do not operate spark-inducing tools such as grinders, drills or saws near containers labeled

"Flammable".

Turn off the electrical tool and unplug it from the outlet before attempting repairs or service
work. Tag the tool "Out of Service".

Do not remove the ground prong from electrical cords. Do not use cords with ground prongs
removed.

Do not use an adapter such as a cheater plug that eliminates the ground.

Do not run extension cords through doorways, through holes in ceilings, walls or floors.

St. Louis Public Schools Safety & Risk Management Handbook




Wirage

I5.
16.

i7.
18.

19.

Do not drive over, drag, step on or place objects on a cord.

Do not use a power hand tool to cut wet or water soaked building materials or to repair pipe
leaks.

Never operate electrical equipment barefooted. Wear rubber-soled or insulated work boots.

Do not operate a power hand tool or portable appliance while holding a part of the metal casing
or while holding the extension cord in your hand. Hold all portable power tools by the plastic
handgrips or other nonconductive areas designed for gripping purposes.

Visually inspect all tools before use. Do not use broken or damaged tools.

Machine Guarding / Machine Safety

I.

Replace the guards, before starting machines and after making adjustments or repairs to the
machine.

2. Use lockout tag out procedure when working on equipment.

3. Do not remove, alter or bypass any safety guards or devices when operating any piece of
equipment or machinery.

4. Read and obey safety warnings posted on or near any machinery.

Hand Tool Safety

1. Carry all sharp tools in sheath or holsters.

2. Gloves are required when using box cutters, utility knife, etc.

3. Tag worn, damaged or defective tools "Out of Service" and do not use them.

4. Do not use a tool if the handle surface has splinters, burrs, cracks or splits.

5. When handing a tool to another person, direct sharp points and cutting edges away from
yourself and the other person.

6. Do not carry sharp or pointed hand tools such as probes or knives in your pocket unless the tool
or your pocket is sheathed. -

7. Do not perform "make-shift" repairs to tools.

8. Do not throw tools from one location to another or from one employee to another.

9. Transport hand tools only in toolboxes or tool belts.

Tool Boxes/Chests/Cabinets

e I A ol ol e

Use the handle when opening and closing a drawer or door of a toolbox, chest, or cabinet.
Tape over or file off sharp edges on toolboxes, chests or cabinets.

Do not stand on toolboxes, chests or cabinets to gain extra height.

Lock the wheels on large toolboxes, chests or cabinets to prevent them from rolling.

Push large chests, cabinets and toolboxes; do not pull them.

Do not open more than one drawer of a toolbox at a time.

Close and lock all drawers and doors before moving the tool chest to a new location.

Do not use a toolbox or chest as a workbench.

Do not move a toolbox, chest or cabinet if it has loose tools or parts on the top.

Pallet Jack Use

L.
2.

3.
4.
5

Only employer authorized personnel may operate the pallet jack.

Do not exceed the manufacturer's rated load capacity. Read the lift capacity plate on the pallet
jack if you are unsure.

Do not ride on pallet jacks.

Start and stop the pallet jack gradually to prevent the load from slipping.

. Pull manual pallet jacks; push them when going down an incline or passing close to walls or

obstacles.

St. Louis Public Schools Safety & Risk Management Handbook



i1jPage

6. If your view is obstructed, ask a spotter to assist in guiding the load.
7. Stop the pallet jack if anyone gets in your way.
8. Never place your feet under the pallet jack.

Carts

1. Do not exceed the rated load capacity noted on the manufacturer's label on the cart.
2. Ask a spotter to help guide carts around corners and through narrow aisles.

3. Do not stand on a cart or float or use it as a work platform.

Hand Truck Operations

1. When loading hand trucks, keep your feet clear of the wheels.

2. Do not exceed the manufacturer's rated load capacity. Read the capacity plate on the hand truck
if you are unsure.

3. Place the load so that it will not slip, shift or fall. Use the straps, if they are provided, to secure

the load. '

For extremely bulky or pressurized items, strap or chain the items to the hand truck.

Tip the load slightly forward so that the tongue of the hand truck goes under the load.

Push the tongue of the hand truck all the way under the load that is to be moved.

Keep the center of gravity of the load as low as possible by placing heavier objects below the

lighter objects.

8. Push the load so that the axle and not the handles will carry the weight.

9. Ifyour view is obstructed, ask a spotter to assist in guiding the load.

10. Do not walk backward with the hand truck, unless going up stairs or ramps.

11. When going down an incline, keep the hand truck in front of you so that it can be controlled at
all times.

12. Move hand trucks at a walking pace.

13. Store hand trucks with the tongue under a pallet, shelf, or table.

RS

Compressed Gas Cylinders Storage and Handling

Do not handle oxygen cylinders if your gloves are greasy or oily.

Store all compressed gas cylinders in the upright position.

Keep all cylinders not in use capped and secured with safety chain.

Do not lift compressed gas cylinders by the valve protection cap.

Do not store compressed gas cylinders in areas where they can come in contact with chemicals

labeled "Corrosive".

Place cylinders on the cradle, sling board, pallet or compressed gas cylinder basket to hoist

them.

7. Do not place compressed gas cylinders against electrical panels or live electrical cords where the

cylinder can become part of the circuit.

Do not hoist or transport cylinders by means of magnets or choker slings.

9. Do not store oxygen cylinders near fuel gas cylinders such as propane or acetylene, or near
combustible material such as oil or grease.

Al

IS

Use of Compressed Gas Cylinders

1. Do not use dented, cracked or other visibly damaged cylinders.

2. Use only an open ended or adjustable wrench when connecting or disconnecting regulators and
fittings.

3. Close the cylinder valve when work is finished, when the cylinder is empty or at any time the
cylinder is moved.

St. Louis Public Schools Safety & Risk Management Handbook




12fPzge

4.

g

Do not store oxygen cylinders near fuel gas cylinders such as propane or acetylene, or near
combustible material such as oil or grease.

Stand to the side of the regulator when opening the valve.

If a cylinder is leaking around a valve or a fuse plug, move it to an outside area away from
where work is performed, and tag it to indicate the defect.

Do not use compressed gas to clean yourself, equipment or your work area.

Do not remove the valve wrench from acetylene cylinders while the cylinder is being used.
Open cylinder valves slowly. Open the valve fully when the compressed gas cylinder is being
used, in order to eliminate possible leakage around the cylinder valve stem.

Hazardous Materials

1. Know the location of Material Safety Data Sheet (MSDS) and follow the instructions on the
label and in the corresponding MSDS for each chemical product you will be using in your
workplace to include using the recommended personal protective clothing and storage
guidelines.

2. Do not use protective clothing or equipment that has split seams, pinholes, cuts, tears, or other
visible signs of damage.

3. Before using the chemical exhaust hood, flip the fan motor switch to the "On" position.

4. Do not use chemicals from unlabeled containers or unmarked cylinders.

5. Do not perform "hot work", such as welding, metal grinding or other spark producing
operations, within 50 feet of containers labeled "Flammable" or "Combustible".

6. Do not drag containers labeled "Flammable."

7. All chemical containers must be labeled. If any unlabeled containers are found, they must be
removed and turned in to Support Services.

8. No smoking in district vehicles.

9. Limit cell phone use and use hands free cell phone equipment when available.

References: Harrison School District

Colorado Springs, Co

St. Louis Public Schools Safety & Risk Management Handbook



BfPage
Section IV

EMERGENCY PROCEDURES

Advance planning for emergencies and disasters is necessary to provide for the safety of students
and staff. Therefore, the superintendent shall be responsible for developing all-hazard plans that
meet federal, state and local requirements for preparedness. Details of these plans are contained
in the EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLANS. which is located at the Central Office and in
cach school. These plans deal with all phases of Emergency Management.

In all emergency response situations remain Calm, Alert, Informed and Responsive.

When the school staff remains calm, it can help to prevent an emergency from developing into a
disaster. The following deals with responses (Response phase of Emergency Management) to
various emergency situations:

Bomb Threat (See Sample Form in Appendix A)

1. When a threat is made, report it and record it:

a) If you find a written threat (note, computer screen, etc.), do not touch it. Protect the
evidence. Notify the building leader immediately. Complete the Bomb Threat
Record Form.

b) If you are the recipient of a threatening call:

i.  Keep the caller on line as long as possible and do not hang up. If a student
answers the telephone, have an adult take the call if possible.
ii.  Using the Bomb Threat Record Form, record the time the conversation began
and the caller ID number. -
iii.  Have someone alert the principal’s office.
iv.  Write down everything the caller says.
v.  Make an educated guess as to caller’s sex, age, race, and accent.
vi.  Listen for and make a record of background noises.
vii.  Record the time the call ends.

2. Staff may be directed by messenger to conduct a room search for items that seem out of

place. Divide the room into various search levels. The first sweep covers all objects resting

on the floor or built into the walls, up to your waist. The second step is a scan of the room
from the waist to chin height. The final scan is from the top of the head to ceiling height,
including air ducts, window tops and light fixtures. Do not touch suspicious items. Report
them immediately to the administration.

Discontinue use of cellular telephones and FM radio transmitters.

4. Teachers may be told to evacuate the building in designated buddy room teams. Fire
evacuation procedures will be followed, except that bells will be turned off and evacuation
will be initiated by word-of-mouth.

5. If there is an evacuation, students and staff may be told to “leave as you are” and take no
bags, backpacks, etc. to the Safe Zone. Another option is to have the students and staff takes
their bags, backpacks, etc. with them, which makes a search of the building following
evacuation easier and reduces the liability for property left behind. Under the second option,
the bags and backpacks should be screened before being admitted into the Safe Zone.

bt

St. Louis Public Schools Safety & Risk Management Handbook




8jrPzge

Earthquake

1.

W

=

Drop! Cover! Hold! Earthquakes strike without warning and the immediate need is to
protect students and staff by taking the best available cover.

a) Talk calmly to students to avoid panic.

b) Get beneath a desk, table or bench.

¢) Cover head with a coat, clothing or hands.

d) If no cover is available, crouch against an inside wall and cover head.

e) Stay away from outside walls, windows or expanses of glass.

f) Students and staff outside the building should move away from the building and any

overhead electrical wires.

g) All doors should be left open to minimize jamming if the building shifts.
Stay in the protective position until tremors stop and debris stops falling.
Be prepared to drop, cover, and hold for aftershocks.
Wait for a directive from the building leader to evacuate. However, if the fire alarm sounds,
immediately evacuate to a safe distance from the building. If the primary route is blocked,
the leader will select an alternate route. If electricity is out, the alternate fire alarm will be
sounded. [Some fire evacuation routes will not be suitable for earthquake evacuation, due to
overhead power lines, exposed gas lines, etc.]
If outside, when the earthquake or aftershock occurs:

a) Get clear of all buildings, trees, exposed wires, or other hazards that may fall. The

safest place is in the open.

b) Assume the “drop and cover” position until the quake is over.
Check for injuries among the students and staff.
Await further instructions. Do not return to the building until instructed to do so by the

administrator.

Fire

1.

2.

When a fire is detected (visible flames, visible smoke, or the smell of smoke), sound the fire
alarm using one of the pull stations located in each hallway.

Evacuate building out of your primary evacuation route. If the primary route is blocked,
select an alternate route. Making sure doors and windows are closed and lights are turned
off. Account for students and staff. Teachers, take the class roll and the class copy of
emergency procedures with you.

a) When exiting out the external fire doors, insert a door jam or other device between
the door frame and the door in order that the door does not completely close and lock.
This will allow the students and staff to reenter the building quickly (reverse
evacuation) if the hazard outside the building is greater than the hazard inside the
building.

b) Members of the building emergency response team will remove the door jams and
secure the door if it is confirmed that there is a fire (in order to close off oxygen to the
fire) and when the key for reentry is immediately available.

Stay low and avoid breathing smoke. Smoke can sear the lungs and can impair physical
(vision, etc.) and mental functions.

The building has a designated search and rescue team that is trained in light fire suppression.
If the fire is small and contained, they are the staff members who may decide to use the
appropriate fire extinguisher to engage the fire. All other staff members should only use a
fire extinguisher when it is necessary to assist in the evacuation of the school.
Considerations when making the decision to use a fire extinguisher are:

St. Louis Public Schools Safety & Risk Management Handbook



15fiFaze

a) The evacuation of the building has been initiated and no one is dependent on you to
assist in their evacuation. '
b) The fire department has been called.
¢) The fire is small and confined to the immediate area where it started.
d) The portable fire extinguisher you have available is in good working order and is the
proper type for the fire you are fighting.
e) You are trained to use the extinguisher and can operate it safely.
/) You are supported by another adult who monitors the exit route and carries a back up
fire extinguisher.
5. When in the assembly area outside the building, and a safe distance from the building,
teachers should take roll. If there are any students missing, determine when the student was
last seen and the probable location of the missing student.
6. Await further instructions. Do not return to the building until instructed to do so by the
administrator.

Intruder

1. There should be no unsecured access to the building/school from outside. Signs are posted
directing all visitors to report to the office to be signed in and cleared for visits to other parts
of the building. Visitors who are cleared will be given a badge that has been marked with
today’s date. Strangers in the building not displaying a valid “visitor” badge should be
stopped by any member of the staff and directed to the office for screening and authorization.

2. If the intruder is inside the building and becomes violent or displays a weapon, staff may be
notified to “lockdown” or evacuate the building.

a) The “lockdown” announcement will be made over the intercom system. Fora
‘lockdown,” close and secure doors. Everyone in the room should sit on the floor
against the wall on the side of the room where the entrance is. If the door has a
window, cover it. No talking. If someone knocks on the door, do not respond. There
should be no readmission, if caught outside during a “lockdown.” They are to report
to one of the designated offices. Schools should have turned off the bell system.
Students and staff shall disregard any bells, if they do ring.

b) If the “lockdown” is initiated during a passing period for schools, get all students in
your vicinity inside your room and secure the door. Prepare a roster of the students in
your room. If possible, transmit the roster to the office over the intranet.

3. Be prepared, when directed by law enforcement or the building leader, to evacuate the
building. Teachers, take the class roll and the class copy of emergency procedures with you.
Law enforcement officials may not have the intruder isolated at the time of the evacuation.
Under those circumstances, law enforcement officials will be concerned that the intruder(s)
might mix in with the evacuating students/staff in order to escape or cause further damage.
Evacuating students/staff should be prepared to put their hands on their heads when directed
by the police and until they have been checked by law enforcement officials.

4. When in the assembly area outside the building, and a safe distance from the building,
teachers take roll. '

5. Await further instructions. Do not return to the building until instructed to do so by the
administrator or law enforcement officials.

6. If teachers are with students outside the building or if staff is outside when a violent intruder
comes on campus, notify the administration to initiate the lockdown while you and your
students drop to the ground in their present location. If the threat is directed toward you or
your students, stay low and move quickly to the best shelter (the school building or other
nearby structure).

St. Louis Public Schools Safety & Risk Management Handbook



BlrPage

‘ Tornado/Storm

When a Tornado Watch (conditions are right for a tornado) is issued for our area, teachers will
be notified about the watch and they will not take their classes outside the building until the
watch is ended. During a Watch, monitor the NOAA radio as well as the primary radio outlet
(KMOX-1120 AM/KTRS-550 AM) and/or television outlet (KSDK-TV Channel 5/KTVI-TV
Channel 2/ KMOV-TV Channel 4).

If a Tornado Warning (a tornado has been spotted in our vicinity) is issued, the alarm (siren) will
be sounded and these steps are to be followed:

1. When the alarm (siren) is sounded, move to the designated shelter. Each student and staff
member should carry with them a hard covered book/notebook for use in covering the head
in the shelter area. If the primary route is blocked, select an alternate route. Teachers should
take the class roll and the emergency procedures with them.

2. When in the shelter, assume the protective squatting position, against the wall, holding a hard
covered book/notebook over the head or with hands locked at the back of the neck.

3. After the storm passes, check the roll and check shelter occupants for injuries. Report on
student accountability.

4. Await further instructions. Be prepared to evacuate the building. If evacuated, do not return
to the building until instructed to do so by the administrator.

.

St. Louis Public Schools Safety & Risk Management Handbook



17jrPage
Section V

SCHOOL VIOLENCE AND RESTRICTIVE BEHAVIOR INTERVENTION POLICY

PURPOSE
Through the adoption of this policy, the Special Administrative Board expects to:

1. Promote safety and prevent harm to students, school personnel and visitors in the
School District.

2. Foster a climate of dignity and respect in the use of discipline and behavior-
management techniques

3. Provide school personnel with clear guidelines about the use of seclusion, isolation,
and restraint in response to emergency situations.

4. Promote the use of non-aversive, behavioral interventions.

The SLPS District has the authority ' to manage student conduct by promoting good order and
implementing disciplinary practices in a manner which is consistent with state law. School
officials are authorized to hold students accountable for misconduct in school, on school
property, during school-sponsored activities and for conduct away from school or in nonschool
activities which affect school discipline.

Students may forfeit their right to a public school education by engaging in conduct prohibited in
the SLPS Student Code of Conduct Handbook and related provisions. Disciplinary consequences
include, but are not limited to, withdrawal of school privileges (athletics, intramurals, student
clubs and activities and school social events); the assignment of the student to another school;
removal for up to ten (10) school days by school principals; extension of suspensions for a total
of 180 days by the Superintendent/Designee; and longer term suspension and /or expulsion from
school by the Board of Education.

DEFINITIONS

Aversive Behavioral Interventions: An intervention that is intended to inflict pain or
discomfort upon a student for the purpose of eliminating or reducing dangerous behaviors.

Chemical Restraint: The administration of a drug or medication to manage a student’s behavior
that is NOT a standard treatment and dosage for the student’s medical condition.

! School officials possess comprehensive authority to prescribe and control conduct of students in the public
schools. Tinker v. Des Moines Indep. Cmty. Sch. Dist. 393 U.S. 503, 507 (1969). In Missouri, the school board is
statutorily authorized to make all rules necessary for the organization, grading, and government of the school
district. §171.011, RSMo 2000. Disruptive conduct on school premises can be prohibited by school officials to
provide an environment conducive for learning. Streeter v. Hundley, 580 S.W.2d 282, 286 (Mo. Banc 1979).

St. Louis Public Schools Safety & Risk Management Handbook




i8lPage

Corporal Punishment: As relates to this policy, Corporal Punishment is the use of or threat of
physical force for the purposes of discipline or punishment. Furthermore, the use of physical
restraint by trained staff shall not be considered as Corporal Punishment.

Isolation: The confinement of a student alone in an enclosed space without locking hardware.
Isolation does not include supervised in-school suspension, detention or time-out used as a
disciplinary consequence in accordance to the District’s student discipline code.

Mechanical Restraint: The use of any device or material attached to or adjacent to a student’s
body that restricts normal freedom and movement and which cannot be easily removed by a
student. Mechanical restraint does NOT include: (1) an adaptive or protective device
recommended by a physician or therapist (when it is used as recommended); (2) safety
equipment used by the general student population as intended (e.g. seat belts, safety harnesses on
student transportation).

Physical Escort: The temporary touching or holding of the hand, wrist, arm, shoulder or back
for the purpose of inducing a student who is acting out or eloping to walk to a safe location.

Physical Restraint: The use of person to person physical contact to restrict the free movement
of all or a portion of a student’s body. It does not include briefly holding a student without
undue force for instructional or other purposes, briefly holding a student to calm the student,
taking a student’s hand to transport him or her for safety purposes, physical escort, or intervening
in a fight.

Seclusion: The confinement of a student alone in an enclosed space from which the student is
physically prevented from leaving by locking hardware.

Time-Out: Brief removal from sources of positive reinforcement that does not meet the
definition of seclusion or isolation. The purpose of time-out is to separate the student from the
attention of staff or other students.

A. SLPS BOARD OF EDUCATION POLICY — CORPORAL PUNISHMENT

SLPS District employees and volunteers are prohibited from administering corporal punishment
to students attending the SLPS schools, and from causing such punishment to be administered.

B. SLPS BOARD OF EDUCATION POLICY — PHYSICAL RESTRAINT

Physical restraint will be used only when other means of preventing or stopping a breach of
discipline have proved ineffective. Trained staff may use justifiable physical restraint on a
student only when it is deemed reasonably necessary to’:

% Restraint is defined as an act, which may be forceful in nature, of holding back, limiting or controlling someone or

something.

St. Louis Public Schools Safety & Risk Management Handbook



1I9fPage

1. Prevent the student from hurting himself/herself.
2. Protect others.
3. Protect the staff’s well-being.

Physical Restraint will:

1. Only be used for as long as necessary to resolve the actual risk of danger or harm that
warranted the use of physical restraint.

2. Be no greater than the degree of force necessary.

3. Not place pressure or weight on the chest, lungs, sternum, diaphragm, back neck or throat
that restricts breathing or circulation.
Not hyperextend any body part, put or keep the student off balance.

5. Be conducted with at least one other additional adult present and in line of sight, unless
other school personnel are not immediately available due to the unforeseeable nature of
the emergency situation. '

Physical restraint which is administered in accordance with this section shall not be deemed
corporal punishment as defined in Section A. above.

In the above cases physical restraint is justified when it is an alternative to a greater harm. When
necessary, it should be applied without anger and as a restraint rather than as retaliation.

Trained staff members are permitted to use only the minimum amount of restraint reasonably
necessary to accomplish the preventive measures required.

C. USE OF SECLUSION AND ISOLATION

Seclusion: The St. Louis Public Schools does not practice seclusion as defined in this policy to
modify student behavior.

Isolation: Isolation shall only be used:
1. In an emergency situation in which a student’s behavior poses a serious, probable threat
of imminent physical harm to self or others, or
2. When less restrictive measures have not de-escalated the situation.

Isolation shall never be used as a form of punishment or for the convenience of District
personnel.

A student in isolation must be monitored by District personnel who are in close proximity and
able to see and hear the student at all times. The total time in isolation is to be reasonable,
calculated based on the age of the student and the circumstances and is not to exceed 10 minutes
without a reassessment of the situation and consultation with administrative staff, unless
otherwise specified in the IEP, Section 504 plan or other plan to address a student’s behavior.

St. Louis Public Schools Safety & Risk Management Handbook




20fraz

0

The space in which the student is isolated should be a reasonably sized meeting room commonly
found in the school setting with lighting, ventilation, heating, cooling and ceiling height and that
is free of objects that could cause harm to the student.

D. MECHANICAL RESTRAINT

The St. Louis Public School District does not practice the use of mechanical restraints as defined
in this policy to modify student behavior.

The use of vehicle safety restraints shall be used according to state and federal regulations.

Mechanical restraints employed by law enforcement officers in school settings should be used in
accordance with appropriate professional standards and applicable policies.

E. CHEMICAL RESTRAINT

The St. Louis Public School District does not practice the use of chemical restraints as defined in
this policy to modify student behavior.

F. USE OF TIME-OUT

Nothing in this policy is intended to prohibit the use of time-out as defined in this policy.

G. REPORTING/DEBRIEFING

If a staff member uses isolation or physical restraint on a student, the following must be done:
1. Report the incident to the Building Administrator immediately.

2. Prepare a written comprehensive report detailing the reason for using physical restraint,
the type and manner of physical restraint, the amount of force used in the physical
restraint.

3. The comprehensive report must be prepared within 24 hours.

4. The comprehensive report shall be forwarded to Building Administrator, Office of the
Superintendent, Director of School Safety and Security.

5. The Building Administrator shall follow all regular District reporting procedures for
external agencies as required by District Policies.

6. The Building Administrator shall conduct a debriefing for any incident that results in an
injury.
H. TRAINING

The District will provide annual training to all staff concerning the District’s use of seclusion,
isolation and restraint. Annual training will also include, but will not be limited to, approved

St. Louis Public Schools Safety & Risk Management Handbook



21 rage

methods of dealing with school violence, discipline of students with disabilities, and the
requirements of student confidentiality.

In addition to the training to District staff, those who utilize isolation or restraint will also receive
annual training in:

1. The appropriate use of physical restraint.
2. Professionally accepted practices in the use of restraint and isolation.

3. The appropriate use of isolation.

Adopted: January 22, 1991

Revised: December 7, 1999
Revised: July 29, 2010
Revised: = June 26, 2012

AWARENESS AND AVOIDANCE

Before we have to manage a conflict or intervene in a physical altercation, we should develop an
awareness and avoid sudden situations. According to the Masters Institute of Self-Defense
Studies’, awareness makes up 90% of self-defense. The Institute recommends the same risk
assessment levels that have been utilized by the Department of Homeland Security in the past.
This can be applied to everyday life for the purpose of individual risk assessment. The levels
are:

Threat Level Green
1. Feeling of security. Whether one is safe or not

2. Not aware of surroundings

3. Relaxed carefree state

4. Attackers feel most secure to attack when one is in this state

5. The assumption that everything is good and no threat can get to you
Threat Level Blue

1. A calm state of awareness.

2. Scanning environment for things that look out of the ordinary and going about normal
business and routines ’

3. Using common sense to be aware and avoid potential areas of high risk

> Masters Institute of Self-Defense Studies
© 2008 misds.com all right reserved

St. Louis Public Schools Safety & Risk Management Handbook




Threat Level Yellow

e AN A T e

Proactive approach to awareness and avoidance

Internal or external alarm is scanning for threat and danger

Changing normal habits

Mentally rehearsing plans for aggression, cover and retreat

Working awareness and avoidance drills with co-workers, family and friends
Knowing that danger exist but it has not presented itself

Considering all weapons of opportunity that exist

Preparing for a threat that exists in society

Threat Level Orange

1.

DA

Internal and or external alarm sees, hears and/or feels the presence of threat
Taking action to avoid threat while maintaining the highest level of awareness
Making any and all time allowable adjustments to prepare for danger
Securing family and self

Mental activation of plan of action

Threat Level Red

1.

wRwDN

You are in conflict with threat and/or danger

Decision has been made to take action

You are fighting, fleeing and or covering to sustain life

No indecisive moments mind is clear on what course of action to take

Taking any and all appropriate actions to sustain life and health of self or loved ones

SAFETY TIPS®

Preventing Auto-Related Crime

L.
2.

o v AW

Always lock your vehicle, even if you are only leaving for a few minutes

When walking to your vehicle, always have your keys in hand so you won’t have to fumble
for them, making yourself an easy target for criminals

NEVER leave a running vehicle unattended

Completely close all your windows when you park the car

Consider installing an alarm

Don’t leave valuables in your car. If you do, make sure they are kept out of plain sight—hide
them under a blanket, or better yet, lock them in your trunk

When transporting valuables, place them in the trunk before you get to the location where
you intend to park. Don’t transfer them at the parking place in open view of other people
Always keep plenty of gas.in your vehicle so you do not have to stop at unsafe locations or
times

If you are being followed while driving your car, drive to the nearest police station or gas
station. If there are no safe places to stop, honk your horn in short rapid blasts and turn on
your emergency flashers. Call 911 and try to obtain a license plate number and description of
the vehicle that is following you. NEVER drive home or pull to the side of the road

10. When leaving your vehicle, always remove detachable faces for stereos and GPS units

® St. Louis Metropolitan Police Department
St. Louis Public Schools Safety & Risk Management Handbook



23jPzge

Personal Safety Tips
1. Trust Your Intuition. If you feel threatened or something doesn't feel right, take action
immediately

Pay close attention to your surroundings

Carry as few items as possible

Have a plan before you see trouble

Carry a small amount of cash, and only the credit cards that you intend to use
If carrying a wallet, carry it in a front pocket

Leave your expensive jewelry at home

Don’t wear clothing or shoes that restrict your movement

© NS kW

DEALING WITH HOSTILE INDIVIDUALS

Managing Conflicts’
1. Match Response to Gravity of Situation, the Level of Violence
a) A threat without means to carry through

b) A violent physical confrontation without weapons
c) A person with a weapon
2. Maintain Perspective on Your Role
a) You are no longer an authority-you are a hostage
b) Maintain your role as a teacher/educator-not as long-term counselor or police
officer
c) Do not assume subject will do as he or she is told

3. Avoid Power Words and Positional Bargaining
a) Don’t say: “Because I'm the teacher and I said so”
b) “... Orelse”
c) “... You will be sent to the principal”
d) Keep ego-yours and the subject’s-out of it
Treat participants with verbal respect
Don’t name call or belittle
Be Sensitive to Substance Abuse
a) Alcohol ...Illegal drugs... Prescription drugs
7. Separate the People from the Problem:
a) Address the behavior, not the person’s character.
b) Deal with problem at hand--not the person.

9 (13

¢) Respect the individual’s “space.”

d) Be sensitive to culture, gender and other factors.
8. Offer Alternatives:

a) Give him/her a way out - a way to save face.
b) Say, “You haven’t done anything so bad, how about....”
¢) What do you think about ...... ?

AN

7 Staridard Tips on Managing Conflicts and Violence Based on New York State Police “Safe Schools Program” (St. Louis Public Schools
Violence and Emergency/Safety Procedures)

St. Louis Public Schools Safety & Risk Management Handbook



28 Paze

d) Don’t make demands- what do you do if they say no.
e) Allow them to leave.
f) Suggest. Don’t issue orders.

9. Listening is the Key!
a) Use good active reflective listening skills.
b) Keep listening. Make him/her believe you are listening.
c) Be a passive listener.

10. Control your Voice and Body Language:

a) Even if you are scared, speak slowly and calmly.

11. Allow Subject to Vent:

a) Don’t physically intervene.
b) Allow the person to punch walls, throw chairs, etc.

12. Maintain your Distance

13. Use Open Ended Questions: What, Where or How?

a) E.g.: “Where have you been that got you so upset?”

14. Don’t ask, “Why?” This will antagonize.

15. Say: “I hear.”

16. “You sound angry/concerned/worried/upset.”

17. Do Not Empathize. Don’t say “I understand.”

18. Don’t Tell the Person to Relax or Calm Down.

a) He/she can’t. You have to help.

19. Don’t Lie or Conspire.

20. Emphasize That You, and Others, are Human.

21. This makes it more difficult for the person to subject you to violence.

22. If Possible, Get the Subject to Say He Won’t Hurt You.

a) This forces the subject to make a more difficult decision before he/she takes any type
of action.

23. Aveid Closure.

Supportive Stance

1. You should avoid approaching a volatile subject from behind; in general, an arcing 45-degree
angle of approach is the least threatening. (Therapeutics For Aggressions:
Psychological/Physical Intervention By Michael Thackrey, Ph.D., 1987, p. 50)

2. The “Non-threatening Protected Posture” is adopted when you want to avoid making the
subject feel threatened and anticipates that he/she might attempt to punch, kick, or strike you
with a held or a thrown object. (Thackrey, p. 90)

3. Strength, balance and mobility require that you keep the knees slightly bent rather than
locked straight, that the weight be distributed mainly over the balls of the feet rather than
over the heels and that the feet remain about one shoulder’s width apart. Standing sideways
toward the subject utilizes the strongest dimension of the stance; standing sideways also
permits you to lean sideways (away from the subject) faster and farther. (Thackrey, p. 79). . .

4. The supportive stance communicates respect and is less challenging and safer. (National
Crisis Prevention Institute)

FIGHT INTERVENTION

Fights are the most common violence-related civil disturbance in schools, and must be dealt with
quickly and effectively.

St. Louis Public Schools Safety & Risk Management Handbook



25fPage

1. Verbally intervene using a calm but firm voice. Use the students’ names. (“John and
Joseph stop fighting and back up.”)

2. Disperse the on-lookers. Send for help.

3. Send for Help. If the combatants do not follow your directions and continue to fight, send a
responsible on-looker for other members of the security team. Direct the other students to
move out of the area.

a) Assess the situation while continuing to calmly talk to the fighting students and while
moving any dangerous objects out of their way (items that they could bump their
heads on or which could be used as a weapon).

b) If this is a situation in which one student is on the attack and the other student seems
to be acting in self-defense, focus your remarks on the attacking student. If the
attacking student lets up, direct the defending student to go to the office by himself
and keep the attacking student with you.

c¢) Physical intervention, as required, by a trained team while following the District
Intervention Guidelines.

4. Physical Intervention as Necessary (Follow the District’s School Violence Intervention
Policy) When other members of the team arrive, report to them with the names of the
students and how they have responded to your directions. The team leader will take over. The
team continues to give verbal direction to the combatants.

a) Additional team members may arrive. It takes a minimum of four adults, and
desirably six adults (three per combatant), to safely separate two fighting students and
physically restrain them until they regain self-control or until law enforcement
arrives. :

b) The restraint team must be well trained in approved procedures for safeguarding the
students and the staff members. They should not wear glasses, wrist watches, rings or
other jewelry while engaging a restraint.

¢) Members of the team with long hair should have their hair tied back. The team must
know where they will take the restrained combatants while awaiting law enforcement.

d) These separate holding areas should be private rooms free of any objects which could
be used as weapons. Members of the mental health team are capable of conducting a
post-trauma debriefing with the combatants. Members of the first aid team know how
to provide any necessary medical assistance for combatants or team members

5. Safeguard against blood-borne pathogens.

6. Move traumatized participants to privacy in order to regain self-control and dignity.

7. Initiate due process.

OTHER INTERVENTIONS

CLASSROOM

Classroom dangers include persons with weapons, fights, disruptive students, and assaults
against staff. The school staff should consider the safety of all persons in the classroom when
responding to an incident. Rushing into a situation may cause it to exacerbate and cause further
disruption.

Response

1. Isolate the person and/or situation-remove bystander and seal off the area.
2. Make deliberate movements, especially if someone has a weapon.

3. Call for assistance and let the site administrator know what is happening.
4. Summon medical assistance if necessary.

St. Louis Public Schools Safety & Risk Management Handbook




26jPage

. 5. Keep an escape route open.
6. Try to return the situation to "normal” so learning can resume.

CAFETERIA

Response

1. Assess the situation before rushing in.

2. Use your best verbal intervention skills.

3. Walk; don't run into the area to lessen the effect on the crowd. The actions of the school staff

can create a sense of "mass hysteria" if the incident is not approached properly.

St. Louis Public Schools Safety & Risk Management Handbook



Section VI
INJURY PREVENTION/TREATMENT

The District’s Workers” Compensation Procedures are to be followed any time an employee has
an injury or accident on the job.

INJURY TREATMENT

The Health Services Office at each school site has a first aid kit; if you sustain an injury or

become involved in an accident while on the job site requiring minor first aid treatment seek

assistance from the school nurse. If the school nurse is not available follow these steps:

1. Inform your supervisor of the injury

2. Administer first aid treatment to the injury or wound

3. Complete a SLPS Employee/Supervisor Injury Report Form and take it with you to one of
the authorized medical provider

4. Seek medical attention per the SLPS Workers” Compensation Procedures

EMERGENCY MEDICAL TREATMENT

If you sustain a severe injury or become involved in an accident while on the job requiring
emergency treatment call for help and seek assistance from a co-worker. If the school nurse is in
the building she is to be summoned for provision of emergency health care. If an assessment is
made for you to be transported to receive immediate medical assistance 911 will be called. Your
supervisor will complete the SLPS Employee/Supervisor Injury Report Form and submit to
Human Resources.

HYPERTHERMIA (HEAT EXHAUSTION)

Heat exhaustion is the body’s response to an excessive loss of the water and salt contained in
sweat. Warning signs of heat exhaustion include:

Heavy sweating

Paleness

Muscle cramps

Tiredness and weakness

Dizziness or fainting

Headache

. Nausea or vomiting

When these signs are present do the following:

1. Restin a cool, preferably air-conditioned, area

2. Loosen clothing

3. Drink plenty of cool water or non-alcoholic and caffeine free beverages
4. Seek medical attention if symptoms worsen or last longer than an hour

No LA W~

HYPOTHERMIA (SEVERE FROSTBITE)

Hypothermia is an abnormally low body temperature caused by the general cooling of the body
and can quickly become life threatening. Warning signs of severe frostbite include:

1. Uncontrollable shivering

2. Numbness

St. Louis Public Schools Safety & Risk Management Handbook




“

28 P age

3. Glassy stare

4. Apathy

5. Weakness

6. Impaired judgment

7. Drowsiness

8. Slow or slurred speech

9. Exhaustion

10. Loss of consciousness

When these signs are present do the following:
Call 911 for immediate medical assistance
Move to a warm place

Remove wet clothing

Dry off, if necessary

Warm the body core first, then the extremities

AN

St. Louis Public Schools

Safety & Risk Management Handbook



29fPage

Section VII

WORK RELATED INJURY/ACCIDENT INVESTIGATION

INTRODUCTION

St. Louis Public Schools self-insures its workers’ compensation exposure for employees injured on the
job. In order to handle this exposure, the District requires the following:

1. Prompt and proper notification of the accident/injury

2. Investigation of the accident/injury

3. Provision of approved medical care

4. Determination of the availability of modified or light duty job opportunity

5. Elimination and reduction of losses by enforcement of the district safety programs

The St. Louis Public Schools District has contracted with a third party administrator (TPA) to provide
claims and loss control services to the District. The District requires the full and complete cooperation of
every employee and administrator in reporting, handling and investigating claims. Uniform claims
handling procedures have been established and are to be followed by all employees.

CLAIMS REPORTING

1. Time Requirements
All claim forms should be completed and forwarded immediately, or within 24 hours of the first
knowledge of an occurrence of a work-related accident/injury. Failure of the District_to file within the
state statutory limit of ten (10) days could result in a penalty being assessed, including termination
of the District’s self-insured status. All employees should be made aware of the procedures for
reporting a work-related accident/injury.

In the event of a serious injury such as death, amputation, head injury, etc., call the Human Resource
office immediately and follow up with the necessary forms later.

Send medical bills, suits, petitions, notices, etc. to:
Workers’ Compensation Unit Director
St. Louis Public Schools
Human Resource Division
801 N. 11" Street
St. Louis, MO 63101
Phone: (314) 345-2251 ~ Fax: (314) 244-1808
E-mail: work.comp@slps.org

2. Where to Report
All claims, suits, injuries or losses are to be reported to the Human Resources Division to the
attention of:
Workers’ Compensation Unit Director
St. Louis Public Schools
Human Resource Division
801 N. 11" Street
St. Louis, MO 63101
Phone: (314) 345-2251 ~ Fax: (314) 244-1808
E-mail: work.comp@slps.org
3. Form to Use (See Sample Form in Appendix B)
WC1-2 Form - Employee/Supervisor Injury Report and Medical Treatment Authorization Form
This is a District form that has been revised to include both the reporting of the accident/injury and
the authorization for initial medical treatment. This form can be found on the SLPS website under .
“Employees”, “St. Louis Public Schools Safety”, “Workers” Compensation”, “WC1-2, St.
Louis Public Schools Employee/Supervisor Injury Report.” It should be completed by the

St. Louis Public Schools Safety & Risk Management Handbook



N

employee and signed by the supervisor on the day the accident/injury occurs and within 24 hours of
notification of the occurrence. The supervisor must sign the form even if he/she did not witness the
injury. The supervisor executed form must be faxed immediately to:

Workers” Compensation Unit Director
Human Resource Division
Fax: (314) 244-1808

The employee shall take the original copy of the completed form to the authorized medical provider,
either Concentra Medical Center or SSM Work Health.

Concentra Midtown and Concentra Westport are open until 8:00 p.m. daily to provide medical
attention to injured employees after hours. Concentra Westport is also open on Saturdays from
8:00 a.m. — 1:00 p.m. to provide medical services. A list of the approved provider, their locations
and office hours is attached.

a) All requested information must be provided and the form must be signed by the site or
location administrator.

b) Make copies of the form and retain one copy for your Workers’ Compensation file, in a
secured file drawer or secured file on your computer.

CLAIMS MANAGEMENT

1.

Introduction

Reporting of claims is only the first part of the procedures required to properly handle claims. The
District’s procedures are not complete without a section on claims management. Although the TPA
will ultimately administer and pay the claim, there are other requirements to assure proper
management of claims.

It is the policy of the District to pay only those claims for which we are legally obligated, as promptly
as possible, after adequate investigation. In order to accomplish this, the following procedures have
been established to address the three areas of claims management.

a) PRE-OCCURRENCE:

Pre-occurrence handling procedures refer to those actions that can be taken before an injury
occurs in order to be prepared to handle the claim. Such actions include informing all employees
to report all injuries, no matter how minor as well as establishing procedures to investigate and
process all reports of accidents/injuries.

b) OCCURRENCE:

Occurrence handling procedures deal with those actions that must be taken once an
accident/injury occurs in order to obtain necessary facts and data, avoid additional liability or
damage, and ensure that the claimant receives proper treatment.

¢) POST-OCCURRENCE:

Post-occurrence handling procedures address such matters that must be done after the claim has
been reported in order to maintain contact with the TPA, continue the flow of the new or
additional information, control costs, as well as obtain updated information concerning the status
of the claims.

St. Louis Public Schools Safety & Risk Management Handbook



2. Management of Claims

a) PRE-OCCURRENCE
Files should be maintained on every employee to include:
i. Prior workers’ compensation claims
ii. Violations of safety rules
iii. Attendance information

b) Selection of a local medical facility for proper treatment and diagnosis has already been
determined by the district. If an employee refuses to go to a pre-selected facility, then the
employee may go to the physician of his/her choice but at his/her own expense.

¢) During staff meetings, all employees should be informed about all safety issues, however
minor, and report all incidents immediately.

d) OCCURRENCE
I Medical Treatment
i.  First aid on site
ii.  Refer to the medical facilities selected by the district.
IL Reporting of the Claim
i.  Form WC1-2 needs to be completed by the employee and supervisor and forwarded
to the Human Resources Division within 24 hours.
ii.  Collect statements for all witnesses.
iii.  Inspect the injury site and document any unsafe conditions.
iv.  Check any onsite cameras which may have recorded the injury.
v.  Call Human Resources immediately for claims involving serious injuries.
vi.  Call Human Resources if there are any questions regarding compensability or other
related questions.

II. Never accuse an employee of malingering or faking.
Iv. Notify the family and Human Resources of injuries of an emergency nature.
V. Preserve evidence.

e) POST-OCCURRENCE
L Discuss and document with the employee:
i.  Present condition or progress
it.  Return to work date
iii.  Work restrictions
iv.  Complaints on treatment

1L Communication with Human Resources Division
i.  All of the above information
ii.  Return-to-work notification
iii.  Any additional claim investigation facts
iv.  Any suspicions or concerns

111 Cooperation with the TPA
i.  Verification or clarification of any submitted information
ii.  Any additional claim investigation facts
iii.  Any suspicions or concerns
iv.  Implementation of recommended safety procedures

St. Louis Public Schools Safety & Risk Management Handbook



327

fat]

Current TPA — St. Louis Office

Location:

Account Manager:

Claims Supervisor:

Lost Time Claims:

St. Louis Public Schools

CCMSI, Inc.

133 S. 11" Street

Suite 430

St. Louis, MO 63102
Phone: (314) 231-4094
Fax: (314)231-7041

Mr. Tom Dressler
Phone: (314) 418-5515
E-mail: tdressler(@ccmsi.com

Mr. Chuck St. John
Phone: (314) 418-5511
E-mail: cstjohn@ccmsi.com

Ms. Diane Lewis
Phone: (314) 418-5537
E-mail: dlewis@ccmsi.com

Ms. Jenna Poeptker
Phone: (314) 418-5514
E-mail: jpoeptker@ccmsi.com

Safety & Risk Management Handbook



33|Page

MEDICAL CENTER LOCATION INFORMATION

WORKERS’ COMPENSATION AUTHORIZED MEDICAL FACILITIES

SSM WORK HEALTH CONCENTRA
SSM Work Health Concentra Midtown
2321 B McCausland Ave. 6726 Manchester

St. Louis, MO.63143
(314)645-WORK (9675)

Fax :(314)645-1559

Hours: M-F, 8 a.m. — 5:00 p.m.

St. Louis, MO. 63139
(314) 647-0081
Fax : (314) 647-5485
Hours: M-F, 8 a.m.-8 p.m.

SSM Work Health

#1 Village Center, Suite A
Hazelwood, MO 63042
(314) 731-WORK (9675)
Fax: (314) 731-2522
Hours: M-F, 8 a.m. — 5 p.m.

Concentra Westport

83 Progress Parkway
Maryland Heights, MO. 63043
(314) 434-8174

Fax: (314) 434-8706

Hours: M-F, 8 a.m.-8 p.m.

SSM Work Health

300 St. Peters Centre Blvd., Suite 150
St. Peters, MO 63376

(636) 928-WORK (9675)

Fax: (636) 928-9011

Hours: M-F, 8 a.m. -5 p.m.

Concentra North Broadway
8340 North Broadway St.

St. Louis, MO 63147

(314) 385-9563

Fax: (314) 385-9350

Hours: M-F, 8§ a.m. — 5 p.m.

Concentra Soulard

1617 South Third Street

St. Louis, MO 63147
(314) 421-2557

Fax: (314) 421-2046
Hours: M-F, 8 a.m. — 5 p.m.

Concentra Fenton

1709 Gilsinn Lane

Fenton, MO 63026

(636) 349-6850

Fax: (636) 349-6641
Hours: M-F, 8 am. — 5 p.m.

Diane Lewis
CCMSI Work Comp Rep
314-418-5537

Concentra Airport

463 Lynn Haven Lane
Hazelwood, MO. 63042

(314) 731-0448

Fax: (314) 731-0495

Hours: M-F, 7:30 am. — 5 p.m.

24 HOURS EMERGENCY SERVICE

{ONLY if an Emergency)

St. Mary’s Hospital
6420 Clayton Road
St. Louis, MO 63117
(314) 768-8360

St. Louis University Hospital
3635 Vista at Grand

St. Louis, MO 63110

(314) 577-8777

St. Louis Public Schools

Safety & Risk Management Handbook




Mqirage
Section VIII
OTHER INJURY/ACCIDENT INVESTIGATION

ACCIDENTAL BODILY INJURY REPORTS

All accidental bodily injuries to a party other than an employee must be reported to the Safety
and Security Department and the Risk Management Department for handling. The Building
Administrator is responsible for ensuring that the report is completed. The notice must be in
writing and must provide sufficient information to identify the location of the injury, the time,
the place and circumstances of the accident, and the names and addresses of the injured persons
and witnesses, if any.

The Safety and Security Incident Report Form (See Sample Form in Appendix C) is the form to
be used to report all injuries other than injuries to employees. The report should be completed
as soon as possible after the injury and must be the Safety and Security Office within 24 hours.

The Safety and Security Incident Report Form can be found on the SLPS website under

“Employees”, “St. Louis Public Schools Safety”, “Reporting Forms”, “Safety and Security
Incident Report Form”.

INTENTIONAL INJURY AND PROPRTY DAMAGE REPORTS

All incidents should be reported to the Safety and Security Department for handling.

The Safety and Security Incident Report Form (See Sample Form in Appendix C) is the form to
be used to report all incidents that do not involve accidental injury to a person.

The Safety and Security Incident Report Form can be found on the SLPS website under

“Employees”, “St. Louis Public Schools Safety”, “Reporting Forms”, “Safety and Security
Incident Report Form”.

St. Louis Public Schools Safety & Risk Management Handbook



3zjPage
Section IX

VEHICLE SAFETY

According to estimates provided by the National Highway Traffic Safety Association (NHTSA),
an estimated 40,000 men, women and children die each year in vehicle crashes. Additionally,
another three million are injured. Vehicle crashes represent the number one cause of death on
the job. This section of the Safety & Risk Management Handbook has been prepared for the
guidance of all employees of St. Louis Public Schools. Our primary concern is for your safety
and the safety of other road users.

POLICY STATEMENT

The Vehicle Safety Policy set forth herein, establishes guidelines and procedures to be followed
to protect the safety of individuals operating any motor vehicle on School District business.
Protecting our employee drivers, their passengers, and the general public is of the highest priority
to St. Louis Public Schools.

The commitment of management and employees is critical to the success of this program. Clear
communication of and strict adherence to the program’s guidelines and procedures are essential.

PROGRAM GOALS

The primary goal of the Vehicle Safety Program is to maintain a high level of safety awareness
and foster responsible driving behavior.

“Driver” safety awareness and responsible driving behavior will significantly decrease the
frequency of “Motor Vehicle” accidents and reduce the severity of personal injuries and property
damage.

“Drivers” as defined in this program must follow the requirements outlined in this program.
Violations of this program may result in disciplinary action up to and including suspension of

driving privileges or dismissal.

PROGRAM RESPONSIBILITIES

Everyone shares in the responsibility to make the Vehicle Safety Program a success. To avoid
confusion or misunderstanding, specific program responsibilities are outlined as follows:

Drivers should keep the following documents in all District owned/leased vehicles:
1. Insurance Card
2. Vehicle Accident Packet

Drivers are required to:
1. Read, understand and follow the requirements contained in this program;
2. Maintain a valid driver’s license and adhere to license restrictions;
(An employee shall not drive a vehicle on District business if his/her license is suspended
or revoked for any reason)

St. Louis Public Schools Safety & Risk Management Handbook




Use of Non-District Owned/Leased Vehicles for District Business

Employees who drive “Non-District Owned/Leased Vehicles” while conducting business for the
District are subject to all of the provisions and standards of this program.

Additional Responsibilities include:
1. Maintaining automobile liability insurance limits of at least the state mandated minimum
of $25,000 per person, $50,000 per accident, and $10,000 property damage;
2. Maintaining current state vehicle inspection; and
3. Maintaining their “Non-District Owned/Leased Vehicle” in safe operating condition.

SAFETY REGULATIONS

1. Vehicle Safety Belts
The Driver and ALL OCCUPANTS are required to wear safety belts when operating or
riding in a “Motor Vehicle”. The “Driver is responsible to ensure all passengers are
wearing their safety belts.

2. Impaired Driving
A Driver may not operate a “Motor Vehicle” at any time, when his/her ability is
impaired, affected, or influenced by alcohol, illegal drugs, medication, illness, fatigue or
injury.

3. Traffic Laws
All Drivers are required to abide by all federal, state and local motor vehicle regulations,
laws and ordinances.

4. Use of Cell Phones and Other Electronic Equipment
The use of technology (cellular phones, pagers, laptop computers, etc.) has proven to be
very effective in improving productivity and customer services. However, there are
serious risks associated with usage of this equipment while driving a District or personal
vehicle. The availability of this technology is not intended to encourage dangerous
behavior during the course of your work or personal life. Responding to pagers, using a
laptop computer while driving and dialing or receiving calls are potentially dangerous.
We, therefore, discourage this activity. The intended benefit of this technology is to help
you eliminate the search for pay phones or other means of communication and allow you
to place calls at a time and place that is convenient and safe for you. Your safety and the
safety of others are of the utmost importance to the District. You must follow these
guidelines to make safety your first priority when behind the wheel of a vehicle:

a) Do not use your cell phone, pager or laptop computer while driving. If you
receive a call, for example, pull off the road and park in a safe place before taking
the call. The side of the road is not a safe location. Examples of safe locations
are rest stops, parking lots and other areas away from traffic.

b) If you have taken a call when it is not safe to do so, let the caller know you will
return the call as soon as it is appropriate.

c) Place your calls or use your laptop before you begin your trip or while you are
stationary between appointments.

d) DO NOT TEXT while driving.

e) Do not dial, take notes, or look up numbers while driving. Know your cell phone
and its features.

f) If you must talk while driving, a hands free unit must be used.

St. Louis Public Schools Safety & Risk Management Handbook



37irPzage

ACCIDENT REPORTING

1. Accident Reporting (See Sample Form in Appendix D)

a) Supervisor Notification - The driver is required to notify his/her immediate
supervisor of any “Accident” as soon as is practical after the accident.

b) The Driver should complete the “Vehicle Accident Report” form. It is available
on the District website under Employees, St. Louis Public Schools Safety,
Reporting Forms and Vehicle Accident Report.

c¢) District Owned/Leased Vehicles - The driver should call the District Risk
Manager as soon as is practical after the accident.

d) Non-District Vehicles - The driver should call his/her personal automobile
insurance carrier.

2. Accident Reporting Kits — District Owned/Leased Vehicles

a) Every District Owned/Leased Vehicle is required to have a “Vehicle Accident
Report Kit” in the glove box. This kit should be used by the driver to record
accident facts as soon after the accident as is reasonably feasible.

b) The Driver should give the completed “Vehicle Accident Report” to their
immediate supervisor.

c) The supervisor should fax or email the form to the Risk Management Department
and the Safety and Security Department, make a copy of the completed “Vehicle
Accident Report” and then mail the original to the District Risk Manager.

d) The “Vehicle Accident Report” Form (form included as Appendix D) is the form
to be used to report all vehicle accidents involving District Owned/Leased
Vehicles.

3. Accident Reporting Kits — Non-District Vehicles

a) The “Vehicle Accident Report™ is available on the District website under
Employees, St. Louis Public Schools Safety and Reporting Forms.

b) Keeping the “Vehicle Accident Report” form in the glove box will help record the
important information about an accident and be a means for reporting the accident
to the driver’s personal automobile insurance carrier and well as providing the
report to the driver’s supervisor.

St. Louis Public Schools Safety & Risk Management Handbook




38|Page
Section X

SAFETY & RISK MANAGEMENT PROGRAM TRAINING

SAFETY & RISK MANAGEMENT PROGRAM ORIENTATION

Workplace safety begins on the first day of initial employment. Each SLPS employee has access
to a copy of this safety handbook, through his or her supervisor, for review and future reference.
Employees will attend a workplace safety in-service, sign and remove the Safety & Risk
Management Handbook signature page and give to Supervisor for submission to Human
Resources.

JOB SPECIFIC TRAINING

Various job classifications will conduct additional training sessions. Supervisors will initially

train employees on how to perform assigned job tasks safely. Supervisors will also:

1. Review with each employee the specific safety rules, policies, and procedures that are

. applicable

2. Maintenance/Custodial employees and all other employees who have the responsibility for

the clean-up or handling of blood/bodily fluids should receive blood-borne pathogens

training

Give employees verbal instructions and specific directions on how to do the work safely

4. Observe employees performing the work and if necessary, provide a demonstration using
safe work practices, or remedial instruction to correct training deficiencies before an
employee is permitted to do the work without supervision

5. Provide all employees with safe operating instructions on seldom-used or new equipment
before using the equipment

6. Review safe work practices with employees before permitting the performance of new, non-
routine, or specialized procedures

w

PERIODIC RETRAINING OF EMPLOYEES
All SLPS employees will be retrained periodically on safety rules, policies and procedures, and
when changes are made to the Safety and Risk Management Handbook.

Individual employees will be retrained after the occurrence of a work-related injury caused by an
unsafe act or work practice, and when a supervisor observes employees displaying unsafe acts,
practices, or behaviors.

UNIVERSAL PRECAUTIONS
Universal precautions are infection control guidelines designed to protect workers from exposure
to diseases spread by blood and certain body fluids.

Protocol for Universal Precautions
In response to the increase in hepatitis B and human immunodeficiency virus (HIV) infections,

the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) have recommended “universal blood and
body-fluid precautions”. These measures are intended to prevent transmission of these and other
infections, as well as to decrease the risk of exposure for care-providers and students. As it is
currently not possible to identify all infected individuals, these precautions must be used with
every individual, regardless of his/her medical diagnosis.

St. Louis Public Schools Safety & Risk Management Handbook



Universal precautions pertain to blood and body fluids containing blood, cerebrospinal fluid,
synovial fluid, vaginal secretions, semen, and pericardial fluid. These precautions do not apply
to other body products such as saliva, sputum, feces, tears, nasal secretions, vomitus and urine
unless blood is visible in the materials. However, these other fluids and body wastes can be
sources of other infections and should be handled as if they are infectious.

The single most important step in preventing exposure to and transmission of any infection is
anticipating contact with infectious materials in routine as well as emergency situations. Based
on the type of possible contact, the care-giver should be prepared to use the appropriate
precautions and techniques prior to providing care. Diligent and proper hand washing, the use of
barriers, appropriate disposal of waste products and needles, and proper decontamination of these
measures will enhance protection of both the care-giver and the student.

Hand Washing
Proper hand washing is crucial to preventing the spread of infection. Texture jewelry on the

hands or wrist (such as rings and stones) should be removed prior to washing and kept off until
completion of the care procedure and hands are rewashed. Use of running water, lathering with
soap and using friction to clean all surfaces of remaining jewelry and hands is key. Rinse well
with running water and dry hands with paper towels. If soap and water are unavailable, wet
towelettes or “hand-wipes” may be used.

Hands should be washed before physical contact with student and after the contact is completed.
Hands should be washed after contact with any used equipment. If hands (or other skin) become
soiled with blood or body fluids, they should be washed immediately before touching anything
else. Hands should be washed whether gloves are worn or not and after gloves are removed.

Barriers include disposable gloves, protective eye wear and gown. The use of a barrier is
intended to reduce the risk of contact with blood and body fluids for the care-giver as well as to
control the spread of infectious agents from student to student. It is essential that appropriate
barriers be used when contact with potentially infectious material is possible.

Gloves should be worn when direct care of the student may involve contact with blood and body
fluids. For infection control, it is recommended that gloves be worn as well for contact with
urine, feces, and respiratory secretions. Gloves should be disposed of after each use and not
reused.

Gloves should be worn when changing a diaper or catheterizing a student.

Gloves should be worn when changing dressings or sanitary napkins.

Gloves should be worn when providing mouth, nose or tracheal care.

Gloves should be worn if the care-giver has broken skin on the hands (even around the nails).
Gloves should be worn when cleaning up spills of blood (e.g. nosebleeds) or body fluids and
wastes, and soiled supplies.

ok R =

Gowns or aprons may be worn to protect the care-giver’s clothing if spattering of body fluids is
possible. The apron or gown should be laundered or disposed of after each care session and

St. Louis Public Schools Safety & Risk Management Handbook




40 |rPage

should not be reused. In addition, protective eye wear and masks should be worn if splashing of
body fluids is likely to occur (such as mouth suctioning or a coughing student).

Chux or other waterproof barriers should be used to cover any work surface if drainage or
splashing with blood or body fluids is possible. The barrier should be disposed of after each care
session and should not be reused.

Disposal of Waste
All used or contaminated supplies (including gloves and other barriers) except for syringes,

needles and other sharp implements should be placed in a plastic bag which is then sealed. This
bag should be placed in a second plastic bag, which is also sealed. The double-bagged waste can
then be thrown in the garbage, out of the reach of children or animals.

Needles, syringes and other sharp objects should be placed in a metal or other puncture-proof
container immediately after use. To reduce the risk of an accidental needle stick or cut, needles
should not be recapped, bent or removed from the syringe before disposal. Once it is full, the
container should be sealed, double bagged and then disposed of (in the garbage away from the
reach of children). Bodily wastes such as urine, vomitus or feces should be disposed of in the
toilet.

Clean Up
Spills of blood and body fluids that are covered under universal precautions should be cleaned up

immediately. The CDC method is as follows:

1. Wear gloves.
2. Mop up the spill with paper towels or other absorbent material.
3. Using a solution of one part household bleach (sodium hypochlorite) in ten parts of
water, wash the area well.
4. Dispose of gloves, soiled towels and other waste in sealed double plastic bag in the garbage

as outlined above.

Routine environmental clean-up facilities (such as the health room and bathrooms), does not
require any modification unless contamination with blood or body fluids covered under universal
precautions should occur. If so, the area should be decontaminated using the procedure outlined
above. Regular cleaning on non-contaminated surfaces such as toilet seats and table tops can be
done with the standard cleaning and removal of obvious soil. It is more effective than
extraordinary attempts to disinfect or sterilize surfaces.

Laundry
Whenever possible, disposable barriers should be used, if contamination with body fluids or

blood is possible. If sheets, towels or clothing do become soiled, they should be handled as little
as possible. If sheets, towels or clothing do become soiled, they should be handled as little as
possible. Wash with hot water and detergent for at least 25 minutes. Cool water washing is also
acceptable if an appropriate detergent is used for the water temperature.

St. Louis Public Schools Safety & Risk Management Handbook



4ijragzge

Accidental Exposure
Accidental exposure to blood, body products or body fluids places the exposed individual at risk

of infection. This risk varies depending on the type of body fluid (blood vs. respiratory vs.
feces), the type of infection (salmonella vs. HIV) and the integrity of the skin that is
contaminated.

Pregnant Women
Pregnant women are at no higher risk of infection than other care providers as long as

appropriate precautions are observed. However, due to the possibility of in-utero transmission of
viral infections such as cyto-megalovirus (CMF) or HIV, as well as the potential for adverse
outcomes with these congenitally acquired infections, pregnant women should be especially
careful to observe universal precautions.

References: www.cdc.gov
Boston Public Schools

St. Louis Public Schools Safety & Risk Management Handbook



AllPage

. APPENDIX A

Bomb Threat Record Form

N

St. Louis Public Schools Safety & Risk Management Handbook



A_z I HER-

)
£
i

BOMB THREAT RECORD FORM

Date:

Time Threat Detected/Received:

How the Threat was Transmitted/Found:

Person Receiving/Finding the Threat:

1. Exact wording of threat:

2. Questions to ask if talking with the person making the threat:

When is the bomb going to explode?

Where is the bomb right now?

What does the bomb look like?

What kind of bomb is it?

Did you place the bomb?

Why did you do this?

What is your name?

What is your address and telephone number? .

FEoean T

3. If the threat is received on a telephone, listen for background sounds (circle or
note):
Street noises Factory machines
Vehicles Office machines
Dishes Animal neises
Voices Public address system
Music TV/radio

4. Sex of caller (circle): Male Female

5. Race of caller:

6. Age of caller based on voice:

7. Caller’s voice (circle)

Calm Nasal Rasp

Angry Stutter Deep

Excited Lisp Soft

Slow Rapid Loud

Clearing Throat Disguised Cracking Voice
Accent Slurred Familiar

St. Louis Public Schools Safety & Risk Management Handbook



APPENDIX B

Workers Compensation Form

St. Louis Public Schools Safety & Risk Management Handbook



B2]Paze
ST LOUIS PUBIIC SCHODLS EMPTOYVEE SUPERVISOR ENJURY EEPORT
EAIPLOYEE BEPORT OF INJURY (Typed aund executed by Emplaves)
Fax Imamediately to Fimusn Resourres o 314-144-1802
NAMLE {LAST, FIRST, MIDTLER TATE OF BIBTE: | e FOLITICI TETLE -
HOAIE ATTRESS: HOGE FRONE & CEVDER.:
CITT STATE LY CODE: ALTER FHOUNE # WAL TIAE LOAT 45 WORLT .
o [ TISE TiOmh BEGAN: | DATE OF ACLIDENT DWUER: | 7rur oF COCTREENCE Location code of emplaves:

EUILDING LOCATION NIERE INCIDENT GCCURRED (SCHOOLSITEy: | SPECIIC ARZATY THE BUTLITNG:

3| DLEASE DELCRIBE DV DETAIL B0W THE BTV TREET AND WHAT CAUSED THE HIFRY TO RAPPEN:

DESLEIEE TEE DUCEY & FARTS 0 BODY ATTLCIED: TSNS OF WITRESAES 10 ACCIENT LS TEY.
1
2
3
TS TAE DILEY TP ORI 2D DIECEATELY 10 SUPERVISCRY TUATE OF THE PERGUN YU FRAT BEFORTED DiiEy 10
GF ¥, EXFLATY PAILLTE T0 GIVE HOTIUE): ANT DATE OF REFGET,

Ezsploee refozes thr offer of Madical cowmnion: | B Ve, resscn for refusal:

Heow wa: Empleves Transgozted to Bhvsician Clinic:

EL

Dare Peceived 17 Madical Treatraens: Whe Accompanied:
S

To Chpic Physicizn, .
Gz o vty o e et el o pinsisian kil Locstion:

ATY SICWATURE J<DICATER TEAT IFVILY UHDERSTANT THAT ANY FALSIFICATIOON OF 000 INTLEY MLV STBJIECT ME TO DIZCELINARY
ACTHYY, DAZUTES TERMIVATICN OF 22% EXLOYIZYT WITH THE ST. LOTTS PUBLIC 2CEDOLS.

EMPLOYVEE ZACVATURE: DATE:

AUTHORIZATION TO RELEARF MEDICAL RECORDS TO BE COMFLETED BY THE EMPLOYEE
sEmploves LiEnahoe: (e Honita
YOU ARE HEREBY AUTHORIZED TC RELEASE AMY RAFCRMATION ACOUIRED IV THE COURSE OF MY TREATMENT TO MY
EMFLOVER ANT [CHMSL FLEASE FORWASD BOEDIATELY & WORSERS COMPENIATION BEFORT ALOPY OF THL
AUTHORIZATICN AVD YOUR ITEMIZED BELTDNG STATENENT Tt
CLM5I @ 132 % 11 Street € St Lon
1T I T T % 2P LT L

iz, MO 63102
TE HAN =T =

P

L DT T

IR

YT ABE HEREBY ATTHORITED 10 REMDER YELEREARY MEDICAL TREATRMENT T0 TEE ABOVED WAME TRIFLOYEE OF TEE T
LOU7% PUBLIC SCROCLS. THES AUTEORIZATION Tk LIVATED TO THE FIRST VST ONLY, FOLLOAW UP VISITE MUSTBE
AUTHCRIZED BY SLPS OR T AND 037 BE 4CEEDULED BEFCRE OR AT TER WIRK HOURE.

SUPERVISOER SIGHATURE: DATE:

Fpee i ofd PR B

St. Louis Public Schools Safety & Risk Management Handbook



B3jEx

ST LOUIS PUBLIC SCHOOLE FRPLOVEE SUPERVISOR INIURY RERCGET
INIURED BODY PART CHART (Typed and exsonted by Emploves)

Irjvred Employse s Name: Diate of Invary:
LOCATION,: PHONE:

Fromt Back

Q%'“"-v-,
-~ w
e
i
»«»”“

})

|
’ ",
‘5‘4;/ 'V"m’;;;@ -]
Please mark the suspeced mrea sy of iy U
Nams of body paryss Hemd:
EMFLOYEE SIGHNATURE:

p—

Pepe 2 ofd

St. Louis Public Schools Safety & Risk Management Handbook



Faxz Immediately to Humon Resourzes 40 314-244-1508
ST LOUIS PUBLIC SCHOOLS EMPLOVEE SUPERVISOR INJURY BEPORT

Accident Investigation Eeport (Typed ssd executed by Supervisor or desiguee) .
Iniured Emploves’s Wane: Dare of Imury
SUPERVISOR MAME:
LOCATION.. DHONE:
SUPERVISOES TITLE: - DATE COMPLETRIE ZEPORT:

PLIASE DESCRIBE I¥ DETAIL HOW THE DUTEY OCCURRED AND WHATY CAUSED THE DNJURY TO HAFPEN.
TS BE COMPLETED BY SUPERVISOR (IF WOT PEESENT DEXCEIEE WHAT WAL RERCRIED TO YU

Diescribe hoow the fnpary orcmmed:

What if aov events or conditions cansed the sccident fie wet fioor, fgh sading oo nasiebie surfare. eto)

Corracive acticn of plan to prevent feocCiurence:

WCL-2 Revised 4/0% Fax Dmmedinfely to Humss Basowrces o 314-244-1808

Page 3 ofd

St. Louis Public Schools Safety & Risk Management Handbook



B5]Faze
Fax Immediataly to Humaw Resowrses  314-244-1808
ST LOULS PUBLIC SCHODLS EMPTOYEESUPERVISOR INJURY REPORT
WITNESS STATEAMENT Tvped sud sxecuted by Wimer)

Injured Emploves’s Mame: Diate of Inyary
WITNEES WAME:
LOCATION: PHONE:
TITLE: DATE COMPLETING BEPORT:

PLEASE DESCRIBY IN DETAIL HOW THE DOUEY GCULUREED AND WHAT CAUSED THE DNJURY TO HAFFEN.

Diezcrizae boow the tafary sooumed:

Wzt if zuy svents or condiions cansed the sccident: 71.e. wet floor, Sghe. sending on vosmble surface, e}

Corractive action o plan 1o prevent reoccuITence:

WI-2 Revised 0409 Fax Immediately zo Human Resources o 314-244-1808
Please print additional witness statement if pecessary.

Poge doid B LI

St. Louis Public Schools Safety & Risk Management Handbook



B6}Fa

FAX copy Inumediately iv Humnan Bewonrces — 214-244-1508
WORKERS COMPENSATION BFPORTING

GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS .
INAREDEAPICQTEE:
Seap 1 The splovee is regered 1o repor suy vy sustnined durmeg woelong bours or while oo swhorized B¢ Douiz .

Public Srhools busines: 1o bivber wunediare supervisor oo the day te imbary oooas and withkin 24 bovrs of
the ooomrence of the sccident Sejury.

rap I The emplioves mast complate te forn WCI-Z, 5t Zowsr Pellic Sthools Employes Supavizar Dy Report,

sud subadr tee form 1o the mpervisor for zignere. M medicst treatment & reguired, the emplovee muet
obtaiy the vapervizar': sgpature for authorization of medice] treatment. The emplovee wust make a
copy of the repart for the site record: sod then inke the original WC3I-2 with him'her to the authorized
medical provider, either Comcentra or BarmesCare. Sep atfached Hst of MEDICAL CENTER
LOCATIONS.

Seap 3 Toemediztely followsng the visit vo an suthorized docsor, the eployes nomst provide s ber supervisor with the
Doctor’s Vizit Summnny Reporr fom BarassCare or the Work Stone Reporr om Comcsutrs, euther fo person
orky fmn The report should indicate thet the smmploves wes avaluared zod 5 deternaination was wade to sitier
sevars 1o work foo Regular Daty, renas to werk for Limited Duty with Restrictianz, or Unable to Warle

Srep 4 Any medizal cherge: inmwred amywhers other than BarpesCare or Coocenme will oot be covered under
Workers” Congpensadon mud shodd be subnzined w vour zroup nesdicsl hxerswos cxmiar. The caly axceprion
o sz mide shell be the rare pocasion when tmury requires emerpenTy Mesmuen 95 deemed pecessary o the
best judgment of the supenvisor at the sive of the inary.

wr

FREINCIEAL SUPERITIOR:

Srap L Provide the sppred evploves witk an Bwploves Superviser Injury RepentBdedica? Tresmuent Aunthorization
Fome (WCI-Z) The emploves will comgplats the majority of page fznd sli of page 2 of the fomme, whick iz
s her sccouae of die sccident tnjuary.

Step I Puncpelsuperviser mlbl cougplers suthorize mesnuent by signing the bomom of page 1, whick auwherizes the

epploves 1o obmin medical Teamuens 81 sither & BammesCare or Cracengs Medicel Center, Additomsily, fe

Superviser shall conglets aud sign page 3 of the fomm which is the wupervizor’s accounr of e

sccidentinjure.  Ske supenasor iz not reguired 1o have fSrsthend imowladze of the incidens.  When the

Supervizor does nov heve frsthand bnow the report shall indicarsd what was “slfeged” 10 have happened.

rap 3. Faxthe complessd WC1-2 immedintely to the Homan Resource: Division 2t (3145 244-1808.

wep 4 Fewzna copy of the WCI-I in a separse workers' compensarion e ot e respective Jocanion,

g 5 Code sheenres aocordiaghy,

[TAN Ll

HL24N RESOURCES DUTTSION.

Srep il When the Dector’s Vist Smonpeary Report indicares Unasble e Wok, the Human Fesources Thvizion will
ploce the emplovee cn “Tesctive Service — Workers Comperzsdon Witheur Fay™ vzl e ensploves is releaged
for dary. The first three (3) regularly schedaled work dov: following the last day worked are mot
payable nnder the Misyouri Workers® Compensation kaw, nuless the emploves will be absent more than
14 consecutive days, ot which time the first three days will be pavable under worker:” compensafice.

Grpl:  Human Resovoces Division will msinrain the inscive service stans unidl vecespt of zhe physician’s sizternent
mdbzsring thar the sreploves iz released for regviar dury or limived duny with resminrons.

Swp 3 For amy Decter” Swwmay Repore indicating “Limited Duty with Restrichions”, Human Reseurces Division
will work witha the appropriate site sdocolumator to evabusie Bosted dury opporrapides smd derernsine the
appeopriate course of acthen. Each reporywill be evshuated on & case by case basis.

Cragzdons: Por guesnon concending this form contecs Diebwa Whitley at 314-345-3310 oo Charles Burvon st 314-343-2251.

Pagefofd e

b
4
-3

St. Louis Public Schools Safety & Risk Management Handbook



Fage 6 o

Z

MEDICAL CENTER LOCATIONS
WORKER'S COMPENSATION AUTHORIZED MEDIC AL FACILITIES

Fan 7 3143 645-1539
Hours: M-F. § am. - 500 pm.

ZEAL WORK BEATTH CONCENTRA
S2AL Work Health Conventra Alidtows
2321 B ZlcCansland Ave. 6738 Manchaster

%y, Loz, 310 63143 St Dosdz, BED. 83138
{3145 WORK (9675} (3143 647-0081

Fax o (314) 847-34E83
Howrs: BE-F, B a8 pa.

SZ2XI Work Health #1

YVillage Center, Suite &,
Hazelweod MO §
{314 T31-WORK (86
Fax: {3143 T31-2522
Hoars: M-F. 8 am - 5 pan.

Concentra Westpory

83 Frogres: Parkwey
hiaryiand Heighis, 310, 63043
L 143 434-8174

)

Fam: (3147 434-8708
Hours: M-F, Sam-E pm.

SE3 Worl: Health

300 5t Pemrs Cears Bivd,, Suits 150
Sr. Perery, MO S337¢

{836 {
Fax: (836 928-9811
Heoars: M-F, S am - 5 pa,

Concentra Xortk Broadway
8340 Nord Broadway 51

St. Lowss, MO 83147

(35%) 385-0563

Fam: {314) 385-8330

Hours: M-F, 8 a5 pam.

Congentra Soniard
16817 South Thirs Smaet
5t Lowss, MO, 83147
(3143 423-2
Fam: (3141 421-2048
Hours: M-F. 8 am -3 pm.

Cencenira Feuton

1768 Gilzinz Lane
Feuron, 30, #3078

(8357 348-6230

Fax: {836) 349-6641
Hows: 3-F Sam-f pam.

Diiame Lewiy
LOREST Werk Comp Rep
F14-318-5837

Concentra Adrport

483 Lyaz Haven Lane
Hazelwood, 310, 63042

(314 7310443

am {3140 T31-0493

Hows 34-F. 730 am - S pam.

i

S HOURS TATRGENCY SPRUICE (Dol if an Froergeney)

S¢. Mary':s Hospiial
$420 Claviop R,
S wiz, M0 83117

(314) THE-C380

Saint Lovls Univerzity Houpital
3633 Vizta at Grand

St Louds, WI0 83110

(3143 £7T-E777

St. Louis Public Schools

Safety & Risk Management Handbook

il



Clivrage

APPENDIX C

Security Incident Report Form

St. Louis Public Schools Safety & Risk Management Handbook



C2lezge

&

LAFETY AND SECURITY STUDENT'S ID Nunses
BOL Mot 11™ STReet {epoTIE #1)
%7, Lovis, MO 83101-1013 {SumPerr B
TGuBeEIT 83
IHNCIDENT REPORT TeusrErT 833
Fre A% PR AT weTaES D8 wansd : 5
(30 iy
§wTTHEE B2
HAME OF SCHOOL AREA: DATE OF REFORT:
l TYPE OF INCIDENT (onecy O OF MO8} i LOCATION OF IRCIDENT foupcy OnE 08 MOBE}
T 1 | Bcceoestal Tscoey ROBBEEY T [ Srems TomER:
Bmmauny Srw Orrense Haws BeMoot. YR
Ll | Bunsiany L1 | Sreacenc ImEEE L] T&mmasma
| l Taoin ) Blooto. D TRISPALZIRG L APETORLS T T [Viecan
M1 | Fassrroms ] | Wesrons
Manping OEs
| | | Procy Drsvussance | || | Bus Incapesy Rowrs:
SaTe £F THCIDENT: TosE oF IHCIDERT P8 AM
TICTIN 15 TabiL: ETH
ADDRERS: SR
PeAENT COBTRIT wvare [
VooTH 2% KeME: S
f oo HHe
Pampnrf CoNTAIT wvaee
Apzee Spgeecr 1 BN
SERS o M
Saer [
HERy
R
sraer [
Baw
SN
Sxwer [
s
e
Sraer [
Pouycy Lare: [T¥es  [lee | Cowmrsant & | m{ﬁ@a‘:
Evipancs Sz [Tves K PolncE SToRAGE: [1ves  [ten OEPELER:
s D! JUBHTITY:
B zapcas Uaeo a2y Securary: ¥es L Mo O Twse: || wzarou Uszo ov Oosiens: Yes L1 Ko Ll Tere:

Iwmams ¥2s [0 we [

Yewyow Wil corecrete, ssplall, cerpeting ) I applicedle

sepiiudure, steps holes b swfece, 9. b 3F ap

Wrprvars Dosnerous, I spphaoahds

LAL cAttzch Modicel-Cilnir Lng, §f Troated by Schoa! Murmald
TREATHINT AT SCEHE BY SCHOOL NURSE TROATHINT AT SCEME BY EMS
TILATED BY AR TRPORTES T HogpraL
Berasin NEuatat SETENTINN HOEPITRL NaME:

St. Louis Public Schools Safety & Risk Management Handbook



c3e

Dot L Bpowys

DzpapTHERT S LOCHTIONS DEpaiTMENT FILE Mo
Diate OF SHOIDENT! PracE oF OOCBRRENCE:
T COMPLATHANT: Pugr 0F Puugs .
L i Daspsrol - BEouanry SSaery Y Tr—"

Savwry & Secunry Oprce e

Pamtrag Basas Nuwseh

Feeoniing Deriosn

Besr Mansuereny

Fevises: July 1. 2010

St. Louis Public Schools Safety & Risk Management Handbook



DifrPaze

APPENDIX D

Vehicle Accident Report Form

St. Louis Public Schools Safety & Risk Management Handbook



D2jPage

What To Do
In Case of An Accident

CALL.
1. Motify the police. Tt is unlawhal to leave the secident s - permissica.  Cooperate
m% »J. ‘ Sh.
2. Wotify SLPS Safely and 5o

PROTECT.
Guard the scene from further damage.

 ASSIST.
Render only what first aid you are qualified to give. Don't move injured persons
uailess absolutely nocessary. For seripus injury, oall 912,

OBTAIN. |
Gt all the necessary information for an acourate report and complete the Vehicle Accident
Report forms before leaving the scene, if not infured.

REPORT.
Motify SLES Risk Mansgement Representative within 24 hours of the accident and
Wam@} dmxmwmmmmmm mivd Secnrity and the Risk

St. Louis Public Schools Safety & Risk Management Handbook



b pa e
Vehicle Accident Report {Page 1 of 3}
Dee of Lopident Diay o Wemnh Tirms ARNPR Loossilon Loaation Dooe
\Hame of BLPE Diiver [Sisrma of Olber Drvsr
Sodrene inciuge ChyRle s Sudrase insuse Civsime Ty
Phone Retabion i 3LPE o THin Frong CHnBTE NEE (F POl e
Torwrn Lioepge @ Drvers Liverge @ Incurznos Tompany
W % WIH Humber Wahiols Somber Lisenos Fiabe 8
Yowr Bake el Yoar Pz Blodet
Rovidnnl Losaion: Sireet ke Humber Tk ey
[Cacorpiion o AoOIDENE (Uie BATE DEges P necessary.
| Errmm———— 5 51 bemrnesion, shom saion af s i oy A, TR
Baits, puflon vawbess, 85
IBMPORTANT
Finags 7 In dagram

whhsr wahioly with whish
drivers velicds oollided)
wilh dirsolion in which
ol wers prosesding.

ki ] Foliss Deparimant Nams
Ho
T5E
Ho
Fhors BOTEGT (ML OTE L SRR
FPhops ;MW CihelieSn

St. Louis Public Schools

Safety & Risk Management Handbook




D4jrage

Vehicle Accident Report (Page £ of 3}

Scnduns vt
Watade - ¥
Wikl - garhes
(5 et
A

Tosn

Biariug

Pt Crigant

Ditbagi

Ooooonooa

Easbunrs S Froat e
bt

Tvwsniinny 4 skt
Turingy - vyt

Tursdey - wh

Twdrg « 4 tum
Gl ~ G s
By ~ i wawi tenee
Bhnionds ~ i wtinbbe
St isess gl wawibass
B o Wit bt
e

OOooooOooOoooonn

Dopwury &
Eoodsiv - Litha vetves
Eowiginny - b
Lo - Pvivest

B - P el sopem

Oooooooo

Pradusiries Sotis Faar sy
Loy il s

Lirisg 4 =
Coromsing - oo sagrant
Lheomeniogg e badend] edaliatae

Oooooooononon

ooooo ooo

Oooooooooo  oOooooooooc

OoOoooo

ooonooao

brodenbaeniins

St w0 e
Feoniihesin sientniion
Lo e

Sl wbnossibey
St e O g
o it

b

et Conve Do
Sl sbpne

ihghiting
Cogiiyed
Lhwror:

je
P

W
[
B
B
Frminrinag

ity

[

P s Sun wirisinag
Arbeslins

LAy Senadighte

Bt
b

Drargplensan
Propmcs e

ooooono

Oooooooo  ooooooodo  oood

ooooo

Bl LG
el

g

fe =

g M
e
et
Meusshe of

Dvvwr wins Topusling
Wl

Caremink

Lrenbag vl

]

Condion o Boul Bafae
Ly

ek

Harw

e

My

Tkl

Fophhy: B

B

Wk Delsiss
B b
Bwnin

g

L
Wi
Bhipmis

b

[ e
Hpmeid Liey

Davesy wens huved i ol ssd
Tavewd wis Sarsdi wih wa b
Pgone b o BOuidnvl R
B aNeemd

St. Louis Public Schools

Safety & Risk Management Handbook




Yehicle Accident Report (Page 3 of 3}

Driver's Notes

e ¥ wene b Hhwe wmen oF tha s,
Phnsn $ 3 T
Damage To Vahioes of Others
S 1 i Dhbewe B of Cay Fiwe
b Lbnswen Pighe ¥
f o ’

Faswphorrm Wb B Chmnmn § ook S

Worswnn Linnoown Suphrunn
QWQS T P?’W@ﬁ? ot Othars

Saver

S 2

[ Takegdunm Hhdvdnr

%fﬁ}ggﬂ POreEnns

b e

Sahibuas

| Tdnpduen Shuenbae Hgm B

[Etans of bnpwdex Bavars ot iaguriey

e Tkt Woibearis Tadous?

| Bt v inbest Ty O O B ~ Eovnay Lo O Fommmsgy - FRO 86
D Pedagyion D D Pdearie D Fonnamg - vhhey o
Fimes L
Sy B
b wf brprken Remrs o gy
Veors Taimy?
D Prpange -~ e 0gy D Teopay - Do Cay D S R T e
D PruasQee - 1 D Pessrba D Fayuurigy - piber sy

St. Louis Public Schools

Safety & Risk Management Handbook









£ BOARD RESOLUTION

Date: March 7, 2013 Agenda ltem : 4

To: Dr. Kelvin R. Adams, Superintendent Action: X

From: Leon Fisher, CFO/Treasurer

Other Transaction Descriptors:

Action to be Approved: Financial Report (i.e.: Sole Source, Ratification)

SUBJECT: To approve the Monthly Transaction Report for February 2013.

BACKGROUND: Per board policy and/or directive, the SAB must approve the following transactions: 1) Budget
transfers equal to or greater than $50,000; 2) Budget transfers between funds; 3) Budget transfers involving meeting or

travel expenses.

Accountability Plan Goals: Goal lll: Facilities, Resources Support Objective/Strategy: 111.D.

FUNDING SOURCE: (ex: 111 Location Code - 00 Project Code -110 Fund Type — 2218 Function— 6411 Object Code)

Fund Source: Requisition #:
Amount:

Fund Source: Requisition #:
Amount:

Fund Source: | Requisition #:
Amount:

Cost Not to Exceed: $ 0.00 | [IPending Funding Availability Vendor #:

/ o
Department: Finance '/% ; ‘

Requestor: ngela Banks, Budget Director

Ly, L4

Mary M. Houllihan, Dep. Supt., Operations Dr. Kelvin R. Adams, Superintendent

Revised 67/06/2011 Reviewed By: Reviewed By:




‘sjuspnis epead y3lp TI® I0F SHIAOD Q¥4I ¥ ’SINOHAGVHH
‘SIMYD WEMOd FOVMOLS ¥4I ‘SAV¥4I 3O esergoand Sutwooddn oyl ISA0D OF :3Xe]

00°009°09 3uNowyY OF
-00°009%°09 2 VNOWY WOXI
o SON TOoIxluoe)
00°00%709 £9%9 ~ 0TT~-00-186 -~ 8TZZ-0TT oL
-00°000°1Z 6TE9 - 0TT-€I~T86 - €2ZZ-0TT
-00°00%6¢€ 999 - 0TT-€I~T86 - €ZZZ-0TT SWOXF

P66E00Z0G0 :§ Dog £xUH d¥S
LBTP00Z0S0 4 20Qg AupzeI®TH J¥S ¢

Ol ‘eTqumiod UT €I0Z ‘¥ZT-TZ UYOIeW - TIeqlesseg
TOOUDS OIPPTH IO Sewep ©3®IS OH AOUS IOF SPUny BUTIISISUBRIL :IXOIL

00°005°9 $3UNOWY OL
-00°005°9 2 UNOWY WOXI
24 SON TOoIxI3uoD
00°006°9 £€8€9 -~ OTT~-00-€€8 -~ TZ%T-0TT 204
-00°006‘9 6TEYS -~ OTT-00-€€8 - TZ¥T-0T1T TWOX g

1609002050 :# ooQ Axaum gV¥s
0629002050 :§ Dog AyoxeaeTH d¥s ¢

£8DTAI®S TBTPOISND
pu®R A3TINDSS I03 OOTOAUT ISUOTSSTHMOD BUTPTTng Aed 03 sesuedxo
futjeew 03 ewWT3lISAO TRIPOISUD/AJTINOSS wWoxF JIeBpng BurtzIoFsURILT :IKSI

06°Z¢s8 :3UNOWY OfL
-06°2s8 $UNOWY WOIg
=1 :ON TOI3UWOD
06°24G8 78€9 - 0TT-X3-918 - TI9T-01IT 0%
~GG°GT 19Z9 - 0CIT-X4-9T8 - Ti?I~-02T
-8%° 68 TEZ9 - 0€T-x3-918 - TI?T-02ZT
~LPTLLL §919 - 0ZT~X4-918 - TIPT-02T SWOXY

P60P00Z060 4§ oo0a Axjuzmg 4v¥s
7629002060 *# Dog AyoaevxetH d¥vS T

aNOd SHFHOVAL-0TT

ZI0Z - TIO0Z :xeef Tedstd
€T0Z~-82~20 - €T0Z-10-Z0 :sejmg
jxodey 20Bpng ATUIUON
2EDYL NOLLVONOHE 40 QUYOo" SINOT °I§ €T0Z-TI-€0 40O S¥Y



£3TD sesuwy
TINOSSTH 3O AJTSaeATuN / €T0Z ‘LI - §T Axenzqeg / I03onIlsur - Joeyu
‘W / wnTsoGwAS pue TeATISel puURYg SIOCUOH ASBAPRTH XBA0D 07 IBISURIL :IXS]

00°00¢€ Junowy o5
-00°00¢€ $UNOWY WOXH
g SON TOIZ3TWOD
00°00¢ €8€9 - 0TT-00-9ST - Tive-01T SOL
-00°00¢ y8E9 - 0TT-00-9ST -~ TT%C-0TT SWOTH

BO6E00T0S0 :# Dog Axjum gvs
TOTP0020S0 :# D2OQ AUDIRISTH 4¥S 9

€T0Z ‘LT - ST Axenaqgeg // L3310 sesuey - TINOSSTH JO A3TSIOATUN
// x030nI38UI - yOow "W // UNTSOAWAS puB TRATISSJ PURg SIOUOH IJISOMPTIH :31X8J

19°682 :JuUNOWyY O
~19°682 :AUNOWY WOILF
g tON TOZ3UWOD
T9° 682 €8€9 - 0TT-00-9ST - TIvZ~-0TT tOL
-T9° 682 TT%9 - 0TT-00-9S8T - TTPZ-0TT TWOII

668E00Z0S0 :# 2oa Axaug dgvs
680P00Z0S0 :4 Doq AYoIeISTH 4v¥sS ¢

JUeDUTA eTTTeM
PUB UTISNY ATIequry 7T ‘OBedTYD £T0Z ‘8T - 9T YOIRH MOYS ITATUXRE
pue sousasjyuo) Tenuuy Y3igy dOSY IuewmdoTessq TeUOTSS®JOId WAOZ FO IND :3XSL

00°000°T :3UNOWY  OF,
~00°000°¢2 2 JUNOWY WOILI
g SON TOIITWOD
00°000°2 €8€E9 - 0TT-00~2T9 - TI?Z~0TT 105
-00°000°T €EP9 - 0TT-00-2T9 ~ TIPZ-01T
~00°000°T 999 ~ 0TT-00~2T9 - TTPZ-0TT TWOXg

0L8E00Z0S0 :# oog Axjum gvs
TS0P00Z0S0 4 Dog AyoxvIeTH g¥s v

€T0Z - TTI0Z :xeex TeosSTd
£€T0Z-8Z-20 - €10Z-10-Z0 :§e3e(
3xodey jebpng ATY3luoR
SHOYE NOILVONOE 40 QUYOo" SINOT IS ET0Z~-TT-€0 40 SV



THOYd

Z93sgeM yerangiAes ‘wOolsSNOH AURIITIL ‘TTOULNIATH Jedquy ‘oIbeTy eyrieu
‘ENRTISED TAISUD ‘MOIIOH ®SSeI'eY 8§T/¢ - GI/€ 7II ‘ofedTUud MOUS ATATUXH
¥ SOUSISIUOC) TRMUUY £T0Z GDOSY :doysiyaoym jusudofess( T[RUOTSSSIOI I

00°00%°‘2 :junomy O
-00°00%°2 :QUNBOWY WOXI
(<4 SON TOIXIJUWOD
co°00v‘¢ £€g8ee - 0TT-00-086 ~ TI%Z~0TT 20,
-00°00¥%°C 6TE9 - OTT~-00-096 - TTvZ~0T1 TWOXI

9T0P00Z0S0 :# ooQ Axjum gvs
0TZ?00Z060 :# D>og AgoxexoTH J¥S

*gxejndwod dojjsep g eseysang °“€T0Z ‘8T1-9T UPIBH ‘OBEOTUYD UT
eousXeIUO) TeNUUY YIL9 JOSY PUSIq® 03 DIV ‘8TB86NL uouuwys IOF SPUNI @IS

09°PEL’E 3 UNOWY OL
-09°PEL’E $ JUNOWY WOIJ
2 SON TOXIJUWOD
09°PEL’T €799 0IT-00~-G2T - TI?2-0TT
00°000°T €8€9 01T-00-G2T -~ TI9Z-0TT
00° 008 €8€9 0TT-00~SCT ~ TIPZ-01T
00° 008 €8€9 0TT-00~-S2T -~ TIPZ~0TT 2O
~00°006 €9€9 0TT-00-G2ZT - IT?9Z-0TT
-00° 006G ?P9€9 0TT-00-62T ~ 1T92-0T1T
-00°000°T 18€9 0TT~-00-S2T - TI%Z~-0TT
~09°PEL’T TT?9 0TT-00-62T ~ ITPZ-0TT Twoxg
P009002050 % 20Q Ax3Uum JYS
8617002050 3¢ oog AupxereTH J¥s 8
UOTIDIZIOD :I3Xe]
00°09% : JUNOWY OF
-00°09¢ : JUNOWY WOIJ
g SON HOHu.ﬂOU
00° 08¢ ZEDO 0TT-00-08T - TI92-0TT 20
-00°09¢ €EPT9 0ZT-GG~-08T - TITPT-02T TWOIY
G66€£002050 *§# oog Xxjumg avs
88TP00Z060 3§ 20Q AyozexeTH Jvs L

ZT02 - ZTI0T :3Iwe} TeDETI

€T0Z2-82-20 ~ €T0ZT-T0-20 :se3eQ

jxodey 3e8png ATUIUOR
NOILVONGE S0 QUV0oHE SINOT LS

€T0C-IT-€0 40 SY



®DTATISS BIIHS (PUny [RIWSPIOUT) I03De3Iep
Te3SW IBA0D O] PUNF IBYOES] WOIF 38BpNg OOTAISS BIIN® Surzaegzsuexy, :axeg

€T 11T $3UNOWY O,
-€ET° 1T 23UNOWY WOIH
=4 SON Toxluo)d
€T°TT 1929 - 0TT-¥&~-99%T - TI%C-01TT O&
-€T°TT T9Z%9 - 0ZT~-SS-9PPT -~ TSTT-02T SWOLY

CP090020S0 ¢ o2oQg KAxjum gus
LETPO0Z0S0 *# oog AyoaexoTH d¥s 71

sefeIsA) ©OTAIDS BIIHT IDACD 03 J1ebpnq BuTIXBISURIL : IXSL

$6°TY :junowy og,
-G6°C% 2 JUNOWY WOII
g ION TOX3UOD
S6°CY T€C9 - O0TT-¥d-9%T - TT9Z-01T 0%
~G6°CY TeZo - 0CT~SS-99PT -~ TSTT-02T SWOX g

TP0P002060 :# ooQg Axjum gus
9ECY00Z0S0 :# Doa AgyozwI®TH gV¥s 1T

sesuadxe dTtan PI®TF - uworivjxodsuwil
ISA0D O3 ODTAIOS RIINO WOIIF POSNUN pPeivefoxd 3eBpng BUTAON :axel

96°8YS°1T :JUNOWY O
-96°89%G°T $UNOWY WOIH
o : ON TOIJTWOD
96°8%G‘T Zreg - 0TT-00-L0OE ~ 1T%2-0T1T 1O%L
-GZ° 87 1929 - 02T-SS~LOE -~ TETT-0ZT
~L0° 80T T€29 - 0ZT-56~L0E -~ TETT-0ZT
-9 CIV’T €PI9 - 0ZT-66-L0E - T€IT-02T SWOIT

PEOY00C0S0 :# oca Axjum gvs
61ZTY0020S0 *# o0Q AUDPIRISTH 4¥S 0T

€T0Z - TT0Z :aeex TeOSTJH
€T0Z-82~-20 - €T0Z-T0-20 :s@3eq
3xodey jeb6png ATY3IuoR
SEDHYE NOLI¥DQAQE JI0 QU¥0o" SINOT IS €T0Z-TT-€0 40 SsY



gjuswied oseveT SSeOXy :IXSL

00°6TE'6ET $3UNOWY OL
~00°6TE“6ET $UNOWY WOIF
g ION TOIj3UOoD
00" 6TE’6ET TLES - 0TT-00-028 - TTSE-O0TT $OL
~00°6TE'GET €299 - 0TT~-00~-506 -~ STIS-01TT SWOXI

088€00Z0S0 :# 2og Axjuzm Jvs
€90700Z0S0 *# Pog LgoawaeTH 4¥S ST

*€T0Z “8T-ST Uoxel "I ‘OBBOTUYD UT SouULBILIUOD
OSY Tenuuy U389 €Yl puelle O3 UITHUeId STISUOTH PUR ‘0Oger] BPUBWY
‘eaBN pTRI®H ‘xedse) TTI®M ‘uolAed vpuoysed ‘eoTes TeIsAid IOZ SpuUng :axXe

GO0°"€S0°9 :JUNOWY O
~G0°€S0°9 $ITNOWY WOII
g SON TOI3UCDH
S0°€S0°9 €8€9 - O0TT-00-89T - TTPT-0TT tOL
-00°00¢§ $9€9 - 0TT-00-89T - 1T9C-0TT
-00°000°T 67€E9 - 0TT-00-89T - 1T92~-0TT
=00°000°T p8E9 -~ 0IT-00-89T -~ TI?Z-0TT
-00°000°T ST99 - 0TT-00-89T - TI?Z-0TT
-00°202°T 19689 - 0TT-00-89T - TI¥Z~-0TT
-G0°"TSE’'T €9€9 - 0TT~-00-89T - TIvZ-0T1T TWOZA

€6070020S0 4 2o0a Axjumg gvs
T6TY00Z0S0 :# oog Ayoxwa®TH d¥S 91

sebeIsA0 ®OTAISS BIIXI ISACD O3 306png BUTIISISURIL : XL

vy 19s F3UNOWY OF,
-¥¥°T9¢ :QUNOWY WOIH
g€ SON TOI3UWOD
LA Y] €EPTS - OTT-¥a-9%1T - Ti?C-01T POL
¥ 186 EPTS -~ 0CT-SS~99T - TSTT-02T fWOIg

§90%00Z050 *# Dog Axjum gVvs
09Z9%00Z0S0 34 D0Q AyoaeieTH g¥s €T

CTI0Z - TTIOT :axeex Tenstd
€T0Z-8Z-20 - €T0Z-10~-20 :seleq
3z0doy 2aefpng ATYITON
SEOYL NOILVONOE J0 QUVY0OYE SINOT IS €T0Z-TT-€0 £0 SY



*sjuepnis epexb yly TTe IO0F SWAAOD AVAI * SENOHAGVEH ’‘SINYD
HAMOd IOVHOLS dVY4I ‘SAVAI I0F 8TEZZ JO PROISUT §ZRZ UOTIDUNF ©¢ PINOYS :IXOIL

00°00S°2%T f3unowy OF
-00°00S°2%7T : JUNOWY WOIJ
& SON TOIX3UoD
00°00672Z¥%T €999 - 0TT-00-186 - 8Z8Z-0TT ‘0oL
-00°00572%T €999 - 0TT-00-T86 - 8TZZ~0TT TWOIY

966€£00Z0S0 ¢ 2oQ Axjum Jg¥s
68TV00Z050 :# ooq AyoieaeTH g¥YS 9T

ZT0Z -~ ZTTIOZ :xed®x Tedstd
€T0Z-82~20 - €T0Z-T0-Z0 :seqeqQ
3xodsy 385png ATYIUOR
SEDYL NOILU¥DNAE 40 QUV0d SINOT IS €T02~TT-€0 J0 SY



SEDYd

ZL°60T
~ZL°60T

ve°8%y

£€9°2%

£8°8
-00°008

00°€69°T
1T°vTT
98°6¢
-98°6¢
~TZ° 91T
~00°€69"T

sefexsac 18Bpng 30031100 03 spungy JSUTIXOIBSURIL :IXOL

ZL°60T :AUNOWY OF
=ZL°60T :AUNOWY WOLI
€ tON TOX3wOD
98¢9 ~ 0CT~-LI-8€8 - Z6TT-0ZT 0O,
98¢g9 - O0TT-Ld~-8€8 =~ CSTT-0TT SWOIH

SLOP0O0OTO0SO0 :# oog Axjuzm 4gvs
ELZP00Z0S0 :# Dog AyoawI®TH 4¥S €

SPWOYL STOOTN I03 fAed @OTAISS BIAKE :axeg

00°00s $3UNOWY O
-00°00S FJUNOWY WOIJ]
- SON TOx3uod
€PT9 - 0CTT-SS-€TE - LYTTI-0ZT
TEZ9 ~ 0TT-GG-€T€ - LYPTT-0ZT
1929 - 0ZT-6GG-€T€ - LYTTI-0TT P04
999 - 0TIT-00-€T€ - TTvZ-0TT SWoIg

698€00Z0S0 :# oog Axjum Jgvs
0507002050 :# 20Q AUoIRIOTH 4¥S ¢

wexBoxg Apexs3T BUTUION IOI gxegowes 03 juewmArd 8400
03 pung saeyoee], 03 pung TRIUSPTOUI WOIZ 386pnq e0TAISS RIXe BUTAON :3xeg

LO"LES'T $TNOWY O,

~LO°LES'T :Junowy WoIJg

g $ON TOX3uUoD
£PT9 - 0¢T-00-85% - LZTIT-0ZT
€29 - 0ZT-00-85% - LZTIT-0ZT

1928 - 0ZT-00-8G67% - LTTT-02T ‘0L
1929 - 0TT-00-8Sy - TTPZ-0TT
TEZ9 -~ 0TT-00-86% - TIPZ~-0TT

£EPT9 - 0TT~-00-8Sv -~ Ti%Z-01T FWOXg

9Z0P00Z0S0 % ooQ Axjum gvs
TZZY0020S0 :# oog AgoaeaeTH g¥s |

TYLNIAIONT~0ZT

TI0T - ZTIOZ :xeex Teostg
€102-82-20 - €T0Z-T0-Z0 :se3eq
3x0odey jebpng Aryjuon
NOIIVONQE J40 ayvod STNOT °IS £T0Z-TI-E0 40 S¥



]

EDvd

sefeienc 3008png 3001300 03 Spung Burxiegysuexy :axel

00°009 $TWROWY O
-00°009 :ATNOWY WOXH
= SON TOX3UWOD
00°009 98¢9 - 0ZT-00-828 - €ITI-02T 200
~00°009 98€9 - 0TT-00-8Z8 - ETCT-0TT SWOLY

LLOY0O0TOSO 4 2og Axjum 4vs
SLTP00ZOSO :# Dog AydawieTH Jgyvs

sefexesc jefpnq 30exI00 03 Spuny BurireFsURIL K8

98°818 $3UNOUY O
-98° 818 2ATVNOWY WOT I
= SON TOXITWOD
98°6818 98€9 -~ 0ZT-00-828 - TTZT~02T 304
-98°81T8 $8€9 - 0TT~-00-828 - 69ZT~0TT TWOZg
9L070020S0 :# 2og &Axjum 4vYs
VLZP00Z0S0 4 Dog AUuoaeaoIy dgvs
Iealk IO pue ﬂhﬁOHﬂu QUﬁbh@m BIJIHNS IOZ SPUNI :3xeJ,
00°o002’2 :3TNOWY OF
-00°002’2 :JUNOWY WOI]
g SON TOoZ3TOD
00°00e2’2 €919 - 02T-SS~9TT - TIZI-02T 203,
-00°002 78€9 - 0TT-00~9TT - TT%2-0TT
~-00°000°T STv9 - OTT-00-9TIT - TIvZ-0TT
-00°000°T £€9€9 - 0TT-00-9PTT - TEPZ-01T 2WOXL

CTO0P002050 :# 2oQg Axquy gvs
80TP0020S0 :# Ddog AyoaexetH JY¥S

€T0Z - ZI0Z :xe®x Teostd
€T0Z~-82-20 - €T0Z-10-20 :seaeq
Jxodey je8png ATYIUOW

NOILVDNAHE 40 QUYOE SINOT ° IS ET0Z-TT-€0 40 SY



00°005°C
~00°006°¢2

00°0%0°2
~00°090°¢2

00°0LY
-00°0LY

00°929
~00°929

B ¢

00°006°2 :UNOWY OF

-00°00S°T :JUNOWY WOXF

o tON TOI3UOD

28€9 - 0ZT-00-828 - I8CT-0CT 2OL
€EVYTS - 0TT-00-828 - ECTZ-0TT SWOII

T80P00T0G60 :# 20g Lxjum gvs
6LZVY00T0S0 4 ooQ AyoxexeTH 4¥s 01

sefexeao 3e6png 3083702 03 gpung Butxzegsuwal :axel

00°090°¢2 :junowy O
-00°090°2 :JUNOWY WOIH
g SON TOIZX3TWoD
$gesg - 0¢T-00-8Z8 -~ I8ZT-0TT SOL
98€E9 - 0TT-00~-8Z28 - 18ZT-0TT tWOIF

080700T0S0 4 oog Axyum 4gvs
BLZP00Z0S0 :# oog AyoxeIeTH 4q¥Ss 6

sefSexsa0 388png 30eII00 03 spungy Burzxegsueiy :a1%el

00°0LY 3unowmy O
-00°0LY 23UNOowY WOXg
o ON TOIXIZUOD
98€9 -~ 0ZT-00-828 - GZTI-02T 0%
98¢€9 -~ 01T-00~-828 - STZI-0TT SWOZA

6L070020S0 :# ooq Axjum Jgvs
LLTY00Z0S0 4 ©0Q AyoxereTH J¥s 8

safexeso jefpnq 3081300 03 sSpungy BUTIISISUWRIL :IXOL

00°9Z9 dlunowmy OF
~00°929 :3unomy Woxg
4 tON TOoIxj3uo)d
98g9 - 0ZT-00-828 -~ PZTI-0TT $OL
98¢e9 -~ 0TT~00-8Z8 - PZCT-0TT SWOIH

8L0Y0020S0 :# 2oa Axjuzm gys
9LZP00Z0S0 :# Pog AUdIvISTIH 4V¥VS L

ZT0Z - ZTIOT :xe®x 1edsTJd

€T0Z~-8Z~20 -~ €£T0Z~T0-Z0 :seaeq

jxodey 23eBpng ATUluon
NOIILVONQE J0 UYO0E SINOT °IS €T0Z-TT-€0 40 sY



sefezeac j30bpng 3081100 03 3@BPNQ Butzaejsuexl :3xX9Jg

06 €02 IJUNOWY O
~-06° €02 S JUNOWY WOIT
g TON TOZQUOD
06 €02 S8ES - 02T-00-088 - zere-02T O&L
06" €02 £8€9 - OTT-00-088 - ZZTZ~0TT SWOXG

€L0P0020S0 *# ooQ Axjum gvs
TLZY00Z0S0 :# Dog AyoxeI®TH 4VS €T

sefrIoac 308png 300100 07 Spuny SuUTIZSISUBRIL & AXSI,

SL°P9Y :3UNOWY OL
~GSL° V9V :UnowWy wWoOIg
=1 tON TOxjTmoD
SL POV 98g9 - - 0CZT-00-€£€8 - TZvI-021 0L
-GL"POY 98€9 -~ 0TT-00~-€€8 - TZYT-0TT SWOIF

S809002060 4 »og Axjum Jgvs
EBZP00ZTOS0 :# oog AuyoaexeTH gvs 7T

"SEHAILVDEAN FADIAWES VUIXE IOTWWOD OL SANNJ XD

08°998°TT :junowy o4
-08°998 1T FAUNOWY  WOLH
g tON TOox3uoDd
08°998°1TT €919 - 0ZT-45~-08T - TTPT~-0CT 10&
~67°LT Ti%% - 0TT-00-08T - TTPZ-0TT
-0S° 20y 78€9 -~ 0TT-00-08T - TIPZ-0TT
~00°09¢ ZEPS - OTT-00-08T - TTvZ-01T
-8Z°Z8S 158 4 4 0TIT-00-08T - TI%2-011T
-07°T00°Y ST99 - 0TT-00-08T - TIvPZ-0TT
~50°880°¢ €8€9 -~ OTT-00-08T - TIPCT=-0TT
~00°000°¢€ , vPE9 ~ 0TT-00-08T - TIT%Z-01T
-80°GTT Y €EVI9 - 0TT-¥9d-08T - TI?Z-01T S WOXH

706€00Z0S0 :# »og Axjum gvs
L60V00Z0S0 :# Dog AyoaeIeoTH g¥S TT

sefexeac j308png x0A0D 03 spunj Burxasgysuel] :jxe]

ZI0Z - ZTTOZ :Xeex Teostd
€T0C-8Z-20 - €T0Z-10-Z0 :se7e(Q
3z0dey 308png ATUIUOK
0T sEDYa NOILVONOE A0 QUv0od SINOT °IS ETO0Z-TT-€0 40O SY



TT

cEovYd

00° 089
-00° 089

00" €L
-00° €L

9L°GES
~9L°GET
-00° 00V

Z10e -
€10C-82~-20 -

sefexsas 386png 300IICD 03 SPUNI BUTIISISUBRIY 3R]

98¢9 -
£€8E9 -

00°0s9
-00°0S89

0€1~-00-828 - T62T~
0TT-00-828 - TETZ~

?809002050
£8ZTV00Z0S0

:3UNowWyY OF
$ATNOWY WOII
g TON TOIUWOD
02T SO6L
01T TWMOZL

t§ oog Axjum JgYs
i 20Q AUoIRIOTIH JYS

sefereac 8Bpng 109II00 03 spuny Burizeisuedl :IXeL

28€9 -
98¢e9 -

00°¢€L
-00°€L

0Z2T-00-828 - TseeT-
01T-00-828 - AT 44

€807002050
187002050

:qUNOWY O
: AUNOWY WOIT
g TON TOIZUOD
0zZT 0%
01T SWOIF

i§ oog Axjum dgYS
2 2og AgozeaeTH JVYS

sefiezeso 3ebpng 00IIO0D 03 spungy BUTITZSISURILY :IXSL

98¢g9 -
98¢€9 -
€9€9 -

TT0T

9L°SE9
-9L°G¢€9

0ZT-00~L9%8 - €TZZ~
OTT~00~-L98 - €ETCTC~
0TT-00-L9%8 - €12~

2807002050
78Z%00Z0S0

tIRSE TeosTd

€T0Z-T0-20
azodey 398png ATUYIUOH

NOILVONAE A0 QUVYOH SINOT °4S

tgejeqg

23UNOWY OF
$JUNOWY WOII
g TON TOI3UOD
02T SO4L
0TT
01T SWOXg

¢ oog Axjum 4¥S
% oog AuniezeTH dY¥YS

€T02-T1-€0 40 SY

ST

ST

Pt



sefexeac 306png 2109100 03 Spuni BUTIISISTRIL 3IXeL

00°000°2 :3UNOWY O,
~-00°000°2 P 3UNOWY WOXH
= SON TOoIXIJuoD
00°000°2 98€9 - 0¢T-00-918 - TEET-0ZT 0L
-00°000°€ 98€9 - 0TT-00-9T8 - TEET-0TT FWOIA

L8OVY00ZO0S0 4 D0g Axjuxy 4v¥s
S8ZP00Z0S0 4 2og AydpaeieTH 4VS LT

2102 - TIOZ :axesx Tedsty
€T0Z-82-20 ~ €T0Z-T0-20 ‘:®e3eq
axzodey J98png ATUlUoH
zT 1 @OYd NOILVONAE J0 Q¥VYOE SINOT °IS €102-IT~€0 40 SY



€T0Z ‘8T - ST U2xwK DTORTVY eITISY ‘XNeTise) TAISY) ‘MOXION essexey
°rIT ‘0B®vOTYD UT 8OUSIBIUOD JISY O3 Sesusdxs [PABRITL ISAO0D 03 ISJUBIY :IAXSL

00°006°‘¢€ :junowy OF
-00°0068°€ : JUNOWY WOXI
g SON TOIXIJTOD
00°00s8°¢€ £8€9 - €EC-WY-09G - LZTIT~€€Z toL
-00°006°¢€ yZ19 - €ET-HY-09G6 - LZTL-EEZ SWOII

8609002050 :# oog Axjum gVS
6TEV00Z0S0 1§ oog AudpaeaeTH J¥s ¢

sTeTIele Buipeey
pepIng :eurl ATddns 7IT ‘0BRDTUD JUSDUTA SITISY ‘TURZZed BIXBRD €107
‘gT - ST UPIEH ‘edusIsiuc) dISY 8yl 103 uortiexiasthbex I037 pepesu SPUNG 3IXSL

00°00L°¢E :3UNOWY OL
~00°00L°€E : JUNOWY WOXJ
& SON Tox3ue)
00°009°% £8€9 - EET-HY~-TT9 -~ LZTT-EEZ
00°006 €8ES - €ET-WY¥~ZT9 - LZTIT-EEC
00°006 €8€9 - €ET-WY-TT9 -~ LZTT-EEZ
00°00T 1199 - €EZT-WY-ZT9 - LZTIT-EEZ 0L
-00°00T 78€9 - €EZ-WY~ZT9 -~ LZTT-E€Z
~00°008 P8E9 - EET-WN~-ZT9 -~ LZTIT~EET
-00°00¢ €9€9 - €ET-NY~-ZT9 - LZIT~EET
-00°009°2 %99 - EECT-WY-ZT9 - LZIT-CEC SWmOXJ

Z00Y00Z0S0 *# 2oQ Axjum Jvs
€9Z¥00Z0S0 :# 20Q AUdIRIOTH dVS T

€0-20 ¥SYI I FILIL-E€ET

CL0Z - TT0T 388X TedIS8TJd
€T02-82~20 - £T0Z2~-T0-T0 :s8ejeq
axodey aebfpng ATUIUOR
€T SEDYL NOILYONdIE 40 QUY0od SIN0T 4S8 £€10Z2-TT-€0 40 SV¥Y



vt

SEOVA

00°000°2
~-00°000°¢

00°000°T
~00°000“T

*TeARIT] UMO] JO INO 03 uﬂﬂﬂﬂﬁwk seanjTpuedxe xo03 Aed o3 JHe,

00°000°2 13unowy of,
-00°000°2 :JUNOWY WOIJ
g SON TOX3UuOD
£8€9 -~ £62-58-078 - BEECE~E6Z 304,
TLES - £6Z-S8-09%8 -~ BEEE-E62 SWOXH

888£0020S0 :# 2og Axjum gvs
8L070020S0 :# o0Q AUdIeI®TH 4V¥S 2

“€T0T ‘7z Axenageg-~of Lxenuep BPTIOTI ‘erepaxepner]
3I04 UT 8dusILIUOD SHYS PUSIIR O3 UTIIEH AIRWSSOY ICF SpUng :3xe]

00°000°T :unowy O
-00°000°T :UNOWY WOIH
g SON TOX3UWoD
€8€9 - €6Z-D0~6T8 - YIZEZ-€6T $OL
y8€9 - €6Z-9N~-6T8 - v1ez-€62 TWOI

8007002050 :4# ooQq Axjum 4gvs
€0Zv00T0S0 :# oog Ayoxex®TH d¥s T

€0-20 D0¥d QFd INIW-£62

TI0Z - ZTTI0T :axeex TensStd

€T0Z-8Z-20 - €T0Z-10-20 :se3eq

jxodey 3ebpng ATUIuoR
NOILVYONAE 40 qQUvY0od SINOT °iS €T0Z-TT-€0 4O SV



cg308loxd BUTUOTITPUOD
IT® I0TId WOXZ seoueTe] BUTUTPWSI S3VPTTOSTOD PUR INO SSOTD O :3XeJL

T8°2TZ L6T E junomy of
-I8°2TC L6T 2 :JUNOWY WOXH
g ON TOX3UOoD
I8°ZIZL6T 2 zZs9 - 606-TH-G06 - $Z9Z-606 o4
-00°00ZT zZZTS9 - 606-FH~-E€8T - $Z9Z~606
~00°G9%’T zZ59 -~ 606-TH~9ZS -~ ¥Z9Z~-606
~00°§G9°TT 22589 - 606-TH-9$8S -~ $Z9Z~-606
~90°88L"LST ZZS9 - 606-FH-98T - $Z92-606
~29°9TZ"ZLT ZZS9 - 606-TH~-Z0G - $Z292-606
~19°G66 ‘LGS gT89 -~ 606-TH-655 ~ $Z9Z-606
~9%°T9€ ‘886G z259 -~ 606~-TAH-0ZF - vZ92-606
-80°TES 904 zZ59 -~ 606-TH-%ZS5 - $Z92-606 SWOIF

LOOP00Z0G0 ¢ Sog Axjuzm avs
TOZP00Z0S0 :# ooQ AyoxexsTH g¥s ¢z

sjoeloaxd SutuoTaTpUOD
AT I0Tad WOIF SeduRIR| BUTUTEWSX ©3EPTTOSUOD PuR 3INO OSOTY OF :a¥X8g

00°0TP‘8S :3UNOWY OF,
-00°0T¥%°8S :3JUNOWY WO
=1 SON TOIJIUOD
00°0T?’8S 2289 - 606-TH-PZE - $Z9Z~606 t05
-00°0TY‘8S 2Zs9 - 606-TH~-TTT - vZ9Z-606 2WOLF

LOGEQOTOS0 :§# Dog Axjuzx gvs
00T7002050 :# oog AypxexeoTH dV¥s T

6002 D/¥Y [ro¥E aud-606

€I0Z -~ TT0Z :aeez TedSTJ
€T0Z2-82-20 - €T0Z-T0-Z0 :s@3eQ
1zx0dey 2eBpng ATujuon
€T $EDYd NOIL¥ONAE J0 qQUVOo"d SINOT °IS €T0Z-TT~€0 40 S¥



8 do¥d-—sqeT Jejnduwon xoz zejndwoo aseyoand oj sSpuUng :3Xel

00°860°9%¢ :JUNOWY OF,
-00°860'9%% : JUNOWY WOIH
= TON TOIX3UOD
00°860°9%S €979 - 0T6-00-S06 - 6Z9Z-016 O
-00°860797%5 €EE9 - 0T6-00~G06 - 629Z-016 TWOI

LBEPOOZTOSO :# Dog Lxjum gvs
6857002050 :# Doog AUYDIRISTH d¥S T

puog-foxg TeTIded-0I6

CT0Z - ZI0Z :xee@x TedsTtd
€T0T~82-20 - €T0Z-T0-TO :se3eq
3xo0dey 3886png ATUIuon
ST s FqOY NOILVYDONCE 40 MY0d SINOT °4S £T10Z2-TT~€0 4O SV



LT

sEDYd

T9°607°90Z°€
-T9°609°90Z°€

00°860°9%S
~00°86079%S

°s o9

T8°229°6SC’C
-T8°229°6SC°¢C

00°000°€
-00°000°€

00°00Z°L
~-00°002°L

°8 se

SY°STIV LT
~80°LLS’E

e o8

PE E€LO’LSE
~ZL°TT6°06¢E

ATup saszsueil - AZewnng puUng

2107 ~ ZI0Z :xe®xi TedsTd

€T0Z-82~-20 - €T0ZT-10-Z0 :se®3e(Q

jzodey 3885png ATYITOH
NOILYDAGE A0 QUY0d SINOI

* LS

Ods
Woxg TRIOL IDTIASTA

puog-~Loxg Tetrided-0I6 o5
puog-foxg Terided-0T6 WoxI TeIOL pung

6002 O/¥ L£O¥d dAYD-606 Ok
600Z O/Y £O¥d dV¥D-606 WOoxg TRIOL pund

€TTT POATUTH-E6T O&
€TIZT PRATRTIH-£67 WOXJ TRVI0OL pung

€0-20 ¥SYI I FTLIL-CET O
€0-20 ¥SVYI I FILIL-€E€Z WOIJ T30 pung

UNOE SHEHOVIEL-0TT O
NOd SHIHOVAL-(0ET WoXg Telod pund

Te3USPTOUI~-0TIT O
T®3USPTOUI-QTT WOIJ TeI0L pPund

€10C~TT-€0 40 SY






ITEM#:
04-25-13-07

APPROVED AT THE
MARCH 14, 2013 MEETING







ITEM#:
04-25-13-08

WITHDRAWN







ITEM#:
04-25-13-09

APPROVED AT THE
MARCH 14, 2013 MEETING




10



ITEM#:
04-25-13-10

APPROVED AT THE
MARCH 14, 2013 MEETING




11



ITEM#:
04-25-13-11

WITHDRAWN




12



ITEM#:
04-25-13-12

APPROVED AT THE
MARCH 14, 2013 MEETING




13



ITEM#:
04-25-13-13

APPROVED AT THE
MARCH 14, 2013 MEETING




14



ITEM#:
04-25-13-14

APPROVED AT THE
MARCH 14, 2013 MEETING




15



43+ BOARD RESOLUTION

Date: March 5, 2013 Agenda item : L

To: Dr. Kelvin R. Adams, Superintendent Action: X

From: Patrick Wallace, Exec. Dir., Communications

Other Transaction Descriptors:
(i.e.: Sole Source, Ratification)

RFP/Bid # 006-1213 Marketing Material Production and Placement

Action to be Approved: RFP/Bid

SUBJECT: To ratify a contract with FUSE for marketing material production and placement for the period of February 1,
2013 through June 30, 2013 at a cost not to exceed $68,750 for media production and placement which includes a 10%
contingency of $6,250. The contract will contain an option to renew for up to 2 additional years with the approval of the
Board.

BACKGROUND: FUSE was selected through the RFP process to produce electronic, print and digital media materials for
the purpose of marketing the St. Louis Public Schools. FUSE will also be charged with buying the appropriate time on
television or radio or space for print and digital media. The goal is to enroll new students and improve public perception
of the District. A future spend of up to $400,000 for outside media may be directed by FUSE.

Although FUSE did not submit the lowest bid, the review committee selected FUSE based on the company’s previous
marketing experience with the District and its overall experience in the marketing arena compared to the marketing
experience of its competitor.

Accountability Plan Goals: Goal IV: Parent Community Involvement Objective/Strategy: IV.A.

FUNDING SOURCE: (ex: 111 Location Code - 00 Project Code -110 Fund Type — 2218 Function— 6411 Object Code)

Fund Source: 812-00-110-2322-6362 GOB Requisition #: 10132748
Amount: $68,750.00

Fund Source: Requisition #:

Amount:

Fund Source: | Requisition #:

Amount:

Cost Not to Exceed: $68,750.00 | [_IPending Funding Availability Vendor #:600014659

Department: Public Information

Requestor:

P\é'f’rick Wallace, Exec. Dir., Communications

Dr. Kelvin R. Adams, Superintendent

Revised 07/66/2011 Reviewed By: Reviewed By: Reviewed By:



December 21, 2012

MEMORANDUM

TO: Dr. Kelvin Adams

FROM: Patrick Wallace

RE: RFP 006-1213 Marketing Material Production and Placement

The evaluation took place on November 20 and 27, 2012. The evaluation committee consisted
of the following:

Dr. Alice Roach Chief of Staff
Blake Youde Deputy Superintendent, Institutional Advancement
Patrick Wallace Executive Director, Communications

Bids from the following companies were evaluated and recorded as follows:

Company Name ‘ ; Bid Amount Rating Award (Y/N)
E’Little Communications Group $119,230 247 No
FUSE | | $178,800 275 Yes

One copy of each evaluation is on file along with this evaluation record in the risk management
department.

Patrick Wallace
Executive Director, Communications

801 North 11" Street 63101  Phone (314) 345-4449  Fax (314) 345-2667



g B 74 dnouic) suonedTUNUIUIO)) SMr] g
I §Le ASNA
SJUSUIWIO)) (019 ‘2°3°1) B0 L sid IOPUSA JO SUIEN

Sunyjuey uonenesy

SIOIAIDG UOTINPOLJ PUR [RLISJRJA] SUNIYIBIA
Areuroung uoneneAy I




16



43 BOARD RESOLUTION

Date: March 8, 2013 Agenda ltem :

To: Dr. Kelvin R. Adams, Superintendent Action: X

From: Nahed Chapman, Exec. Dir., ESOL

Action to be Approved: Contract Renewal cher Transaction Dggcrl_ptors: Sole Source
(i.e.: Sole Source, Ratification)
Previous Board Resolution # 12-06-11-16

Prior Year Cost $35,000

SUBJECT: To approve a sole source contract renewal with Pearson, Inc., Teacher Education and Development Group to
deliver "SIOP (Sheltered Instruction Observation Protocol) Observation and Feedback" training on April 27 and May 17,
2013 and to deliver "SIOP Component Enhancement" training on August 17 and September 7, 2013 to 10 teachers to
serve as school and district sheltered-instruction resources at a cost not to exceed $20,000.

BACKGROUND: This is the third year of a three year Math-Science Partnership (MSP) grant for mainstream K-5 teachers
with English Learners. All 45 grant teachers have received various Pearson SIOP training to date: " SIOP Overview" and
"SIOP Math Enrichment"; some district administrators and AICs received "SIOP for Administrators". The purpose of the
third-year SIOP trainings is to build district capacity with 1 ESOL and 7 mainstream teachers to serve as school and district
resources in assisting colleagues with sheltered strategies for ELLs in math classes. Creating this cadre of teachers is one
of the five goals of the MSP grant.

Accountability Plan Goals: Goal II: Highly Qualified Staff Objective/Strategy: 1I-D

FUNDING SOURCE: (ex: 111 Location Code - 00 Project Code -110 Fund Type — 2218 Function— 6411 Object Code)

Fund Source: 838-VU-292-1152-8319 Non-GOB Requisition #: 10133620
Amount: $20,000.00

Fund Source: Requisition #:

Amount:

Fund Source: ] Requisition #:

Amount:

Cost Not to Exceed: $20,000.00 | [[JPending Funding Availability Vendor #: 600006008

Department: ESOL Program J %A/L)
MVW

Angela Banks, Budget Director

Requestor: Nahed Chapman

isher, CFO/Treasurer

Dr. Nicole Williams, Deﬁ Supt Academics Dr. Kelvin R. Adams, Superintendent

M

Revised 67/06/2011 Reviewed By: __.~ Reviewed By: Reviewed By:



REQUEST FOR
SOLE SOURCE PURCHASE

Requestor: Nahed Chapman Date: February 20, 2013

Department / School: ESOL Program Phone Number: 664-1066

Definition: Sole Source is a good or service that is only available from one (1) source (vendor
manufacturer, etc...)

Unique Goods / Services Requested for Sole Source Purchase (describe in detail below)

Two days of professional development on SIOP (Sheltered Instruction Observation Protocol)
Observation and Feedback in spring, 2013 and two days of SIOP Component Enrichment in
early fall, 2013 for a group of ten teachers.

Vendor Name: Pearson, Inc. Email: matt.kattman @pearson.com

Vendor Contact: Matt Kattman Phone Number 612-850-8045

Justification Information

1. Why the uniquely specified goods are required?

Pearson, Inc. is the only source for these two specific trainings. The participating teachers have
received SIOP trainings from Pearson in June, 2011 and June, 2012.

2. Why good or services available from other vendors /competitors are not acceptable?

To provide consistency in presentation of material and to provide feedback on a protocol that the
teachers are familiar with gives consistency to the ongoing development of their increasing
knowledge of effective teaching strategies for ELLs.

3. Other relevant information if any (i.e., attach manufacturer’s statement verifying
exclusive availability of product etc...)

See attached proposal from Pearson.

4. List the Names of other Vendors contacted & Price Quotes:

I certify the above information is true and correct and that I have no financial, personal or other
beneficial interest in the specified vendor.

Your sole source request will not be approved without the required signatures below:

Department Head Date
CFO Date
Superintendent Date

Purchasing Department Page 1 of 2 May 2007



Sole Source Checklist
1. Check one of the following:

One-of-a-kind The commodity or service has no competitive product and is
available from only one supplier.
Prior to checking this box you must complete each of the following tasks:
e Search the internet for companies providing similar services.
e Search purchasing files to determine if district has a record of vendors(s)
that have provided similar services.
e Document search activities and findings

0 Compatibility The commodity or service must match existing brand of equipment for
compatibility and is available from only one vendor.
Prior to checking this box you must complete the following task:
e Provide documentation from the provider of the original
equipment/services that the equipment/services in question must be
provided by the vendor in question

O Replacement Part The commodity is a replacement part for a specific brand of
existing equipment and is available from only one supplier.
Prior to checking this box you must complete the following task:
e Document a search for additional suppliers

O Delivery Date Only one supplier can meet necessary delivery requirements.
Prior to checking this box you must complete each of the following tasks:
e Document delivery date and quotes from at least two other vendors
e Document rationale in support of treating the delivery date as mission
critical

X Research Continuity The commodity or service must comply with established
District standards and is available from only one supplier.
Prior to checking this box you must complete the following task:

e Document district adoption of standard (i.e. Textbook adoption)

O Unique Design The commodity or service must meet physical design or quality
requirements and is available from only one supplier.
Prior to checking this box you must complete the following task:
e Sole supplier (i.e. Regional Distributor)

| Emergency URGENT NEED for the item or service does not permit soliciting
competitive bids, as in cases of emergencies, disasters, etc.
Prior to checking this box you must complete the following task:
e Complete Emergency Purchase Form
2. If the Sole Source Criteria is met, then complete the Sole Source Form;
3. If the Sole Source Criteria are not met, then the item must be bid.

Purchasing Department Page 2 of 2 May 2007



sAmT LOWs
PRI SCHOULT

Vendor Performance Report

Type of report: Final x|_| Quarterly [ |

Report Date: February 20, 2013

Dept/School: ESOL, Bilingual, Migrant Program

Reported By: Nahed Chapman

Vendor: Pearson, Inc.

Vendor #: 600008008

Contract #/P.O/ #: 4500160074

Contract Name: Sheltered Instruction Observation
Protocol (SIOP) Training, SIOP Math Enrichment,
SIOP for Administrators

Contract Amount: $ 35,000

Award Date: 12/06/11

Purpose of Contract (Brief Description):
To deliver a 3-day initial overview of the SIOP Model, to provide Math Enrichment in June, 2012 and to
provide SIOP for Administrators, Sept. 2012

Unsatisfactory

Performance Ratings: Summarize the vendor’s performance and circle the number which best describes their performance
in that category. See Vendor Performance Report Instructions for explanations of categories and numeric ratings (please
attach additional sheets if necessary). Ratings 5 = Exceptional; 4 = Very Good; 3 = Satisfactory; 2 = Marginal; 1 =

Category

Rating

Comments (Brief)

Quality of Goods / Services

Superb and expert preparation of content and delivery;
participants rated presenters highly

Timeliness of Delivery or
Performance

All presenters were early and stayed late.

Business Relations

Pearson, Inc. was very professional in all business
dealings.

Customer Satisfaction

Grant managers and grant participants were all pleased
with Pearson and the presenters.

Cost Control

Pricey, but Pearson, Inc. delivers a quality product.

Average Score

ok 4 4 4 e
W Re B mRwaR s we R mowe s —nmu.hﬁ

Add above ratings: divide the total by the number of
areas being rated.

shall be honored during this renewal period.

Please Check

Would you select / recommend this vendor again? Please be aware that an answer of yes authorizes the Purchasing
Department to seek renewal of the available option year for this contract. All items and conditions within the current contract

YesX[] No[]




A Professional Learning Proposal

1900 East Lake Avenue Proposal valid through May 20, 2013
Glenview, IL 60025

Telephone: 800-348-4474

www.PearsonSchool.com

February 20, 2013

To: Nahed Chapman
Director
St. Louis Public Schools
801 N 11th St
St. Louis, MO 63101

We are pleased to provide you with the aftached proposal for Pearson’s implementation of professional development services
during the upcoming academic school year.

Pearson knows the key to successful academic achievement in schools is driven by improved teaching in the classroom. Drawing
on more than a quarter of a century of quality research and professional development experience, Pearson provides an unparalleled
collection of K-12 teacher educational programs. Pearson offers a new approach to professional development by fusing a unique
research-based learning model with innovative technology. This combination creates a solid foundation of teacher practices fully
capable of supporting successful student learning while driving towards district attainment of federal and state mandates.

We are very enthusiastic about this opporiunity to work with you, and we look forward to our partnership in building a
district-wide program for improved instruction.

Please contact me for any guestions you have or needs for clarification.

Matt Kattman
Office: 612-850-8045
Fax.  877-260-2530

matt.kaftman @pearson.com

Submit Purchase Order to: Pearson
P.0O. Box 2500
Lebanon, IN 46052
Phone: (800) 848-3500
Fax: (877) 260-2530
Emait  K12cs@custhelp.com

Pearson - Confidential Teach and Learn Access and Inform Develop and Lead Page 1



Comprehensive Services Implementation

Pearson School Achievement Services (SAS) is Pearson’s premier consultative educational services division. We are dedicated to helping our
customers show more results, reach students, and change lives by helping educators improve the quality of instruction in ali classrooms. Our
deep and broad-reaching support services and highly-qualified education consultants have consistently proven to provide the strongest
partnership opportunities for states, districts, and schools, enabling leaders and teachers to navigate fundamental and dramatic shifts in
instructional leadership and classroom practices.

No matter your service need, SAS provides assistance with programs as diverse as specific content, grade-ievel, program, product, or
technology implementations, to wider reaching objectives such as successful ELL integration strategies and practices; Educator Effectiveness
processes, technologies, tools, and training; 1:1 Technology Initiatives; and, college and career readiness demands around transitions to the
Common Core State Standards and other standards movements and initiatives.

Betlow, you will find an overview of possible face-to-face and online training professional development, leadership growth, and local or
system-wide change initiative services available to support an effective implementation that meets your specific needs.

This Collaborative Discussion between The District and your Pearson representative are aimed at assessing your fraining and professional
development needs.

Obijectives for Planning for Results include:

» |dentifying goals and objectives for improving instruction and leaming

« ldentifying the current instructional practices, which will serve as a building block for attaining district goals
= Designing an appropriate training and professional deveiopment plan and delivery format

Professional Development

Pearson is committed to providing professional development offerings that are intended to change practice over time. Through

multi-session courses, teachers gain a deeper understanding of content as well as research-based pedagogical approaches towards teaching.
The goals of any implementation of instructional programs are:

1. Successful implementation of the program

2. Fidelity of implementation in order to obtain the proven research-based results;

3. Analysis of data reports in order to improve instruction and increase student achievement; and
4. Professional reflection for continued professional growth and improved instructional practices.

Pearson is ready to provide a comprehensive plan of implementation services to ensure a rise in student achievement. in order for our
service’s programming to be successful, however, we need a commitment by the district for consistent and dedicated attendance and
participation by all teachers, coaches, and school administrators. Pearson is also eager to evaluate its services programming through
both qualitative (i.e., surveys) and quantitative data analysis (i.e., attendance/participation rates, analysis of district-level student data).

Pearson - Confidential Teach and tearm Access and Inform Develop and Lead Page 2



Sheltered Instruction Obeervation Protocol Modai - SIOP

Pearson Teacher Education and Development with SIOP®
Pearson is committed to providing professional development offerings that intend to change teacher practice over time. Through onsite training and consultation, online
courses, and classroom foliow-up, teachers gain a deeper understanding of contsnt as well as research-based teaching approaches.

Pearson is pleased to offer this proposal for Enhancing Instructicn for English Learners with the SIOP® Model. Based on the original SIOP Model developed by Drs.
Echevarria, Short, and Vogt, this long-term program provides prefessional development and tailored onsite support for educators teaching English Learners (ELs).
Pesarson pariners with you fo build a sustainable sheltered instruction model to help all students, especially ELs, succeed and meet federal and state AYP

requirements.

SIOP® Program Summary

The Enhancing Instruction for English Learners with the SIOP Model presents a well-articulated, practical model of sheliered instruction that can be implemented
uniformly throughout the district across all content areas. Participants receive the training and support needed to effectively implement the SIOP Model to teach content
to students who are also learning English. The program supporis teachers in their content area, and can be coupled with follow-up sessions to deepen their
understanding of the mode! and to teach how they can effectively use it to refine language objectives and lesson plans.

The goal of the professional development program is for educators to gain an understanding of sheltered instruction using the SIOP Model, and how implementing
SIOP can be effective for improving instruction for ELs and all students. Services can include onsite professional development, online leaming, or a blended approach,
and we have specific offerings for:

® Teachers

® Administrators

® Coaches

Services within the program ensure participants implement robust sheltered instruction lessons in their educational setting by: building collaborative sessions with
fellow educators to reflect and improve sheltered instruction; observing Pearson’s SIOP Service Consultants and being coached in techniques to improve lesson
delivery and implementation; and gaining insight on how best to apply what was learned to their own educationat setting.

The program also includes iraining coupled with consultation to further support consistency in implementing the model across schools within the district.

® Educators gain motivation and knowledge of how to teach the EL population.

® Participants get a deeper understanding of EL issues and the research supporting the instructional appreach to meet their needs.

® Educators gain a greater understanding of the eight components through the Component Enrichment service. Each component is
explained in greater detail and additional interactive strategies are used to increase transfer of knowledge and feedback.

® Educators transfer knowledge into practice through Implementation Enrichment consisting of observation, coaching or consultation
with campus administrators.

® Services within the program are designed to be more sustaining and support teachers in classroom implementation.

® Educators leam how to use the observation protocol to observe, rate and review lessons. As a result, lesson plans can be continuously
improved lo develop the most robust sheltered lesson for the classroom. Lesson Plans are often discussed and shared among
teachers so curriculum area instruction can be improved.

The Enhancing Instruction for English Learners with the SIOP Model is designed to support educators with extensive follow-up options while building strong
communication between Pearson staff and your staff. The feedback obtained ensures that we meet your expectations and deliver a cohesive model.

Overview of SIOP®

The Sheltered instruction Observation Protocol Model (Echevarria, Vogt & Short, 2004) was developed to provide teachers of ELs with a well articulated, practical
model of sheltered instruction. In 2005 Pearson acquired the SIOP Insfitute to deepen our professional development offerings and to support the needs of faculty and
administrators in leaming about and implementing this innovative teaching model. Based on the success of the SIOP Instilute, Pearson worked with the authors to
develop districting training in the SIOP Model. The SIOP Model is currently used in hundreds of schoois across the U.S. as well as in several other countries. The
model facilitates high quality instruction for ELs in content area teaching. While the SIOP Model was developed specifically to ensure quality instruction for ELs, it has
been shown to be effective in addressing the needs of all students.

Research

The SIOP Modei offers a research-based approach to sheltered lesson planning and implementation that has proven effective with ELs throughout the United States.
The model was developed in a seven year national research project (1996-2603) sponsored by the Center for Research on Education, Diversity & Excellence
(CREDE). Through literature review and with the collaboration of practicing teachers, researchers identified features of instruction present in high-quality sheltered
lessons lo generale the SIOP Model. The model was refined over multiple years of field testing and consists of eight components and 30 features that are explained in
the book, Making Content Comprehensible for English Learners: The SIOP Modsl {Echevarria, Vogt & Short, 2007).

The SIOP Model has been shown to be a valid and reliable measure of sheltered instruction (Guarino, Echevarria, Short, Schick, Forbes, & Rueda, 2001). Early
research indicates the SIOP Model approach is effective for learners at all grade levels across subject areas. In a study examining the effects of the SIOP Model on
student achievement, students whose teachers implemented the SIOP Model to a high degree in middle school classes outperformed those students in sheltered
classes whose teachers were unfamiliar with the model. Critical features of high quality instruction for ELs are embedded within the SIOP Model. The Center for
Applied Linguistics is currently conducting further research in secondary schools. This ongoing project is facilitating professional development on the SIOP Model and
examining the effect of SIOP-based instruction on student achievement in core content areas such as math, science, social studies, and English language arts.

Pearson - Confidential Teach and Learn Access and Inform Develop and Lead Page 3



SIOP Services

Units

Services Participants  Service Days

Price

SIOP Observation and Feedback (4 teacher observations per day maximum) 8 2
SIOP national facuity will observe teachers and delfiver feedback sessions including a conference to plan and reffect on instruction and provide
a summary fo school adminisirators.

$10,000.00

Component Enrichment Courses

SIOP Component Enrichment (1-day) (30 participant maximum) 10 2
These one-day sessions will help educators deepen their understanding of individual components of the Model.

implementation Timeframe April 27, May 18, August 17 and September 7 2013

$10,000.00

20,000.00 |

Please submit PO for $20,000.00
Pearson

P.0O. Box 2500
Lebanon, IN 46052
Phone: (800) 848-9500

20,000.00

Fax:  (877) 260-2530
Emait: K12cs@custhelp.com

This is a price quotation for customer's convenience only and not an offer to contract. All quotations are subject to review and final acceptance by a duly authorized
representative of Pearson Education at its offices. Not responsible for typographical or other errors. Pearson Education's standard licensing terms and
conditions will apply to any order. Dates are not guaranteed unless a valid PO or signed contract is received by Pearson.

All pricing in this quotation is exclusive of any applicable sales, use or other similar taxes or duties. The customer is responsible for any such taxes or duties

Pearson - Confidential Tedch and Leam Access and Inform Develop and Lead

Page 4



Terms and Conditions _

NCS Pearson, Inc ("Pearson’") has made 2 propesal to provide certain prof

I t services to the school, school district or other entity (" Customer"')

¥

named in Pearson's propesal to which these terms and conditions are attached (the "Proposal"). These terms and conditions, referred to herein as the

" Agreement”, set forth the terms upon which Pearson proposes to deliver such services. By Customer’s acceptance of the Propoesal, as acknowledged by Customer's
provision of 2 purchase order or other confirmation of Customer's placement of an order for the services proposed, Customer acknowledges that Custemer has
reviewed the terms of this Agreement and agrees that Pearson’s and Custemer's respective rights and obligations with respect to the services outlined in the

Proposal will be governed hereby.

1. SERVICES. Customer agrees to purchase, and Pearson agrees to furnish in
accordance with this Agreement, those professional services (the "Services") that
are described in the Proposal that Customer has accepted by providing a purchase
order or other confirmation of Customer’s placement of an order for the Services.
Pearson does not guarantee any estimates, including delivery dates.

2. PROJECT MANAGER. Each party shall designate one of its employees or
consultants to serve as Project manager. The Customer's Project Manager shall

be empowered to act as Customer’s authorized representative for coordination of
the Services under this Agreement and to respond to Pearson's questions and
requests. Pearson's Project manager shall be responsible for managing the Services
provided to Customer. Either party may replace its Project Manager upon

written notice to the other.

3. CUSTOMER RESPONSIBILITIES. C shall, at Cust 's expense,
furnish Pearson with all information, facilities, or other resources reasonably
required by Pearson to perform the Services, incliding, without limitation,
information as to Customer's data, data definitions, programs, files, business
requirements. documentation requirements and operating procedures.

4, FEES. Customer agrees to pay Pearson the fees specified in the Proposal. All
invoices are due net thirty (30) days from receipt. Customer shall also pay all
applicable sales, use or other taxes or duties, however designated, which are

imposed on any Services or any associated products or materials provided by

Pearson pursuant to this Agreement. If Customer claims tax-exempt status,
Customer will provide Pearson with evidence of such tax exemption upon request.

35, TERM; TERMINATION. This Agreement shail remain in force until the
earlier of termination by either party in accordance with this Section 5, or
completion of the Services. If this Agreement includes access to software or
online content for a stated license period, and Customer later renews its access

to such software or online content (which renewal will be at Pearson's then-
current fees for same), then this Agreement shall remain in effect for such
renewal period as it relates to Customer's license to use such software or

online content.

Either party may terminate this Agreement in the event that the other party

has materially breached its obligations hereunder and such breach is not cured
within thirty {30) days of the breaching party's receipt of written notice of such
breach. In the event of any ter ion of this Agre , Customer shall not
be relieved of any obligation to pay for Services or other items delivered prior
to the date of termination. In addition, the provisions of Section 6, 7 and 8
shall survive the termination of this Agreement.

6. OWNERSHIP RIGHTS. If Pearson provides customer with any documen-
tation manuals, software, access to online content, and/or any other materials
(collectively, "Materials™) as a result of the provision of Services, then: (a)
Customer acknowledges and agrees that the Materials are protected by copyright,
trade secret, and other intellectual property rights, and all such intellectual

property rights shall remain vested in Pearson; and (b) Pearson grants Customer

a non-exclusive, non-transferable license to use the Materials solely for its internal
educational purposes. This license shall be perpetual, in the case of Materials
provided in paper form. For software or access to online content granted for a
stated license period, the term of the license will be for the period for which
Pearson’s applicable license fees were paid. Customer shalt not make copies of
any Materials or share the Materials with any third party unless authorized to do

50 in writing by Pearson. The extent that Customer may have any input into

the creation of any Materials, Customer hereby grants, assigns and transfers to
Pearson all of Customer's right, title, and interest in and to such Materials, including
copyright and present and future patent rights, throughout the world. Customer
agrees to execute such further instruments as Pearson may reasonably request to
evidence, esiablish, maintain or protect its rights in, and ownership of, the
Materials. All rights not expressly granted to Customer herein are reserved (o
Pearson.

Pearson - Confidential Teach and Leam

Access and Inform

Pearson shall be free to use for any purpose, without restriction, any ideas, concepts,
know-how, and techniques that are used or acquired in the course of providing the
Services, so long as Pearson does not disclose or use any Customer-specific data or
confidential information without Customer’s express. written consent. Customer
acknowledges that Pearson's personnel performing the Services may provide similar
services from time to time to other parties. This Agreement shall not prevent
Pearson from providing such similar services to other parties or in any way restrict
Pearson in the use of its personnel.

7. WARRANTIES; LIMITATIONS. Pearson warranis the Services provided
shall be performed by qualified personnel in a good and workimanlike manner
consistent with industry standards.

THE EXPRESS WARRANTIES SET FORTH IN THIS SECTION 7 ARE THE
ONLY WARRANTIES GIVEN BY Pearson WITH RESPECT TO THE SERVICES
AND MATERIALS PROVIDED PURSUANT TO THIS AGREEMENT. Pearson
MAKES NO OTHER WARRANTIES, EXPRESS, IMPLIED OR ARISING BY
CUSTOM OR TRADE USAGE WITH RESPECT TO THE SERVICES OR
MATERIALS PROVIDED UNDER THIS AGREEMENT, AND SPECIFICALLY
DISCLAIMS ANY WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR
ANY PARTICULAR PURPOSE. Pearson DOES NOT GUARANTEE THAT THE
SERVICES AND MATERIALS PROVIDED PURSUANT TO THIS AGREEMENT
WILL MEET THE CUSTOMER'S NEEDS.

8. LIMITATION OF LIABILITY. Pearson shail not be liable for any special,
exemplary, incidental, or consequential damages, or lost profits, lost savings
tost funding, or loss of b or data, arising from this agreement or the
provisions of the services and materials pursuant thereto, even if Pearson

has been advised of the possibility of such damages or they are foreseeable.

In any event, in respect of any claim, demand or action arising from this
agreement against Pearson, whether based in contract, tort or otherwise,
customer shall be limited to receiving actual and direct damages in a
maximum aggregate amount equal to the charges paid by customer for the
applicable services or materials on which the claim is based.

9. FORCE MAJEURE. In the event Pearson’s personnel fail to perform the Services
because of illness, resignation or other causes beyond Pearson's reasonable

control, Pearson shall use commercially reasonable efforts to replace such personne!

within a reasonable time, but shall in no event be liable for any delays in the perform-

ance of its obligations hereunder due to causes beyond its reasonable control,

including, but not limited to, fire, strike, civil disturbance, acts of God.

10. GOVERNING LAW. This Agreement shall be subject to and interpreted in
accordance with the laws of the State of Minnesota, without regard o its principles
of conflicts of laws.

11. SEVERABILITY. If any provision of this Agreement is invalid or unenforceable
under any applicable statute or rule of law, this Agreement shall be enforced to
the maximum extent possible to effectuate the original express intent hereof.

12. ASSIGNMENT; SUBCONTRACTING. Customer may not assign all er any
portion of this Agreement without Pearson's written consent. Pearson may subcontract,
assign or delegate any of its rights and duties under this Agreement without

the consent of Customer

13. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, together with the Propesal, constitutes
the entire agreement and understanding of the parties with respect to the subject

matter hereof, and supersedes all prior oral and written agreements and

understandings relating thereto. The terms and conditions of this Agreement shall

prevail notwithstanding any variance with the terms and conditions of any purchase

order or other documentation submitted by Customer. This Agreement shall not be
modified or amended without the written agreement of both parties.

Develop and Lead Page 5



17



£ BOARD RESOLUTION

Date: March 7,2013 Agenda ltem : ﬁ g Mﬁ%j?

To: Dr. Kelvin R. Adams, Superintendent Action: X

From: Leon Fisher, CFO/Treasurer

Other Transaction Descriptors:

Action to be Approved: Contract Renewal (i.e.: Sole Source, Ratification)

Previous Board Resolution # 05-03-12-04
Prior Year Cost $0.00

SUBJECT: To approve a contract renewal with US Bank to provide the District's banking services for the period Jjuly 1,
2013 through June 30, 2014. The original agreement was for two years with the option to renew annually for three
additional years. This renewal would be the fourth year of the total five year period. There is no cost associated with
this request.

BACKGROUND: There are no costs associated with this request as US Bank has offered an annual credit, which when
applied monthly will eliminate the monthly banking fees.

Accountability Plan Goals: Goal llI: Facilities, Resources Support Objective/Strategy: 111.D.

FUNDING SOURCE: (ex: 111 Location Code - 00 Project Code -110 Fund Type - 2218 Function— 6411 Object Code)

Fund Source: Requisition #:
Amount:

Fund Source: Requisition #:
Amount:

Fund Source: ] Requisition #:
Amount:

Cost Not to Exceed: $ 0.00 ! [_IPending Funding Availability Vendor #: 600012051

Department: Treasurer's Office

Requestor: Donna Johnson An el/’ Banks, Budget Director

AN

QL;?OﬁTiSﬂer, CFOfTreasurer

1, ,f(/i

Mary M?ouhhan Dep. Supt Operations

Dr. Kelvin R. Adams, Superintendent

Revised 07/06/2011 Reviewed By: Reviewed By: Reviewed By:



Vendor Performance Report

Type of report: Final X Quarterly [

Report Date: February 21, 2013

Dept / School: Treasury

Reported By: Donna Johnson

Vendor: US Bank

Vendor #: 600012051

Contract #/ P.O/ #:

Contract Name: District Banking Services

Contract Amount: $0

Award Date: 05-03-2012

Purpose of Contract (Brief Description): To provide the District’s banking services.

Performance Ratings: Summarize the vendor’s performance and circle the number which best describes their performance
in that category. See Vendor Performance Report Instructions for explanations of categories and numeric ratings (please
attach additional sheets if necessary). Ratings 5 = Exceptional; 4 = Very Good; 3 = Satisfactory; 2 = Marginal; 1 =

Unsatisfactory
Category Rating Comments (Brief)
Quality of Goods / Services 5
4X
3
2
1
Timeliness of Delivery or 5X
Performance 4
3
2
1
Business Relations 5
4
3X
2
1
Customer Satisfaction 5
4X
3
2
1
Cost Control 5
4X
3
2
1
Average Score 4.0 Add above ratings: divide the total by the number of

areas being rated.

Would you select / recommend this vendor again? Please be aware that an answer of yes authorizes the Purchasing
Department to seek renewal of the available option year for this contract. All items and conditions within the current contract

shall be honored during this renewal period.

Please Check

YesX No [




18



Board Resolution

Date: March 7, 2013 Agenda ltem:/

To: Dr. Kelvin R. Adams, Superintendent

From: Cheryl VanNoy, Exec. Dir., Technology Services Action: X

Action to be Approved: Other Transaction Descriptors:

X Contract Renewal
Previous Bd. Res. # 05-17-12-25/11-15-12-14

Previous Year Cost: $359,000.00

SUBJECT:
To approve a contract renewal with Tyler Technologies, Inc. (SIS K-12) for the annual license renewal of the Student Information
System to be provided from July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2014 at a cost not to exceed $361,380. The increase is less than 1%

and is a result of anticipating the addition of 5 days of training on modules for the 2013-14 school year.

BACKGROUND:

The current Student Information System is a web-based application provided by Tyler Technologies, Inc. and was implemented
District-wide in 2007. The student system serves as the authoritative data source for the collection and reportiing of student data by
providing enrollment, attendance, grades and various demographic information for all students. This systems assists in data driven
decision making. The contract also includes the Pulse system (data warehouse), the auto dial system (School Reach), and the

upgraded IEP module with new reporting features.

Accountability Plan Goal: Goal lil: Facilities, Resources Support Objective/Strategy: 1i.B.

FUNDING SOURCE: (Location Code) - (Project Code) - (Fund Type) - (Function) - (Object Code)

Fund Source: 981 - L3 - 110 - 2223 - 6441 GOB Requisition #:

Amount: $ 361,380.00

Fund Source: - - - - Requisition #:

Amount:

Fund Source: - - - - Requisition #:

Amount:

Cost Not to Exceed $ 361,380.00 LX_ Pending Fundir:g Availability Vendor #: 600013770
Department: Technology Services f?AW >

Angela Banks, Budget Director

) —

Chekyl L. VanNoy, Exec. Dir., Infofmation Technology

Mo

Man} Houlihan, Dep. Superintendent, Operations g/ ’Dr. Kelvin R. Adams, Superintendent

Fi CFO/Treasurer

Revised 7/6/10 . Reviewed By Reviewed By Reviewed By



Vendor Performance Report

Type of report: Final X Quarterly [ | Report Date: February 26, 2013
Dept / School: Information Technology Reported By: Cheryl VanNoy
Vendor: Tyler Technologies (SIS K-12) Vendor #: 600013770
Contract # / P.O/ #: 4500163290 Contract Name: Tyler Technologies (SIS K-12)
Maintenance
Contract Amount: $359,000.00 Award Date: 05/17/2012

Purpose of Contract (Brief Description):
Software licenses and maintenance on Student Information System

Performance Ratings: Summarize the vendor’s performance and circle the number which best describes their performance
in that category. See Vendor Performance Report Instructions for explanations of categories and numeric ratings (please
attach additional sheets if necessary). Ratings 5 = Exceptional; 4 = Very Good; 3 = Satisfactory; 2 = Marginal; | =

Unsatisfactory
Category Rating Comments (Brief)
Quality of Goods / Services X5 Tyler SIS delivers a high-quality product and is reputable
4 in the St. Louis region, along with state and nation-wide.
3
2
1
Timeliness of Delivery or X5 Their products are enhanced on a regular basis as data
Performance 4 reporting needs change and the benefit of the customers
3 providing feedback and suggestions is always honored.
2
1
Business Relations X5 SLPS and Tyler SIS have a great working relationship
4 and their commitment to our children is evident.
3
2
1
Customer Satisfaction X5 SLPS could not have a better provider in data
4 recordkeeping and reporting than this vendor.
3
2
1
Cost Control X5 The cost of the product is in line with other types of

4 software products. The discount that SLPS has received
3 over the years is at a rate that is difficult to match by
2 other vendors.
1

Average Score 5 Add above ratings: divide the total by the number of

areas being rated.

Would you select / recommend this vendor again? Please be aware that an answer of yes authorizes the Purchasing
Department to seek renewal of the available option year for this contract. All items and conditions within the current contract
shall be honored during this renewal period.

Please Check Yes XiXI No[]




Type of report
Report Date
Department
Reported By

Vendor

Vendor Number
Contract #/ PO #
Contract Name
Contract Amount
Award Date
Contract Description
Performance Ratings

VENDOR PERFORMANCE REPORT INSTRUCTIONS

Identify if this is a final report or a quarterly report (3 months)

The date the report is prepared

Indicate the name of the reporting department

Please sign your name

Enter the vendor’s name

Enter the vendor’s assigned number

Enter the assigned contract # or the purchase order # for the goods or services being reported
The official name used when the contract was solicited

The total dollar value of the contract: the amount listed on the Board Resolution

Enter the date that the Board approved this contract

Provide a brief description of the work being done under the contract

In the comment column provide the rationale for the rating you give

Indicate the contract requirements that were exceeded, were not exceeded, or were not met by the
vendor

Performance Ratings Guidelines

Rating Category Description

S Exceptional | Met all performance requirements; Minor problems; Effective corrective actions; Improved

performance; Quality results

4 Very Good | Met all performance requirements; Minor problems; Effective corrective actions
3 Satisfactory | Met all performance requirements; Minor problems; Satisfactory corrective actions
2 Marginal Some performance requirements not met; Performance reflects some serious problem;
Ineffective corrective actions
1 Unsatisfactory | Most performance requirements are not met; Recovery not likely
Performance Categories Descriptions
Category Description
Quality of Goods and / or Rate the vendor’s technical performance or the quality of the product or services
Services delivered under the contract
Timeliness of Delivery or Rate the vendor’s performance based on the delivery requirements of the contract.
Performance If the vendor significantly exceeded the requirements (to SLPS’ benefit); quickly
resolved delivery issues
Business Relations Rate the vendor’s professionalism; responsiveness; significantly exceeded
expectations; customer service; limited change orders
Customer Satisfaction Rate the vendor based on feedback you receive from your customers (end-users)
Cost Control Make your ratings based on the vendor’s effectiveness in forecasting, managing
and controlling contract cost. This assesses whether the vendor met original cost
estimated or needed to negotiate cost changes to meet contract requirements

Page 2 of 2 April 2007




19



43~ BOARD RESOLUTION

M -
Date: WMarch7,2013 Agenda ltem : ﬁ%ﬁj Y 5;%{}5%

To: Dr. Kelvin R. Adams, Superintendent Action: X

From: Cheryl VanNoy, Exec. Dir., Technology Services

Other Transaction Descriptors:

Action to be Approved: Contract Renewal (i.e.: Sole Source, Ratification)

Previous Board Resolution # 05-17-12-24
Prior Year Cost $100,000.00

SUBJECT: To approve the contract renewal for Virtual School through Connections Academy, Aventa Learning, Missouri

Council on Economic Education, Florida Virtual School, The North Kansas City School District, and any other DESE

approved vendor in a total combined amount not to exceed $100,000. The services to be provided for St. Louis City
resident students from July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2014.

BACKGROUND: MO Revised Statute 167.121 requires any unaccredited school district in Missouri to allow the option
for parents to "enroll the parents' or guardian's child in the Missouri Virtual school created in section 161.670, RSMo."
The virtual school curriculum providers listed have been selected and approved by DESE.

Accountability Plan Goals: Goal I: Student Performance Objective/Strategy: 13

FUNDING SOURCE: (ex: 111 Location Code - 00 Project Code -110 Fund Type - 2218 Function- 6411 Object Code)

Fund Source: 110-2223-6319-981-QZ GOB Requisition #:
Amount: $100,000

Fund Source: Requisition #:
Amount:

Fund Source: [ Requisition #:
Amount:

Cost Not to Exceed: MXPending Funding Availability Vendor #: Multiple
$100,000.00

Department: information Technology

Requestor: VanNoy

Angela Banks, Budget Director

Cheryl VafiNoy, Exec. Dir., Technology Services dn Fiﬂer, CFO/Treasurer

U e st

Mary M./}igﬁlihan, Dep. Supt., Operations

Revised 07/06/2011 Reviewed By: Reviewed By: Reviewed By:

%‘ Dr. Kelvin R. Adams, Superintendent



Vendor Performance Report

Type of report: Final X Quarterly [ ]

Report Date: February 27, 2013

Dept / School: Information Technology Services

Reported By: Cheryl VanNoy

Vendor: Connections Academy

Vendor #: 600014215

Contract #/P.O/ #: 4500159892

Contract Name: MoVIP Virtual School Program

Contract Amount: $ 40,000

Award Date: 05/17/2012

Purpose of Contract (Brief Description): To allow students access to the MoVIP Virtual School Program

through this DESE approved vendor.

Performance Ratings: Summarize the vendor’s performance and circle the number which best describes their performance

in that category. See Vendor Performance Report Instructions for explanations of categories and numeric ratings (please
attach additional sheets if necessary). Ratings 5 = Exceptional; 4 = Very Good; 3 = Satisfactory; 2 = Marginal; 1 =

Unsatisfactory

Category

Rating

Comments (Brief)

Quality of Goods / Services

Timeliness of Delivery or
Performance

Business Relations

Customer Satisfaction

Cost Control

SR e R s mesaal Rl e =mof e

Average Score

Add above ratings: divide the total by the number of

areas being rated.

Would you select / recommend this vendor again? Please be aware that an answer of yes authorizes the Purchasing

Department to seek renewal of the available option year for this contract. All items and conditions within the current contract

shall be honored during this renewal period.

Please Check

YesX No[]




Type of report
Report Date
Department
Reported By

Vender

Vendor Number
Contract #/ PO #
Contract Name
Contract Amount
Award Date
Contract Description
Performance Ratings

VENDOR PERFORMANCE REPORT INSTRUCTIONS

Identify if this is a final report or a quarterly report (3 months)

The date the report is prepared

Indicate the name of the reporting department

Please sign your name

Enter the vendor’s name

Enter the vendor’s assigned number

Enter the assigned contract # or the purchase order # for the goods or services being reported
The official name used when the contract was solicited

The total dollar value of the contract: the amount listed on the Board Resolution

Enter the date that the Board approved this contract

Provide a brief description of the work being done under the contract

In the comment column provide the rationale for the rating you give

Indicate the contract requirements that were exceeded, were not exceeded, or were not met by the
vendor

Performance Ratings Guidelines

Rating Category Description
5 Exceptional | Met all performance requirements; Minor problems; Effective corrective actions; Improved
performance; Quality results
4 Very Good | Met all performance requirements; Minor problems; Effective corrective actions
3 Satisfactory | Met all performance requirements; Minor problems; Satisfactory corrective actions
2 Marginal Some performance requirements not met; Performance reflects some serious problem;
Ineffective corrective actions
1 Unsatisfactory | Most performance requirements are not met; Recovery not likely
Performance Categories Descriptions
Category Description
Quality of Goods and / or Rate the vendor’s technical performance or the quality of the product or services
Services delivered under the contract
Timeliness of Delivery or Rate the vendor’s performance based on the delivery requirements of the contract.
Performance If the vendor significantly exceeded the requirements (to SLPS’ benefit); quickly
resolved delivery issues
Business Relations Rate the vendor’s professionalism; responsiveness; significantly exceeded
expectations; customer service; limited change orders
Customer Satisfaction Rate the vendor based on feedback you receive from your customers (end-users)
Cost Control Make your ratings based on the vendor’s effectiveness in forecasting, managing

and controlling contract cost. This assesses whether the vendor met original cost
estimated or needed to negotiate cost changes to meet contract requirements

Page 2 of 2 April 2007




Vendor Performance Report

Type of report: Final X Quarterly ]

Report Date: February 27, 2013

Dept / School: Information Technology Services

Reported By: Cheryl VanNoy

Vendor: Missouri Council of Economic Develop.

Vendor #: 600014216

Contract #/P.O/ #: 4500157963

Contract Name: MoVIP Virtual School Program

Contract Amount: $ 4,000

Award Date: 05/17/2012

Purpose of Contract (Brief Description): To allow students access to the MoVIP Virtual School Program

through this DESE approved vendor.

Performance Ratings: Summarize the vendor’s performance and circle the number which best describes their performance

in that category. See Vendor Performance Report Instructions for explanations of categories and numeric ratings (please
attach additional sheets if necessary). Ratings 5 = Exceptional; 4 = Very Good; 3 = Satisfactory; 2 = Marginal; 1 =

Unsatisfactory

Category

Rating

Comments (Brief)

Quality of Goods / Services

Timeliness of Delivery or
Performance

Business Relations

Customer Satisfaction

Cost Control

mNGeu MRl ean moEsnl mel e w0 e

Average Score

Add above ratings: divide the total by the number of

areas being rated.

Would you select / recommend this vendor again? Please be aware that an answer of yes authorizes the Purchasing

Department to seek renewal of the available option year for this contract. All items and conditions within the current contract

shall be honored during this renewal period.

Please Check

YesX No[]




Type of report
Report Date
Department
Reported By

Vendor

Vendor Number
Contract #/ PO #
Contract Name
Contract Amount
Award Date
Contract Description
Performance Ratings

VENDOR PERFORMANCE REPORT INSTRUCTIONS

Identify if this is a final report or a quarterly report (3 months)

The date the report is prepared

Indicate the name of the reporting department

Please sign your name

Enter the vendor’s name

Enter the vendor’s assigned number

Enter the assigned contract # or the purchase order # for the goods or services being reported
The official name used when the contract was solicited

The total dollar value of the contract: the amount listed on the Board Resolution

Enter the date that the Board approved this contract

Provide a brief description of the work being done under the contract

In the comment column provide the rationale for the rating you give

Indicate the contract requirements that were exceeded, were not exceeded, or were not met by the
vendor

Performance Ratings Guidelines

Rating Category Description
5 Exceptional | Met all performance requirements; Minor problems; Effective corrective actions; Improved
performance; Quality results
4 Very Good | Met all performance requirements; Minor problems; Effective corrective actions
3 Satisfactory | Met all performance requirements; Minor problems; Satisfactory corrective actions
2 Marginal Some performance requirements not met; Performance reflects some serious problem;
Ineffective corrective actions
1 Unsatisfactory | Most performance requirements are not met; Recovery not likely
Performance Categories Descriptions
Category Description
Quality of Goods and / or Rate the vendor’s technical performance or the quality of the product or services
Services delivered under the contract
Timeliness of Delivery or Rate the vendor’s performance based on the delivery requirements of the contract.
Performance If the vendor significantly exceeded the requirements (to SLPS’ benefit); quickly
resolved delivery issues
Business Relations Rate the vendor’s professionalism; responsiveness; significantly exceeded
expectations; customer service; limited change orders
Customer Satisfaction Rate the vendor based on feedback you receive from your customers (end-users)
Cost Control Make your ratings based on the vendor’s effectiveness in forecasting, managing

and controlling contract cost. This assesses whether the vendor met original cost
estimated or needed to negotiate cost changes to meet contract requirements

Page 2 of 2 April 2007




Vendor Performance Report

Type of report: Final X Quarterly [ ]

Report Date: February 27, 2613

Dept / School: Information Technology Services

Reported By: Cheryl VanNoy

Vendor: Aventa Learning

Vendor #: 600014212

Contract #/P.O/ #: 4500159891

Contract Name: MoVIP Virtual School Program

Contract Amount: $ 35,000

Award Date: 05/17/2012

Purpose of Contract (Brief Description): To allow students access to the MoVIP Virtual School Program

through this DESE approved vendor.

Performance Ratings: Summarize the vendor’s performance and circle the number which best describes their performance

in that category. See Vendor Performance Report Instructions for explanations of categories and numeric ratings (please
attach additional sheets if necessary). Ratings 5 = Exceptional; 4 = Very Good; 3 = Satisfactory; 2 = Marginal; 1 =

Unsatisfactory

Category

Rating

Comments (Brief)

Quality of Goods / Services

Timeliness of Delivery or
Performance

Business Relations

Customer Satisfaction

Cost Control

mREh e meleaal meleaal mo s =¥ s

Average Score

Add above ratings: divide the total by the number of
areas being rated.

Would you select / recommend this vendor again? Please be aware that an answer of yes authorizes the Purchasing

Department to seek renewal of the available option year for this contract. All items and conditions within the current contract

shall be honored during this renewal period.

Please Check

YesX No[]




Type of report
Report Date
Department
Reported By

Vendor

Vendor Number
Contract #/ PO #
Contract Name
Contract Amount
Award Date
Contract Description
Performance Ratings

VENDOR PERFORMANCE REPORT INSTRUCTIONS

Identify if this is a final report or a quarterly report (3 months)

The date the report is prepared

Indicate the name of the reporting department

Please sign your name

Enter the vendor’s name

Enter the vendor’s assigned number

Enter the assigned contract # or the purchase order # for the goods or services being reported
The official name used when the contract was solicited

The total dollar value of the contract: the amount listed on the Board Resolution

Enter the date that the Board approved this contract

Provide a brief description of the work being done under the contract

In the comment column provide the rationale for the rating you give

Indicate the contract requirements that were exceeded, were not exceeded, or were not met by the
vendor

Performance Ratings Guidelines

Rating Category Description
5 Exceptional | Met all performance requirements; Minor problems; Effective corrective actions; Improved
performance; Quality results
4 Very Good | Met all performance requirements; Minor problems; Effective corrective actions
3 Satisfactory | Met all performance requirements; Minor problems; Satisfactory corrective actions
2 Marginal Some performance requirements not met; Performance reflects some serious problem;
Ineffective corrective actions
1 Unsatisfactory | Most performance requirements are not met; Recovery not likely
Performance Categories Descriptions
Category Description
Quality of Goods and / or Rate the vendor’s technical performance or the quality of the product or services
Services delivered under the contract
Timeliness of Delivery or Rate the vendor’s performance based on the delivery requirements of the contract.
Performance If the vendor significantly exceeded the requirements (to SLPS’ benefit); quickly
resolved delivery issues
Business Relations Rate the vendor’s professionalism; responsiveness; significantly exceeded
expectations; customer service; limited change orders
Customer Satisfaction Rate the vendor based on feedback you receive from your customers (end-users)
Cost Control Make your ratings based on the vendor’s effectiveness in forecasting, managing

and controlling contract cost. This assesses whether the vendor met original cost
estimated or needed to negotiate cost changes to meet contract requirements

Page 2 of 2 April 2007




SANNT LIS
PUBLC SIDLE

Vendor Performance Report

Type of report: Final X Quarterly [ ]

Report Date: February 27, 2013

Dept / School: Information Technology Services

Reported By: Cheryl VanNoy

Vendor: North Kansas City School District

Vendor #: 600014214

Contract #/P.O/ #: 4500157965

Contract Name: MoVIP Virtual School Program

Contract Amount: $ 4,000

Award Date: 05/17/2012

through this DESE approved vendor.

Purpose of Contract (Brief Description): To allow students access to the MoVIP Virtual School Program

Unsatisfactory

Performance Ratings: Summarize the vendor’s performance and circle the number which best describes their performance
in that category. See Vendor Performance Report Instructions for explanations of categories and numeric ratings (please
attach additional sheets if necessary). Ratings 5 = Exceptional; 4 = Very Good; 3 = Satisfactory; 2 = Marginal; 1 =

Category

Rating

Comments (Brief)

Quality of Goods / Services

Timeliness of Delivery or
Performance

Business Relations

Customer Satisfaction

Cost Control

MR e R s mEsn] meEan] =% en

Average Score

Add above ratings: divide the total by the number of

areas being rated.

shall be honored during this renewal period.

Please Check

Yes X Nol[]

Would you select / recommend this vendor again? Please be aware that an answer of yes authorizes the Purchasing
Department to seek renewal of the available option year for this contract. All items and conditions within the current contract




Type of report
Report Date
Department
Reported By

Vendor

Vendor Number
Contract #/PO #
Contract Name
Contract Amount
Award Date
Contract Description
Performance Ratings

VENDOR PERFORMANCE REPORT INSTRUCTIONS

Identify if this is a final report or a quarterly report (3 months)

The date the report is prepared

Indicate the name of the reporting department

Please sign your name

Enter the vendor’s name

Enter the vendor’s assigned number

Enter the assigned contract # or the purchase order # for the goods or services being reported
The official name used when the contract was solicited

The total dollar value of the contract: the amount listed on the Board Resolution

Enter the date that the Board approved this contract

Provide a brief description of the work being done under the contract

In the comment column provide the rationale for the rating you give

Indicate the contract requirements that were exceeded, were not exceeded, or were not met by the
vendor

Performance Ratings Guidelines

Rating Category Description
5 Exceptional | Met all performance requirements; Minor problems; Effective corrective actions; Improved
performance; Quality results
4 Very Good | Met all performance requirements; Minor problems; Effective corrective actions
3 Satisfactory | Met all performance requirements; Minor problems; Satisfactory corrective actions
2 Marginal Some performance requirements not met; Performance reflects some serious problem;
Ineffective corrective actions
1 Unsatisfactory | Most performance requirements are not met; Recovery not likely
Performance Categories Descriptions
Category Description
Quality of Goods and / or Rate the vendor’s technical performance or the quality of the product or services
Services delivered under the contract
Timeliness of Delivery or Rate the vendor’s performance based on the delivery requirements of the contract.
Performance If the vendor significantly exceeded the requirements (to SLPS’ benefit); quickly
resolved delivery issues
Business Relations Rate the vendor’s professionalism; responsiveness; significantly exceeded
expectations; customer service; limited change orders
Customer Satisfaction Rate the vendor based on feedback you receive from your customers (end-users)
Cost Control Make your ratings based on the vendor’s effectiveness in forecasting, managing
and controlling contract cost. This assesses whether the vendor met original cost
estimated or needed to negotiate cost changes to meet contract requirements

Page 2 of 2 April 2007




Vendor Performance Report

Type of report: Final X Quarterly [_| Report Date: February 27, 2013
Dept / School: Information Technology Services | Reported By: Cheryl VanNoy
Vendor: Florida Virtual Schools Vendor #: 600014213
Contract # / P.O/ #: 4500157964 Contract Name: MoVIP Virtual School Program
Contract Amount: $ 15,000 Award Date: 05/17/2012

Purpose of Contract (Brief Description): To allow students access to the MoVIP Virtual School Program
through this DESE approved vendor.

Performance Ratings: Summarize the vendor’s performance and circle the number which best describes their performance
in that category. See Vendor Performance Report Instructions for explanations of categories and numeric ratings (please
attach additional sheets if necessary). Ratings 5 = Exceptional; 4 = Very Good; 3 = Satisfactory; 2 = Marginal; 1 =
Unsatisfactory

Category Rating Comments (Brief)

Quality of Goods / Services

Timeliness of Delivery or
Performance

Business Relations

Customer Satisfaction

Cost Control

mRSeu mRS e moEen] meh s mod e

Average Score Add above ratings: divide the total by the number of
areas being rated.

Would you select / recommend this vendor again? Please be aware that an answer of yes authorizes the Purchasing
Department to seek renewal of the available option year for this contract. All items and conditions within the current contract
shall be honored during this renewal period.

Please Check  YesX No[]




Type of report
Report Date
Department
Reported By

Vendor

Vendor Number
Contract #/ PO #
Contract Name
Contract Amount
Award Date
Contract Description
Performance Ratings

VENDOR PERFORMANCE REPORT INSTRUCTIONS

Identify if this is a final report or a quarterly report (3 months)

The date the report is prepared

Indicate the name of the reporting department

Please sign your name

Enter the vendor’s name

Enter the vendor’s assigned number

Enter the assigned contract # or the purchase order # for the goods or services being reported
The official name used when the contract was solicited

The total dollar value of the contract: the amount listed on the Board Resolution

Enter the date that the Board approved this contract

Provide a brief description of the work being done under the contract

In the comment column provide the rationale for the rating you give

Indicate the contract requirements that were exceeded, were not exceeded, or were not met by the
vendor

Performance Ratings Guidelines

Rating Category Description
] Exceptional | Met all performance requirements; Minor problems; Effective corrective actions; Improved
performance; Quality results
4 Very Good | Met all performance requirements; Minor problems; Effective corrective actions
3 Satisfactory | Met all performance requirements; Minor problems; Satisfactory corrective actions
2 Marginal Some performance requirements not met; Performance reflects some serious problem;
Ineffective corrective actions
1 Unsatisfactory | Most performance requirements are not met; Recovery not likely
Performance Categories Descriptions
Category Description
Quality of Goods and / or Rate the vendor’s technical performance or the quality of the product or services
Services delivered under the contract
Timeliness of Delivery or Rate the vendor’s performance based on the delivery requirements of the contract.
Performance If the vendor significantly exceeded the requirements (to SLPS’ benefit); quickly
resolved delivery issues
Business Relations Rate the vendor’s professionalism; responsiveness; significantly exceeded
expectations; customer service; limited change orders
Customer Satisfaction Rate the vendor based on feedback you receive from your customers (end-users)
Cost Control Make your ratings based on the vendor’s effectiveness in forecasting, managing

and controlling contract cost. This assesses whether the vendor met original cost
estimated or needed to negotiate cost changes to meet contract requirements

Page 2 of 2 April 2007




20



43+ BOARD RESOLUTION

Date: March 7, 2013 Agenda ftem : |

To: Dr. Kelvin R. Adams, Superintendent Action: X

From: Dr. James Henderson, Chief Human Resource Officer

Other Transaction Descriptors:

Action to be Approved: Contract Renewal (i.e.: Sole Source, Ratification)

Previous Board Resolution # 05-17-12-20
Prior Year Cost $14,800.00

SUBJECT: To approve a contract renewal with eSchool Solutions, Inc. for the annual maintenance fee for the Substitute
Employee Management System (Smart Find Express) beginning July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2014 at a cost not to
exceed $14,800.00.

BACKGROUND: eSchool Solutions, Inc. will provide support in maintaining, reforming and repairing existing capacities
of the following products: eSchool Solutions installed proprietary software, eSchool Solutions installed servers and
workstations, eSchool Solutions installed cards, and eSchool Solutions proprietary software updates, enhancements, and

new releases.

Accountability Plan Goals: Goal II: Highly Qualified Staff Objective/Strategy: II.A

FUNDING SOURCE: (ex: 111 Location Code - 00 Project Code -110 Fund Type — 2218 Function- 6411 Object Code)

Fund Source: 990-00-110-2832-6319 GOB Requisition #:
Amount: $14,800.00

Fund Source: Requisition #:
Amount:

Fund Source: | Requisition #:
Amount:

Cost Not to Exceed: $14,800.00 | XPending Funding Availability Vendor #: 600000249

Department: Human Resources (aé?j /M

Requestor: Dr. James L. Henderson Ange Bariks, Budget Director

L A XN

oqn"Fisher, CFO/Treasurer

Dr. James L. Henderson, Chief Human Resources

L et O |

Mary M. H ﬁulihan, Dep. Supt., Operations Dr. Kelvin R. Adams, Superintendent

Revised 67/66/2011 Reviewed By: Reviewed By: Reviewed By:



Vendor Performance Report

Type of report: Final X| Quarterly [_|

Report Date: February 27, 2013

Dept / School: Human Resources

Reported By: James L. Henderson, Ed.D.

Vendor: eSchool Solutions

Vendor #: 600000249

Contract #/ P.O/ #: 4500163297

Contract Name: Substitute Employee Management
System

Contract Amount: $ 14,800.00

Award Date: 5/17/2012

Purpose of Contract (Brief Description): Annual maintenance fee for the substitute employee management

system (SMART Find Express).

Performance Ratings: Summarize the vendor’s performance and circle the number which best describes their performance
in that category. See Vendor Performance Report Instructions for explanations of categories and numeric ratings (please
attach additional sheets if necessary). Ratings 5 = Exceptional; 4 = Very Good; 3 = Satisfactory; 2 = Marginal; 1 =

Unsatisfactory
Category Rating Comments (Brief)
Quality of Goods / Services 5
4X

Timeliness of Delivery or
Performance

Business Relations

Customer Satisfaction

They are very responsive when we express concerns.

Cost Control

RN W e Wi WS o] e w

Average Score

Pl
N

Add above ratings: divide the total by the number of
areas being rated.

Would you select / recommend this vendor again? Please be aware that an answer of yes authorizes the Purchasing
Department to seek renewal of the available option year for this contract. All items and conditions within the current contract

shall be honored during this renewal period.

Please Check

Yes No [




VENDOR PERFORMANCE REPORT INSTRUCTIONS

Type of report Identify if this is a final report or a quarterly report (3 months)

Report Date The date the report is prepared

Department Indicate the name of the reporting department

Reported By Please sign your name

Vendor Enter the vendor’s name

Vendor Number Enter the vendor’s assigned number

Contract #/PO # Enter the assigned contract # or the purchase order # for the goods or services being reported
Contract Name The official name used when the contract was solicited

Contract Amount The total dollar value of the contract: the amount listed on the Board Resolution

Award Date Enter the date that the Board approved this contract

Contract Description Provide a brief description of the work being done under the contract
Performance Ratings In the comment column provide the rationale for the rating you give

Indicate the contract requirements that were exceeded, were not exceeded, or were not met by the

vendor

Performance Ratings Guidelines

Rating Category Description
5 Exceptional | Met all performance requirements; Minor problems; Effective corrective actions; Improved
performance; Quality results
4 Very Good | Met all performance requirements; Minor problems; Effective corrective actions
3 Satisfactory | Met all performance requirements; Minor problems; Satisfactory corrective actions
2 Marginal Some performance requirements not met; Performance reflects some serious problem;
Ineffective corrective actions
1 Unsatisfactory | Most performance requirements are not met; Recovery not likely
Performance Categories Descriptions
Category Description
Quality of Goods and / or Rate the vendor’s technical performance or the quality of the product or services
Services delivered under the contract
Timeliness of Delivery or Rate the vendor’s performance based on the delivery requirements of the contract.
Performance If the vendor significantly exceeded the requirements (to SLPS’ benefit); quickly

resolved delivery issues

Business Relations

Rate the vendor’s professionalism; responsiveness; significantly exceeded
expectations; customer service; limited change orders

Customer Satisfaction

Rate the vendor based on feedback you receive from your customers (end-users)

Cost Control

Make your ratings based on the vendor’s effectiveness in forecasting, managing
and controlling contract cost. This assesses whether the vendor met original cost
estimated or needed to negotiate cost changes to meet contract requirements

Page 2 of 2 April 2007




21



42~ BOARD RESOLUTION

Date:

March 7, 2013 Agenda ltem :

Action:

To: Dr. Kelvin R. Adams, Superintendent

From: Dr. James Henderson, Chief Human Resource Officer

Other Transaction Descriptors:

Action to be Approved: Contract Renewal (i.e.: Sole Source, Ratification)

Previous Board Resolution # 05-17-12-21
Prior Year Cost $146,700.00

SUBJECT: To approve a contract renewal with Holmes Murphy to provide benefits consulting services for the period of
July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2014 at a cost not to exceed $151,700.00

BACKGROUND: Holmes Murphy has been working for the District for five years. This renewal term will be the third
year of a three-year contract after the services were competitively bid in 2011. Holmes Murphy is currently working on

the RFP for all lines of benefit coverage and the RFP for enroliment services. Holmes Murphy also serves on the Wellness

Committee.

Accountability Plan Goals: Goal II: Highly Qualified Staff

Objective/Strategy: I1I.A

FUNDING SOURCE: (ex: 111 Location Code - 00 Project Code -110 Fund Type — 2218 Function- 6411 Object Code)

Fund Source: 990-00-110-2832-6319 GOB Requisition #:
Amount: 151,700.00

Fund Source: Requisition #:
Amount:

Fund Source: | Requisition #:
Amount:

Cost Not to Exceed: XPending Funding Availability Vendor #: 600012797
$151,700.00

Department: Human Resources

Requestor: Dr. James L. Henderson

Dr. James L. Henderson, Chief Human Rescurces
Officer

S A 5

Mary M. Houlihan, Dep. Supt., Operations

Revised §7/06/2011 Reviewed By:

Angela Banks, Budget Director

(Qéc’m 'Fishér, CFO/Treasurer

Dr. Kelvin R. Adams, Superintendent

Reviewed By: Reviewed By:



SAINT LONHES
OB

Vendor Performance Report

Type of report: Final X| Quarterly [ | Report Date: February 27, 2013

Dept / School: Human Resources Reported By: James L. Henderson, Ed.D.
Vendor: Holmes Murphy Vendor #: 600012797

Contract #/P.O/ #: 4500163496 Contract Name: Benefits & Brokerage Services
Contract Amount: $ 146,700.00 Award Date: 5/17/2012

Purpose of Contract (Brief Description): Benefits Consulting and Brokerage Services

Performance Ratings: Summarize the vendor’s performance and circle the number which best describes their performance
in that category. See Vendor Performance Report Instructions for explanations of categories and numeric ratings (please
attach additional sheets if necessary). Ratings 5 = Exceptional; 4 = Very Good; 3 = Satisfactory; 2 = Marginal; 1 =
Unsatisfactory

Category Rating Comments (Brief)

Quality of Goods / Services 5X They continue to provide high quality services in a
timely manner.

Timeliness of Delivery or
Performance

There was an unexpected change. However, the
transition has been smooth.

Business Relations

Customer Satisfaction They are very responsive and flexible.

Cost Control

+ Un 9] oY 1]

Add above ratings: divide the total by the number of
areas being rated.

Average Score

Would you select / recommend this vendor again? Please be aware that an answer of yes authorizes the Purchasing
Department to seek renewal of the available option year for this contract. All items and conditions within the current contract
shall be honored during this renewal period.

Please Check  Yes Neo [[]




Type of report
Report Date
Department
Reported By

Vendor

Vendor Number
Contract #/ PO #
Contract Name
Contract Amount
Award Date
Contract Description
Performance Ratings

VENDOR PERFORMANCE REPORT INSTRUCTIONS

Identify if this is a final report or a quarterly report (3 months)

The date the report is prepared

Indicate the name of the reporting department

Please sign your name

Enter the vendor’s name

Enter the vendor’s assigned number

Enter the assigned contract # or the purchase order # for the goods or services being reported
The official name used when the contract was solicited

The total dollar value of the contract: the amount listed on the Board Resolution

Enter the date that the Board approved this contract

Provide a brief description of the work being done under the contract

In the comment column provide the rationale for the rating you give

Indicate the contract requirements that were exceeded, were not exceeded, or were not met by the
vendor

Performance Ratings Guidelines

Rating Category Description
5 Exceptional | Met all performance requirements; Minor problems; Effective corrective actions; Improved
performance; Quality results
4 Very Good | Met all performance requirements; Minor problems; Effective corrective actions
3 Satisfactory | Met all performance requirements; Minor problems; Satisfactory corrective actions
2 Marginal Some performance requirements not met; Performance reflects some serious problem;
Ineffective corrective actions
1 Unsatisfactory | Most performance requirements are not met; Recovery not likely
Performance Categories Descriptions
Category Description
Quality of Goods and / or Rate the vendor’s technical performance or the quality of the product or services
Services delivered under the contract
Timeliness of Delivery or Rate the vendor’s performance based on the delivery requirements of the contract.
Performance If the vendor significantly exceeded the requirements (to SLPS’ benefit); quickly
resolved delivery issues
Business Relations Rate the vendor’s professionalism; responsiveness; significantly exceeded
expectations; customer service; limited change orders
Customer Satisfaction Rate the vendor based on feedback you receive from your customers (end-users)
Cost Control Make your ratings based on the vendor’s effectiveness in forecasting, managing

and controlling contract cost. This assesses whether the vendor met original cost
estimated or needed to negotiate cost changes to meet contract requirements

Page 2 of 2 April 2007




22



42 BOARD RESOLUTION

Date: March 7, 2013 Agenda ttem : (-
To: Dr. Kelvin R. Adams, Superintendent Action: X

From: John Windom, Exec. Director, Full Service Schools

Action to be Approved: Other Transaction Descriptors:
Memorandum of Understanding (i.e.: Sole Source, Ratification)

SUBJECT: To approve the Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with the Curators of the University of Missouri on
behalf of the School and Family Counseling Center to provide therapeutic counseling services to students addressing such
areas as self-esteem at Long Middle for the period April 26, 2013 to June 30, 2014 at no cost to the District.

BACKGROUND: Group therapy will address the area of self esteem. Measurable outcomes will be established for and
with each client at the beginning stages of services and the evaluation/progress on these goals will be made available to
the school upon request and at the time of the MOU resubmission.

Accountability Plan Goals: Goal I: Student Performance Objective/Strategy: I.A.

FUNDING SOURCE: (ex: 111 Location Code - 00 Project Code -110 Fund Type — 2218 Function— 6411 Object Code)

Fund Source: Requisition #:
Amount: No Cost
Fund Source: Requisition #:
Amount:
Fund Source: [ Requisition #:
Amount:

$ 0.00 | [JPending Funding Availability | Vendor #:

Department: Community Education

Requestoy; Patrice _..j" ‘ Angelq' anks, Budget Director

), Ledn Fisher, CFO/Treasurer

Patrick Wallace, Exec. Dir., Communications 5 Dr. Kelvin R. Adams, Superintendent

Revised 07/66/2011 Reviewed By: Reviewed By: Reviewed By:



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING
(NON-FUNDRAISING)

This Memorandum of Understanding (“MOU”) is entered into by and between the Saint
Louis Public Schools (“SLPS”) and the Curators of the University of Missouri on behalf of the
School and Family Counseling Center (Agency”) on this 26" day of April, 2013.

The purpose of this Memorandum of Understanding is to establish a partnership between the
Curators of the University of Missouri on behalf of the School and Family Counseling Center and
the St. Louis Public Schools in order to provide therapeutic counseling services to students
addressing such areas as: self-esteem. This area will be addressed through group therapy at Long
Middle CEFSS.

1. Fundraising: It is understood by The Agency that the SLPS does not endorse any fundraising
efforts by the Agency, whether or not associated with the activities and duties contemplated by this
MOU. To the extent that the Agency believes in the future that its activities require fundraising, the
parties agree that all documents and activities associated with any such fundraising effort will be
cooperatively prepared and separately agreed to, and must be approved by the Special
Administrative Board of the Transitional School District of the City of St. Louis prior to
implementation.

2. Limitation of Liability: Each party to this MOU shall be solely responsible for any and all
actions, suits, damages, liability, or other proceedings brought against it as a result of the alleged
negligence, misconduct, error, or omission of any of its officers, agents or employees. Neither party
is obligated to indemnify the other party or to hold the other party harmless from costs or expenses
incurred as a result of such claims, and the SLPS shall continue to enjoy all rights, claims, and
defenses available to it under law, to specifically include Mo.Rev.Stat. §537.600, et seq. Nothing in
the MOU shall be construed as an indemnification by one party or the other for liabilities of a party
or third persons for property or any other loss, damage, death, or personal injury arising out of the
performance of this MOU. Any liabilities or claims for property or other loss, damage, death, or
personal injury by a party or its agents, employees, contractors, or assigns or by third persons arising
out of and during this MOU shall be determined according to applicable law. SLPS does not
relinquish or waive any of its rights under applicable state governmental immunities law.

3. Background Checks: All Personnel providing services under this MOU that may in any way
come into contact with students must undergo background checks consistent with those used by the
SLPS and state-licensed facilities; all such checks must be performed and passed prior to any
Personnel providing any services hereunder. At a minimum, checks hereunder shall include a
Department of Family Services background check, a criminal background check, and fingerprinting.
The cost of all such background checks shall be borne by the Agency, and the SLPS shall not be
liable for such cost under any circumstance. The Agency will provide written confirmation to SLPS
that the background checks on all Personnel hereunder reflected no negative findings, that said
Personnel passed the background checks and are, therefore, eligible to provide services under this
MOU.

1569108.02



4. Student Information: The Agency acknowledges that it shail now, and in the future may, have
access to and contact with confidential information of students, including but not limited to the
education and/or medical records of students. Both during the term of this MOU and thereafter, the
Agency covenants and agrees to hold such information in trust and confidence and to exercise
diligence in protecting and safeguarding such information, as well as any other information protected
from public disclosure by federal or state law or by the policies or procedures of the SLPS. The
Agency will not disclose any confidential information to any third party except as may be required in
the course of performing services for the SLPS hereunder or by law, and any disclosure will be in
compliance with the Family Education Rights and Privacy Act (“FERPA”) and the Health Insurance
Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (“HIPAA”).

5. Obligations of SLPS:

(a) Provide space for interaction with students, families and/or groups in which confidentiality can
be maintained during therapy.

(b) Develop with the agency, student standards for referral and participation in the program. Initiate
referrals for potential services by analysis of appropriate SLPS staff.

(c) Provide information necessary and in accordance with SL.PS policies for student record
confidentiality that may help therapeutic outcomes for the student.

6. Obligations of Agency:

(a) Develop with the agency, student standards for referral and participation in the program

(b) Provide therapeutic services as described in the purpose paragraph to the students served.

(¢) Communicate, as agreed upon by local SLPS staff and in accordance with the standards for
referral and participation.

(d) Maintain and share accurate records and sign in sheets with SLPS on request. Conduct
themselves professionally while on school premises or interacting with school students or their
families.

(e) Will administer baseline assessment, an assessment during treatment, and an assessment at the
end of services.




7. Success of this program will be measured using the following Performance Standards:
Performance Standards: Agency performance at the end of the term of this Memorandum of
Understanding will be measured by the Agency’s compliance with the following performance

standards:

(2) A minimum of 5 students or more will be served.

(b) A record of the areas addressed and the type of service provided will be made available to the
District.

(c) Measurable Outcomes are established for/with each client at the beginning stages of services and

the evaluation/progress on these goals will be made available to school on request and at the time of
the MOU resubmission.

8. Term and Termination: The term of the MOU will be from April 26, 2013 through June 30,
2014, unless earlier terminated by either party by providing thirty (30) days’ written notice to the
person who has signed as a representative of each party below.

Saint Louis Public Schools The Curators of the University of Missouri on
behalf of the University of Missouri —St. Louis

By: By:
Name: Name:
Title: Title:




23



42~ BOARD RESOLUTION

Date: March 7, 2013 Agenda ltem :

To:  Dr. Kelvin R. Adams, Superintendent Action: X

From: Travis Brown, Director, Athletics

Other Transaction Descriptors:

Action to be Approved: Purchase of Service (s) (i.e.: Sole Source, Ratification)

Previous Board Resolution # 04-12-12-12
Prior Year Cost $25,500

SUBJECT: To approve a purchase of services from Riddell All-American through Cooperating School Districts to provide
reconditioning and sanitation services for football helmets and shoulder pads. The services will be performed during the
period April 26, 2013 to June 15, 2013 for a cost not to exceed $26,000.

BACKGROUND: The helmets must be recertified each year to ensure that they are still structurally sound and can
protect our football players from injury. The recertification is a mandatory requirement for all schools according to the
National Federation of High Schools. Those helmets that cannot be recertified, will not be returned to the schools and
will be replaced by the new helmets that are being purchased as a part of the helmet replacement program.

Riddell All-American has recently been recruited by CSD and we have chosen to use the CSD pricing rather than do our
own RFP for the services.

Accountability Plan Goals: Goal I: Student Performance Objective/Strategy: 1A,

FUNDING SOURCE: (ex: 111 Location Code - 00 Project Code -110 Fund Type — 2218 Function— 6411 Object Code)

Fund Source: 833-00-110-1422-6338 GOB Requisition #:
Amount: $26,000.00

Fund Source: Requisition #:
Amount:

Fund Source: [ Requisition #:
Amount:

Cost Not to Exceed: $26,000.00 | [[IPending Funding Availability Vendor #: 600000969

Department: High School Athletics QAMAW
' {

Requestor: Martin Jenkins Angela Banks, Budget Director

(Ldon Fisher, CFO/Treasurer

‘%@/{/}' Jui( 7

Travis Brown, Di réctor, Athletics Dr. Kelvin R. Adams, Superintendent

Revised 07/06/2011 Reviewed By: Reviewed By: Reviewed By:



SAMET L0
BCHDOLE

Vendor Performance Report

Type of report: Final XX Quarterly [ | Report Date: February 27, 2013
Dept / School: Public High League Office Reported By: Martin Jenkins
Vendor: Riddell/All American Sports Corp. Vendor #: 600000969
Contract #/P.0O/ #: 4500162291 Contract Name: Football Equipment Reconditioning
Contract Amount: $ 25,500.00 Award Date: 04-12-12

Purpose of Contract (Brief Description): To recondition and sanitize all high school football helmets and
shoulder pads.

Performance Ratings: Summarize the vendor’s performance and circle the number which best describes their performance
in that category. See Vendor Performance Report Instructions for explanations of categories and numeric ratings (please
attach additional sheets if necessary). Ratings 5 = Exceptional; 4 = Very Good; 3 = Satisfactory; 2 = Marginal; 1 =
Unsatisfactory

Category Rating Comments (Brief)
Quality of Goods / Services 5X The sanitization process used by Riddell goes above and
4 beyond what is available from other vendors.
3
2
1
Timeliness of Delivery or 5 The helmets were delivered in late June.
Performance 4X
3
2
1
Business Relations 5X The Riddell representative is very responsive to
4 questions and needs of SLPS.
3
2
1
Customer Satisfaction 5X The PHL office and the school athletic directors are all
4 highly complimentary of the service.
3
2
1
Cost Control 5X
4
3
2
1
Average Score 4.8 Add above ratings: divide the total by the number of
areas being rated.

Would you select / recommend this vendor again? Please be aware that an answer of yes authorizes the Purchasing
Department to seek renewal of the available option year for this contract. All items and conditions within the current contract
shall be honored during this renewal period.

Please Check  YesXX No[]




VENDOR PERFORMANCE REPORT INSTRUCTIONS

Type of report Identify if this is a final report or a quarterly report (3 months)

Report Date The date the report is prepared

Department Indicate the name of the reporting department

Reported By Please sign your name

Vender Enter the vendor’s name

Vendor Number Enter the vendor’s assigned number

Contract #/ PO # Enter the assigned contract # or the purchase order # for the goods or services being reported
Contract Name The official name used when the contract was solicited

Contract Amount The total dollar value of the contract: the amount listed on the Board Resolution

Award Date Enter the date that the Board approved this contract

Contract Description Provide a brief description of the work being done under the contract
Performance Ratings In the comment column provide the rationale for the rating you give

Indicate the contract requirements that were exceeded, were not exceeded, or were not met by the

vendor

Performance Ratings Guidelines

Rating Category Description
5 Exceptional | Met all performance requirements; Minor problems; Effective corrective actions; Improved
performance; Quality results
4 Very Good | Met all performance requirements; Minor problems; Effective corrective actions
3 Satisfactory | Met all performance requirements; Minor problems; Satisfactory corrective actions
2 Marginal Some performance requirements not met; Performance reflects some serious problem;
Ineffective corrective actions
1 Unsatisfactory | Most performance requirements are not met; Recovery not likely
Performance Categories Descriptions
Category Description
Quality of Goods and / or Rate the vendor’s technical performance or the quality of the product or services
Services delivered under the contract
Timeliness of Delivery or Rate the vendor’s performance based on the delivery requirements of the contract.
Performance If the vendor significantly exceeded the requirements (to SLPS’ benefit); quickly

resolved delivery issues

Business Relations

Rate the vendor’s professionalism; responsiveness; significantly exceeded
expectations; customer service; limited change orders

Customer Satisfaction

Rate the vendor based on feedback you receive from your customers (end-users)

Cost Control

Make your ratings based on the vendor’s effectiveness in forecasting, managing
and controlling contract cost. This assesses whether the vendor met original cost
estimated or needed to negotiate cost changes to meet contract requirements

Page 2 of 2 April 2007




24



- BOARD RESOLUTION

Date: March 13,2013 Agenda ltem : (/7.

To: Dr. Kelvin R. Adams, Superintendent Action: X

From: Leon Fisher, CFO/Treasurer

Other Transaction Descriptors:

Action to be Approved: Policy Adoption/Change (i.e.: Sole Source, Ratification)

SUBJECT: To request approval to rescind Policies and Regulations R3110, P3120, R3120, P3150, R3150.1, P3170, R3170
and to approve the revision of Board Policy P3110 that will incorporate and consolidate pertinent verbiage relative to the
aforementioned policies and regulations. The new policy will be effective July 1, 2013.

BACKGROUND: The Policy has been updated to include the full budget process and is modeled after the MSBA policy
guidelines for budgeting. The Policy has been reviewed and is being recommended by the SLPS Finance Committee.

Accountability Plan Goals: Goal llI: Facilities, Resources Support Objective/Strategy: llI

FUNDING SOURCE: (ex: 111 Location Code - 00 Project Code -110 Fund Type — 2218 Function- 6411 Object Code)

Fund Source: Requisition #:
Amount:
Fund Source: ! Requisition #:
Amount:
Fund Source: | Requisition #:
Amount:

$ 0.00 ] [_IPending Funding Availability Vendor #:

Department: Finance ;;; ) kR
LA

Requestor: Angela Banks; Budget Director

’;I.)eon Iéfs.her, CFO/Treasurer

L

N(ary M.)'Ioulihan, Dep. Supt., Operations Dr. Kelvin R. Adams, Superintendent

Waswdand NT/INLIANTT D avrd avsra A Dere T avrdassrn A Dure T avrtasernd Dere



£ PROPOSED NEW POLIC

ST. LOUIS BOARD OF EDUCATION POLICY PAGE 1 OF 2

BUSINESS AND NON-INSTRUCTIONAL OPERATIONS
BUDGET

Planning

One of the primary responsibilities of the Board of Education is to secure adequate
funds to conduct a quality program of education in the school district. The annual
school budget represents a written document presenting the Board's plan for
allocation of the available financial resources into an explicit expenditure plan to
sustain and improve the educational function of the school district. It is a legal
document describing the programs to be conducted during the fiscal year and is
the basis for the establishment of tax rates for the district.

The planning and preparation of the budget is a continuing process. It must involve
a number of people who have knowledge of the educational needs of the
community and who can provide accurate data in regard to the financial potential
of the district. Members of the Board, citizens, students and professional and
support staff members should be involved in the planning process, which
culminates in the preparation of the budget document. The superintendent will
establish procedures that seek input from the appropriate people on budgetary
needs, evaluate programs for effectiveness, consider the priorities established
within the Board approved strategic plan and tie resource allocations to those
priorities.

The Board designates the superintendent to serve as the budget officer of the

district. As bu officer, the superin will_di lanning _an

re| ion_of the bud and will submit it to th 0

superinten ill_present to the B ntative budget proposal for th
i ar and will presen final bud roposal before the new | year

begins, as provided by law.

The Board will conduct at least one (1) public hearing regarding the proposed
budget.

The annual budget document shall present a completed financial plan for the
ensuing fiscal year and shall include at least the following statutory requirements:

[ 4 A budget message describing the important features of the budget and
major changes from the preceding year.

| 4 Estimated revenues to be received from all sources for the fiscal year, with
a comparative statement of actual or estimated revenues for the two (2)
years preceding, itemized by year, fund and source.

L 3 Proposed expenditures for each department, office and other classification
Legal: Sections 67.010-67.020 RSMo

Policy Adopted: June 26, 1990
Revised: March 21, 2013

Revised: February 9, 1999



P3110
ST. LOUIS BOARD OF EDUCATION POLICY PAGE 2 OF 2
BUSINESS AND NON-INSTRUCTIONAL OPERATIONS

BUDGET

Planning

for the fiscal year, with a comparative statement of actual or estimated
expenditures for the two (2) years preceding, itemized by year, fund,
activity and object.

B The amount required for the payment of interest, amortization and
redemption charges on the debt of the school district.

[ A general budget summary.

In no event shall the total proposed expenditures from any fund exceed the estimated
revenues to be received plus any unencumbered balance or less any deficit estimated
for the beginning of the fiscal year.

Upon the recommendation of the superintendent, the Board will approve a system of
internal accounting to ensure proper financial accounting of revenues and
expenditures.

The adopted budget of the St. Louis Public School District serves as the control to
direct and limit expenditures in the district. Overall responsibility for assuring control
rests with the superintendent, who will establish procedures for budget control and
reporting throughout the district.

The total amounts that may be expended during the fiscal year for the operation of
the school district are set forth in the budget The total budgeted expenditure for
each program is the maximum amount that may be expended for that classification
of expenditures during the school year unless a budget transfer is recommended by
the superintendent and is approved by the Board.

The Board will review the financial condition of the district monthly and shall require
the superintendent to prepare a monthly reconciliation statement. This statement will
show the amount expended during the month, total (to date) for the fiscal year,
receipts and remaining balances in each fund. This statement will be used as a
guide for projected purchasing and as a guide for budget transfers.

During the fiscal year the superintendent may transfer any unencumbered balance
or portion thereof from the expenditure authorization of one (1) account to another,
subject to limitations provided by state laws and approval by the Board.

All moneys received by the school district shall be disbursed only for the purposes
for which they are levied, collected or received.

Legal: Sections 67.010-67.020 RSMo
Policy Adopted: June 26, 1990
Revised: March 21, 2013

Revised: February 9, 1999



PlllL.1.1a Page 1 of 1

P3110

ST. LOUIS BOARD OF EDUCATION POLICY
BUSINESS AND NON-INSTRUCTIONAL OPERATIONS
BUDGET

Planning

References
Legal: Sections 67.010-67.020 RSMo.
Policy adopted: June 26, 1990

Revised: February 9, 1999

R3110

ST. LOUIS BOARD OF EDUCATION REGULATION
BUSINESS AND NON-INSTRUCTIONAL OPERATIONS
BUDGET

Planning

The treasurer, under the direction of the superintendent, shall supervise the preparation of a proposed
annual budget that is consistent with statutory requirements and the regulations of the board.

Budget preparation worksheets will be provided by the budget office. Building principals and program
administrators will follow instructions in the budget procedures manual regarding the completion and
submission of these documents.

Regulation approved: June 26, 1990

Revised: February 9, 1999

[ Home ][ Article 0 ] [ Article 1 1 Article 2 1 [ Article 3 ][ Article 4 1 [ Article 5]
[ Article 6 1 [ Article 7 1 [ Article 8 1 [ Article 9 1 [ Updates ]

http://sab.slps.org/Board_Education/policies/3110.htm 3/1212013



Pilll.l.1a Page 1 of 2

P3120

ST. LOUIS BOARD OF EDUCATION POLICY

BUSINESS AND NON-INSTRUCTIONAL OPERATIONS

BUDGET

Preparation of Budget Documents

The superintendent of schools or designee shall present to the Board of Education on or before the first
regular meeting in March of each year a list of proposed expenditures and anticipated revenues from all
sources, including state and federal money. Estimated expenditures shall be detailed by location,
function, and object codes. In addition, the full time equivalent (F.T.E.) count of budgeted, authorized
personnel will be presented with the same detail.

The superintendent or designee shall submit supporting schedules, exhibits, and other explanatory
material as may be necessary for the proper understanding of the budget.

References
Legal: Section 67.020 RSMo.
Policy adopted: June 26, 1990

Revised: February 9, 1999

R3120

ST. LOUIS BOARD OF EDUCATION REGULATION
BUSINESS AND NON-INSTRUCTIONAL OPERATIONS
BUDGET

Preparation of Budget Documents

The superintendent of schools, or a representative, shall recommend an annual budget to the board. This
recommendation shall provide:

1. That proposed appropriations meet the needs of the school district.

2. That the budget adopted by the Board of Education not exceed available revenue to be received plus
any unencumbered balances or less any deficits estimated for the beginning of the budget year.

3. That recommended appropriations for each fund be consistent with requirements of state statutes or
other provisions of law.

4. That the annual budget presents a complete financial plan for the ensuing year and includes at least
the following:

a. A budget message describing the important features of the budget and major changes from the

http://sab.slps.org/Board_Education/policies/3120.htm 8/15/2012



Pilll.1.1a rage L OI 2

preceding year.

b. Estimated revenues to be received from all sources for the budget year, with a comparative statement
of actual or estimated revenues for the two years next preceding, itemized by year, fund, and source.

c. Proposed appropriations for each department or division with a comparative statement of actual or
estimated expenditures for the two years next preceding, itemized by year, fund, function, and object.

d. The amount required for the payment of interest, amortization, and redemption on the debt, if any.

e. A general budget summary.

The superintendent of schools also shall submit at the same time complete drafts of any resolutions as
may be required to authorize the proposed appropriations and produce the revenue necessary to balance
the proposed budget.

References

Legal: Section 67.010 RSMo.

Regulation approved: June 26, 1990

Revised: February 9, 1999

[ Home ] [ Article 0 ] [ Article 1 ] [ Article 2 ] [ Article 3] [ Article 4 ] [ Article 5 ]
[ Article 6 1 [ Article 7 1 [ Article 8 1 [ Article 9 ] [ Updates ]

http://sab.slps.org/Board_Education/policies/3120.htm 8/15/2012



Pll1l1.1.1a Page 1 of 1

ST. LOUIS BOARD OF EDUCATION POLICY
BUSINESS AND NON-INSTRUCTIONAL OPERATIONS
BUDGET

Adoption

Before the beginning of each fiscal year, the Board of Education shall receive and consider
recommendations of the superintendent of schools and shall approve an annual general operating fund
budget for the ensuing year. Passage of the motion approving the budget shall automatically authorize
the expenditures contained in the budget. During the year, the Board of Education may revise, alter,

increase, or decrease the items contained in the budget, subject to such limitations as are provided by
Sections 67.010 through 67.100 RSMo. and the policies, regulations, and bylaws of the board.

References

Legal: Sections 67.010-67.100 RSMo.

Policy adopted: June 26, 1990

Revised: February 9, 1999

[ Home ] [ Articie 0 ] [ Article 1 1 [ Article 2 1 [ Article 3 ][ Articie 4 ][ Article 5 ]
[ Article 6 ] [ Article 7 ] [ Article 8 ] [ Article 9 ] [ Updates ]

http://sab.slps.org/Board_Education/policies/3150.htm 8/15/2012



Pilil.l.1a Page 1 of 1

R3150.1

ST. LOUIS BOARD OF EDUCATION REGULATION
BUSINESS AND NON-INSTRUCTIONAL OPERATIONS
BUDGET

Adoption

Increasing Appropriations

An approp